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Forward-looking statements

This annual report was written using the information

forecasts and other forward-looking statements will not

available to ROS AGRO PLC and its subsidiaries (hereinafter

actually come to pass. In light of these risks, uncertainties

also “the Group”) at the time of its preparation. Some of

and assumptions, the Group cautions that, owing to the

the statements in this Annual Report regarding the Group’s

influence of a wide range of material factors, actual results

business activities, economic indicators, financial position,

may differ from those indicated, directly or indirectly, in the

business and operating performance, plans, projects and

forward-looking statements, which are only valid as at the

expected results, as well as tariff trends, costs, anticipated

time of preparation of this Annual Report. ROS AGRO PLC

expenses, development prospects, industry and market

neither affirms nor guarantees that the performance results

forecasts, individual projects and other factors are forward-

set forth in the forward-looking statements will be achieved.

looking statements, i.e. they are not established facts.

The Group accepts no liability for losses which may be

The forward-looking statements which the Group may

incurred by individuals or legal entities who act on the

make from time to time (but which are not included in

basis of the forward-looking statements. In each particular

this document) may also contain planned or expected data

case, the forward-looking statements represent only one of

on revenue, profits (losses), dividends and other financial

many possible development scenarios, and should not be

indicators and ratios. The words “intends”, “aims”, “projects”,

seen as the most probable. Except in those cases directly

“expects”, “estimates”, “plans”, “believes”, “assumes”, “may”,

stipulated by applicable legislation and the Listing Rules of

“should”, “will”, “will continue” and similar expressions

the UK Listing Authority, the Group assumes no obligation

usually indicate forward-looking statements. However, this

to publish updates and amendments to the forward-looking

is not the only way to denote the forward-looking character

statements to reflect new information or subsequent events.

of information.
Due to their specific nature, forward-looking statements are
associated with inherent risk and uncertainty, both general
and specific, and there is the danger that assumptions,
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Sources for operating data and certain financial indicators
The operating data and certain financial indicators used in

given for that column. In addition, certain percentages

this Annual Report are based on management accounting

presented in the tables and charts in this document reflect

data, which is subject to management estimates, judgment

calculations based upon the underlying information prior

and presentation.

to rounding, and, accordingly, may not conform exactly

The financial information presented in a series of tables

to the percentages that would be derived if the relevant

in this document has been rounded to the nearest integer

calculations were based upon the rounded number.

or decimal place. Therefore, the sum of the numbers in
a column may not conform exactly to the total figure

To view the interactive version of the Annual Report
please click the link http://www.rusagrogroup.ru/
fileadmin/files/reports/ru/pdf/rusagro_ar_2014_eng.pdf ,
or scan the QR code.
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1. About ROS AGRO Group
ROS AGRO Group is one of the largest vertically integrated
agribusiness groups in Russia. The company has four main
businesses:

See р. 28

See р. 34

Sugar business

Meat business

1 st

2 nd

2 nd

Sugar cube
production

Sugar
production

Pork
producer

(43%)

(15%)

(6,3 %)

Products
Sugar cubes

Pork

Packaged sugar

Half-bulk

Commercial sugar

Large cuts

Molasses

Consumer products

Beet pulp
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ROS AGRO – one of Russia’s
leading agribusiness groups.

See р. 42

See р. 50

Agriculture business

Products

Oil and fats business

1 st

5th

Margarine
production

Mayonnaise
production

(49%)

(9%)

Products

Grains

Vegetable oil

Sugar beet

Margarine

Sunflower

Spreads

Soybean and other crops

Mayonnaise
Ketchup
Mustard
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Vertically integrated
business model
Distribution

Brands:

Processing and production

Sugar business

6

sugar
plants
Fertilizer
(beet sugar production waste)

Ingredients production

Agriculture
business
Sugar beet
(share of in-house production – 71%)

Land bank:

468.2

thousand
ha

Tambov and Belgorod
regions, including
388,400 ha of arable
land
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26.5

thousand
ha

Primorsky Krai,
including 23,800 ha
of arable land
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The close economic ties between its business divisions enable ROS AGRO
Group to optimize the use of resources, reduce logistical and other costs, and
more efficiently meet the challenges of purchasing raw materials and selling
finished products.

Brands:
Entry into consumer market for
processed meat products planned for
2015

Meat business

2

commercial
pork production
companies

Oil and fats business

16

1

commercial
pig farms

Meal
(share of in-house
production – 100%)

Compound feed
(share of in-house production – 88%)

2

compound feed
plants

1
5

Organic
fertilizer

Fats plant

Vegetable oil
(share of in-house
production – 100%)

oil extraction
plant
elevators
with capacity to store
193,000 tonnes of sunflower seeds

Grains
(share of in-house production – 100%)

4

elevators

with capacity to store up to
401,800 tonnes of grain and outdoor
storage in sleeves for 300,000 tonnes

1

commercial dairy
farm
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Expanding markets
The Group’s products are sold in more than 80 regions
of Russia and exported to 14 countries.

St. Petersburg
St. Petersburg

European Russia
European Russia

Moscow
Moscow

1

1
2

23

3

Ural federal districts

Volga federal districts

Ural federal districts

Volga federal districts

4

4

Yekaterinburg

Yekaterinburg

Siberian federal districts

Siberian federal districts

Regions
withwith
company
Regions
company
presence
presence

Regional
Regional
markets
markets

Export Export
marketsmarkets

Promising
Promising
markets markets

Belgorod
Region
(1) (1)
Belgorod
Region
Voronezh
Region
(2) (2)
Voronezh
Region
Tambov
Region
(3)
Tambov Region (3)
Samara Region (4)
Samara Region (4)
Yekaterinburg
Yekaterinburg
Primorsky Krai

Moscow
Moscow
St. Petersburg
St. Petersburg
European
RussiaRussia
European
Ural federal districts
Ural federal districts
Volga federal districts
Volga federal districts
Siberian federal districts

Kazakhstan
(13)
Kazakhstan
(13)
Kyrgyzstan
(14)
Kyrgyzstan
(14)
Uzbekistan
(15)
Uzbekistan
(15)
Tajikistan (16)
Tajikistan (16)
Turkmenistan (17)
Turkmenistan (17)
Azerbaijan (18)
Azerbaijan (18)
Moldova (19)
(19)
BelarusMoldova
(20)
Belarus
Mongolia
(21) (20)
Mongolia (21)
Israel (22)
Israel
Germany
(23) (22)
Germany
(23)
Denmark
(24)
(24)
Turkey Denmark
(25)
Turkey (25)
Egypt (26)

Afghanistan
(27)
Afghanistan
(27)
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Thailand Thailand
(28)
(28)
Vietnam (29)
Vietnam (29)
China (30)
China (30)
Japan (31)
Japan (31)
South Korea (32)
Iran (33) South Korea (32)
UAE (34) Iran (33)
UAE (34)
Oman (35)

Primorsky Krai

Siberian federal districts

Egypt (26)
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80
14

constituent entities
of the Russian
Federation

Primorsky Krai

countries

24
23

20
13

19
18
25
22

15
17
33

21

14
27

16

32
30

31

26
35

Hong Kong

28

29
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Ambitious investment programme

ROS AGRO Group Strategic Goal –
TO BECOME ONE OF THE LEADING
FOOD PRODUCERS IN THE CIS

Production
Expansion of production capacity,
including

Modernization and introduction
of new technologies, including

•• Construction of facilities at Belgorod Bacon

•• Equipment upgrades at sugar plants

•• Construction of facilities at Tambov Bacon

•• Modernization of technology and equipment in
agriculture division

•• Expansion of land bank
•• Expansion of processing capacity at oil extraction plant to

•• Modernization of equipment at Fats Plant (EZhK)
•• Establishment of oil sludge processing at

17,000 tonnes per year

Samaraagroprompererabotka oil extraction plant

Production growth

Production of high quality products

Expansion of presence
in all business segments

Increased production efficiency

2014

ROS AGRO Group is one of the leading producers of sugar, margarine and pork on
the Russian market, and one of the top ten producers of mayonnaise and vegetable oil
ROS AGRO Group is the largest supplier of margarine in Central Asia

// 10
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>52

bln
rub

ROS AGRO GROUP INVESTED
IN DEVELOPMENT
OF PRODUCTION IN 2010-2014.

Sales
Development of consumer brands,
including

Entry into new markets,
including

•• Purchase of TM Mechta Khozyaiki

•• Promotion of products of Fats Plant on Central Asian

•• Development of national distribution for Mechta

market

Khozyaiki brand in Russia
•• Promotion of sugar brands: Russkii Sakhar, Chaikofsky,
Mon Café and Brauni

Growth in number and popularity of
brands

Future
growth:

Expansion of markets

•• Enter consumer market for processed meat products.
•• Вevelop Mechta Khozyaiki trademark into a national brand.
•• Build agribusiness cluster in Primorsky Krai.
•• Еnter the markets of Japan, South Korea, China, Hong Kong, Thailand, Vietnam, Iran
and other countries.

// 11

I      ABOUT ROS AGRO GROUP     I

CONTENTS

GROWTH OF REVENUE IN 2014,
AS COMPARED TO 2013

+

62%

Record results in 2014
Revenue, bln RUB
The Group’s integrated structure, diversification, consistent

59.1

implementation of investment policy and sound corporate
governance set the stage the company’s sustainable growth.
ROS AGRO Group achieved record financial results in 2014.

39.7
34.1

31.0

Revenue grew by 62% to 59.122 billion roubles and net

36.5

profit soared more than sixfold to 20.177 billion roubles.
EBITDA totalled 18.069 billion roubles. The highest
EBITDA margins were 50% in the meat business and 41%
in the agriculture business.

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Gross profit, bln RUB

Gross proﬁt

Net profit, bln RUB

Net proﬁt

Gross margin

Net margin

34%

41%
32%

31%
24%

21%

24.1

17%

13%
9%

6%

10.1

8.3

10.7

8.9
5.1
2.4

2010
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2011

2012

20.2

2013

2014

2010

2011

4.3

3.2

2012

2013

2014
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Revenue in 2014
amounted to
(+62.0%)

Net profit increased
sixfold and
amounted to

EBITDA

billion roubles

billion roubles

billion roubles

59.1

20.2

Adjusted EBITDA, bln RUB

18.1

EBITDA margin

18.1

50%
in Meat
division

8.8

7.9

6.8
5.2

2010

2011

41%
2012

2013

2014

Net debt/EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA margin, ( %)

EBITDA margin (Group)
Meat

in Agriculture
division

Sugar
Oil and Fats

Agriculture

Net debt, bln RUB

Net debt/EBITDA

2.3
2.0

50%

1.1

40%

2.1

17.3
14.6

30%

0.2

11.9
8.7

20%

3.6

10%
0%

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014
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Results by business segment

Sugar business

Meat business

24%

44%

Share of Group
EBITDA*

Share of Group
EBITDA*

The sugar division increased revenue by 32.4% to 22.5 billion

The meat division increased sales by 140% to 17.8 billion

roubles in 2014. Adjusted EBITDA grew by about 180% to 4.8

roubles in 2014, and more than quintupled EBITDA to

billion roubles.

8.8 billion roubles.

The division produced 497,800 tonnes of beet sugar. While

The division produced 186,800 tonnes of pork, 38.0% more

the volume remained at about the 2013 level, the sugar yield

than in 2013. Feed plants boosted production by 57.4% to

increased by 25% to 15.3%. Production of cane sugar doubled to

565,100 tonnes of compound feed.

218,800 tonnes.
Beet sugar production, ‘000 t
547
463

Pork production in live weight, ‘000 t

502

498

187
135

216

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Cane sugar production, ‘000 t

62

64

2010

2011

73

2012

2013

Compound feed production, ‘000 t

565

627
478

359

57

2010

// 14

2014

2011

2012

219

175

2014

2010

234

246

2011

2012

109

2013

2013

2014
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Agriculture business

Oil and fats business

22%

9%

Share of Group
EBITDA*

Share of Group
EBITDA*

The agriculture division increased sales by 25.6% to

The oil and fats division increased sales by 67.3%

10.7 billion roubles. EBITDA almost doubled to 4.4 billion

to 14.9 billion roubles and almost doubled EBITDA

roubles.

to 1.9 billion roubles.

The division harvested 718,000 tonnes of grain,

The division produced 57,700 tonnes of mayonnaise and

2.318 million tonnes of sugar beet and 70,000 tonnes

prepared sauces, 47,100 tonnes of margarine and spreads,

of sunflower seeds.

and 188,400 tonnes of vegetable oil, respectively 3.0%,
14.9% and 71.3% more than in 2013.

Land bank area, ‘000 ha

380

424

Margarine & mayonnaise production, ‘000 t

452

463

495

Margarine and spreads

Mayonnaise and prepared sauces

Margarine
& spreads
57
57

56 & prepared sauces
55 Mayonnaise
42
56
55

32

35

57

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Crop harvest, ‘000 t

3,072

36

35

36

41

2011

2012

2013

32

2010

57

2010

2011

2012

58
47
58
47
2014

2013

2014

Vegetable oil production, ‘000 t

3,273

3,684

188

3,197

152
110

1,342

2010

67

2011

2012

2013

2014

2011

2012

2013

2014

* Share calculated based on the Group’s adjusted EBITDA, calculated as the sum of EBITDA figures for each business segment, not including
other sales and intra-group turnover.
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2. Letter from the Сhairman
Strategic investment in Meat Business drives
very robust performance

Context and operating performance
We continue to operate in a dynamic and uncertain
environment that is testing the resilience of our business
model. At this stage, rouble devaluation has not significantly
impacted on consumer demand for our products, although we
anticipate some weakening of pork and mayonnaise demand.
At the same time, high average pricing and the positive
effect of the weaker rouble on our cost base has delivered
strong margins, especially in Meat and Agriculture. In this
challenging operating environment, the Board is extremely
pleased with our net revenue growth of 53% to 52.8 billion
roubles and our EBITDA growth of 160% to 17.9 billion
roubles. This is a very robust performance, driven mainly
by our successful strategic investment in Meat capacity
expansion. We have trebled our capacity over the last four
years and Meat now represents more than half our total

RICHARD ANDREW SMYTH

Group Earnings. Our agricultural land bank expansion has

Chairman of the Board of Directors,

slowed in our Central Russian heartland, although we have

ROS AGRO PLC

made a strategic investment in 26,000 hectares in the
Russian Far East. However, we operate this land bank more
efficiently through automation and, together with positive
pricing dynamics, have doubled margins in both Agriculture
and Sugar. Our investment in building the premium Mechta
Khozyaiki Mayonnaise brand is proving tougher than
we anticipated, in a very competitive market. Nevertheless,
we believe the current tough conditions represent
an opportunity to gain share and we will continue to invest
in this category.

Shareholder return
Since our IPO in 2011, we have delivered CAGR of EBITDA
of 71% to the current level of 17.9 billion roubles. In fact,
EBITDA has more than trebled whilst our share price has
halved. As our shareholders are not yet being rewarded

// 16
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with growth in the share price, we believe that the dividend

We are planning to further develop our Meat business

is an important part of shareholder remuneration. Our policy

primarily through expansion in existing regions, as opportunity

is to deliver a minimum 25% payout ratio.

exists for further concentration of supply. We will also establish

In response to shareholder feedback, we introduced an interim

operations in the Russian Far East, following our land bank

dividend, and paid 2 billion roubles DPS in October 2013.

acquisition. Local operations deliver higher margins in this

The Board of Directors is recommending total dividends

geographically distant and isolated region and will provide

of 5 billion roubles for 2014, including paid interim dividends

a hub for potential exports to Asian markets, including China.

for the first half of 2014 in the amount of 2 billion roubles.

Our strategy in Sugar and Mayonnaise will continue to focus

Governance

on achieving a competitive edge through supply side efficiency
and premiumisation of our portfolio, in both categories.

Our current Board has been in place for 2 years now, since

We anticipate that Mayonnaise will remain very competitive

the appointment of Tassos Televantides to lead the Audit

and require further marketing investment to strengthen our

Committee, and is appropriate for a business at our stage

market position.

of development. Whilst Board composition has been stable, our

Our strong financial performance and net debt position leaves

senior manager turnover has been higher than we would like

us well positioned to capitalize on growth opportunities that

and we introduced share-based remuneration last year. We will

arise during these periods of instability. At the same time,

further develop our remuneration package in order to better

we remain committed to our dividend policy and creation

link senior manager performance to our shareholders’ goals.

of both value and good returns for our shareholders.

Our governance framework is now largely in place although the
Board continues to refine our business processes. The strategy
development process is working well and the Board held three
strategic category reviews last year. More importantly, the
quality of the strategic work has been matched with operational
execution, as reflected in these results.

Outlook
Clearly, we are facing a period of uncertainty pending
resolution of the conflict in Ukraine and oil price recovery.
Nevertheless, across our broad portfolio of food categories,
we do not anticipate any significant demand issues, as
consumers cut back on luxuries and non-essential products.
Furthermore, with a weaker rouble, we expect to remain highly
cost competitive relative to imports and remain near best in
class in Russia.
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3. Letter from the CEO
ROS AGRO achieves strong financial results in 2014 despite difficult
economic environment

2014 was the best year for ROS AGRO in many respects.
The company managed to achieve strong financial results
amid volatile currency exchange and lending rates,
decreasing government support, changes in the retail sector
and falling consumer incomes. The Group’s revenue grew to
59.1 billion roubles, EBITDA reached 18.0 billion roubles and
net profit rose to 20 billion roubles.
The Meat division grew significantly with the launch of new

MAXIM BASOV

production facilities in Tambov Region, becoming the second

Director, ROS AGRO PLC

largest pork producer in Russia with sales of 17.8 billion

Chief Executive Officer,

roubles. The division made the biggest contribution to

LLC Rusagro Group of Companies

the Group’s EBITDA growth, as its EBITDA rose to 8.8 billion
roubles and its EBITDA margin was 50%. The Russian
meat industry saw strong growth in 2014, becoming more
competitive against imports, and this trend is expected to
continue in 2015. The Group’s Meat business will continue
to expand in 2015 as it opens a slaughterhouse and enters
the retail market. The company also plans to secure
government support to start building a third production
cluster in the Russian Far East, close to the large Asian
market.
The Sugar division also saw strong growth, with sales
reaching 22.5 billion roubles, EBITDA increasing
to 4.8 billion roubles and the EBITDA margin

// 18
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THE COMPANY MANAGED TO ACHIEVE
GREAT RESULTS ON THE UNSTABLE
MARKET.

>20

amounting to 21%. The division benefited from the

to invest in all four business divisions in 2015 and expand

depreciation of the rouble and high quality of raw

operations in the Russian Far East. Management will

material. We expect that the positive developments of

particularly focus on human resources development and

2014, inventories of sugar with low cost and the planned

introducing new technologies.

2014 was the best year for
ROS AGRO Group

bln
RUB

NET PROFIT
OF ROS AGRO GROUP

expansion of the Znamensky Sugar Plant will set the stage
for a successful 2015.
The Agriculture division remains the foundation of the
Group’s business, supplying raw materials to other business
segments. Although this division did not grow as rapidly as
the Meat and Sugar divisions in 2014, its sales, EBITDA and
EBITDA margin reached record highs of 10.7 billion roubles,
4.4 billion roubles and 41% on the back of a strong harvest
and high quality of grain crops.
The Oil and Fats division also grew in 2014, increasing sales
to 14.9 billion roubles and EBITDA to 1.9 billion roubles.
The EBITDA margin of 13% reflected stronger competition
among local producers and weaker vertical integration
compared to the Group’s other business units. The main
achievements in this division included record margarine
sales and expansion of elevator capacity.
The company will continue investing in its business thanks
to the reduction of the Group’s debt and as the cost of
borrowing in Russia decreases. The company has many
interesting investment projects in the pipeline. We plan

// 19
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4. Management report
Statement of responsibility
I confirm that to the best of my knowledge this management

MAXIM BASOV

report contains a true and fair view of the development,

Director

performance and state of the company and its subsidiaries

ROS AGRO PLC

(ROS AGRO Group).

Investment policy
The corporate strategy of ROS AGRO Group, one of Russia’s

production facilities, introducing new technologies,

largest agribusiness groups, aims to make the company one

achieving synergies and developing consumer brands. These

of the leading food producers in the CIS.

strategic objectives steer the Group’s investment policy.

The company intends to achieve its goals by expanding its

ROS AGRO Group has invested more than 52 billion roubles

presence in all key markets, reducing costs, modernizing

in development of production in the past five years.

Expanding presence in all business areas
Acquisition of new assets and investment in projects to

the Russian market. The company plans to further increase

expand existing capacity has enabled ROS AGRO Group to

its share of the meat market by producing processed meat

become a leading producer of sugar, margarine and pork on

products.

Investment projects
Construction of Belgorod Bacon facilities
Cost:

Measures: construction of six commercial pig farms for
4,800 sows each, one breeding complex for 2,400 sows, growing
and finishing division, boar house and compound feed plant

Duration:

Result: growth of pig herd; the sow population at Belgorod
Bacon has grown to 39,000 and the overall herd exceeds
400,000 head, annually producing 90,000 tonnes of pork in
live weight

6.7 billion roubles
2006–2009

// 20
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Construction of Tambov Bacon facilities
Cost:

Measures: construction of seven commercial pig farms for
4,800 sows each, two breeding farms and compound feed plant
with capacity to produce 340,000 tonnes per year.

Duration:

Result: growth of pig herd; the sow population at Tambov
Bacon has grown to 42,000 and the farms have combined
design capacity to produce 115,000 tonnes of pork in live
weight annually.

10.4 billion roubles
2010–2014

Construction of slaughterhouse in Tambov Region
with capacity of 350 head/hour
Cost:

3.7 billion roubles

Main goal: process all produced pork into large cuts and
chilled processed products.

Planned start
of production:

2015

Expansion of land bank
Cost:

Measures: purchase of land in Tambov and Belgorod regions.

million roubles

Result: in the period from 2009 to 2014 the land bank grew
by 82.6% to 468,000 ha.

552.8

Construction of pig farming complexes in Tambov Region

for 42,000 sows; compound feed plant with capacity to produce 420,000
tonnes per year; expansion of slaughterhouse productivityа
Cost:

17 billion roubles

Main goal: increase production at Tambov Bacon by
148,000 tonnes of pork in live weight and processing of
produced pork into large cuts by increasing slaughterhouse
productivity from 350 to 600 head/hour.

Planned completion
of construction:

August 2017

// 21
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Acquisition of Samaraagroprompererabotka
(SAPP) oil extraction plant

with capacity to process 1,000 tonnes of sunflower seeds
per day
Result: entry into vegetable oil market; 100% supply of our
own vegetable oil for Fats Plant (EZhK).

Cost:

179 million roubles
Date:

2011

Expansion of SAPP oil extraction plant
Result: oil extraction plant’s sunflower seed processing
capacity increased by 17,000 tonnes per year.

Cost:

91 million roubles
Date:

2014

Launch of granulated meal production
division at SAPP oil extraction plant
Measures: installation of equipment from German company
Amandus Kahl, enabling production of high quality granules
of required size and unit weight up to 650 g/l; certification of
granulated meal to GMP+ standards in 2014.

Cost:

48 million roubles
Date:

Result: entry into granulated meal market, including in
Northern Europe (Denmark); securing supply of granulated
meal for own pig farms.

2013

Expansion of export markets
Result: Group products are exported to Kazakhstan,
Kyrgyzstan, Uzbekistan, Tajikistan, Turkmenistan, Azerbaijan,
Moldova, Belarus, Mongolia, Israel, Germany, Denmark,
Turkey and Egypt.

24
23

20
13

19
18

15
17

25
22
26

33

21

14
27

16

32
30

31

34
35

Гонконг

28
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Cost reduction
Taking steps to reduce costs is crucial to ensuring operating
efficiency and increasing competitiveness. ROS AGRO Group
aims to become the company with the lowest costs in the
areas in which it operates.

Investment project
Replacement of vegetable fat with animal fat
at Tambov Bacon and Belgorod Bacon
compound feed plants
Cost:

30 million roubles
Planned completion:

Main goal: reduce cost of feed ingredients by replacing
vegetable fat (sunflower oil) with less expensive animal fat.
Expected result: savings on ingredient costs of up to
61 million roubles annually.

April-May 2015

Construction of expanded soybean meal plant
with capacity of 54,000 tonnes per year
Cost:

73 million roubles
Planned completion:

July 2015

Main goal: fully supply the meat business with our own fullfat soybean.
Expected result: reduction of the cost of the meat business’s
feed basket by 921 million roubles or 2.6% in 2015-2020.

Grain storage in sleeves
Cost:

46 million roubles
Planned completion:

July 2015

Main goal: reduce cost of grains in Tambov Bacon’s feed
basket by foregoing grain storage in outside elevators (during
the season more grain is purchased than can be stored at our
own elevator) in favour of storing grain in polyethylene bags at
our own property.
Expected result: savings on grain storage of up to 57 million
roubles annually; the first storage area for 23,000 tonnes of
grain was set up in 2014.
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Modernization & new technologies
ROS AGRO Group assures the high efficiency of its
production facilities by investing in equipment and
introducing the latest technologies.

Investment projects
Modernization of Tambov Bacon
and Belgorod Bacon compound feed plants
Cost:

125 million roubles

Main goal: increase feed production by 160,000 tonnes per
year to cover growing feed consumption driven by growth of
pork production.

Planned completion:

December 2015

Equipment upgrades at sugar plants
Cost:

7,530.8

billion roubles
Duration:

2008–2014

Measures: installation of filtration equipment, evaporator
station, sugar dryer, conveyor to feed beets from washing
division, etc.; launch of packaging lines at Nikiforovsky and
Znamensky plants, and pressing lines at Nika plant.
Result: growth of plants’ combined sugar beet processing
capacity by 18% to 34,600 tonnes per day; expansion of capacity
to produce packaged and cube sugar.

Modernization of machinery and equipment
in agriculture division
Duration:

2010–2014

Measures: purchase of new grain harvesting and beet
harvesting combines, seeding machines, sprayers, etc.; equip
grain cleaning facilities of commercial grain floors and
pickling facility of seed floor.
Result: better quality product, increase of crop yields to
above average in regions of operations.
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Establishment of oil sludge processing with
Westfalia equipment at SAPP oil extraction plant
Cost:

6 million roubles

Result: the equipment makes it possible to extract oil that
meets GOST standards from sludge, and to avoid losses in
storage of finished product.

Date:

2013

Modernization of equipment at Fats Plant (EZhK)

344.5

Measures: set up fifth section of mayonnaise division; acquire
equipment to expand capacity of margarine division, Waldner
universal line to package mayonnaise into tubs and pails, new
mayonnaise production unit.

Duration:

Result: expansion of mayonnaise and margarine production
capacity, switch to more modern packaging.

Cost:

million roubles
2009–2014
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Development of consumer brands
ROS AGRO Group sees the B2C market as a promising
direction in which to grow its business, so the company
plans to expand its line of brands and promote them.

Investment projects
Purchase of TM Mechta Khozyaiki
Cost:

212.1 million roubles
Date:

2013

Main goal: become fourth largest company on the Russian
sauce market by building a national distribution system
and expanding production of products under the Mechta
Khozyaiki brand; set up production of prepared sauces,
ketchup, mustard, spreads and bottled oil in addition to
mayonnaise.
Result: Mechta Khozyaiki mayonnaise has 1% market share;
production of bottled oil under Mechta Khozyaiki brand
begins in 2014, and production of spreads, prepared sauces
and mustard starts in 2014; the company plans to launch
Mechta Khozyaiki ketchups in 2016.

Development of national distribution for
Mechta Khozyaiki in Russia
Cost:

30.3 million roubles
Start date:

April 2014

Main goal: develop Mechta Khozyaiki into a national brand.
Result: exclusive sales representative (ESR) project
launched in April 2014; average monthly sales per ESR reach
1,373 kg of Mechta Khozyaiki mayonnaise and 2,074 kg for
whole product line; actual turnover of Mechta Khozyaiki
mayonnaise per point of sale reaches 15.1 kg (target is
22.8 kg).

Promotion of sugar division brands Russkii Sakhar,
Chaikofsky, Mon Cafe' and Brauni
Cost:

36 million roubles

Main goal: expand presence in all segments of sugar cube
and packaged sugar market.
Result: ROS AGRO Group is the leader on the Russian
sugar market in the B2C segment, with a 15%* share of the
packaged sugar and sugar cube market by volume; Russkii
Sakhar and Chaikofsky have the highest brand loyalty
rating**.

* Source: Nielsen, retail audit conducted in 16 Russian cities in December 2014
** Source: Comcon Synovate, monitoring of sugar brand health conducted for ROS AGRO Group in December 2014
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Investment projects to develop agribusiness operations
in Primorsky Krai
ROS AGRO Group began implementing large-scale

The Primorsky Krai market has strong potential, since

investment projects in 2014 intended to create a major

about 50% of the products currently sold in the region are

agribusiness cluster in Primorsky Krai, in the Russian Far

imported. With the decline of imports, the supply of pork

East.

is particularly tight. Primorsky Krai is also well situated

The company will operate in the areas of crop farming,

geographically, on the border with China, one of the biggest

livestock farming and aquaculture. The first phase will

food markets in the world.

involve the implementation of projects in livestock and crop
farming.

Development of crop and livestock farming
Project schedule:

Target markets:

Open pig farm in

domestic market (large cuts or consumer processed

2017.

Start commercial production in
Reach design capacity in

2019.

2018.

products), Japan, South Korea and China.

Plans:

Completed:

• Acquire more than 100,000 ha of arable land;

• Contracts signed for acquisition of 26,500 ha of land in

• Grow soybean and corn;
• Build pig farms with combined capacity to produce over
50,000 tonnes in slaughter weight; build slaughterhouse
and compound feed plant.

Mikhailovsky district of Primorsky Krai;
• Design of facilities begun;
• Primorsky Bacon project included in government project
financing programme.

Development of aquaculture
Plans:

Target markets:

Farm scallops, sea cucumber, kelp and mussels in

domestic market, China, Korea and Japan.

the Olginsky and Lazovsky districts of Primorsky Krai.
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OF SUGAR
CUBE MARKET
(43%)

№

2

OF RUSSIAN
SUGAR MARKET
(15%)

№

Market overview
Sugar has traditionally been ROS AGRO Group’s core business.
The company is the second largest sugar producer in Russia,
with a market share of 15% *.
Largest Russian sugar producers

The Russian sugar market is fairly stable, with annual

in 2014*, ( %)

demand in the range of 5.3 million-5.4 million tonnes,
or about 38 kg per capita, which is 15% higher than the
European Union average.
Domestic demand is met by production of sugar from

2014

22%

Prodimex

domestic sugar beet and imported raw cane sugar, as well as

15%

ROS AGRO

small amounts of imported white sugar.

13%

Dominant

The distinctive feature of the Russian market is that virtually

9%

Sucden

7%

Razgulay

34%

Other

all sugar is produced from sugar beet. Beet sugar made up
4.4 million tonnes or 86% of the 5.1 million tonnes of sugar
produced in Russia in 2014.
The low share of sugar produced from imported raw cane
sugar is due to a government policy that is aimed at
protecting and developing the beet sugar industry. High
import duties on cane sugar make it less profitable to process
than sugar beet.

Production of beet and cane sugar in Russia*, mln tonnes

2.4
0.5
2.6

2.9

2.4

0.5

0.7

1.8

3.1

2.0
Beet sugar

2.5

2005

3.2

3.2

3.5

2006

2007

2008

* Source: Soyuzrossakhar, January 2015
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2009

4.7

4.9

2011

2012

4.4

4.4

2013

2014

2.7

2010

Cane sugar
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Beet sugar
produced
(–0,8%)

Cane sugar
produced
(+101,1%)

Revenue
(+32.4%)

‘000 tonnes

‘000 tonnes

billion roubles

497.8 218.8 22.5

EBITDA
(+179.6%)

4.8

billion roubles

The small amount of white sugar imports is also due to high

After a period of low prices in 2012-2013, sugar prices

import duties. Russia imported 284,800 tonnes of white

in 2014 rebounded to 2011 levels due to an increase

sugar in 2014, according to data from the Federal Customs

in the production costs of sugar beet and sugar, a decrease

Service. The main supplier of this sugar was Belarus

in sugar beet production after a record harvest in 2013 and

(Belarusian Sugar Company).

the depreciation of the national currency.

Assets
The Group’s sugar business includes six sugar refineries

The plants had combined capacity to process

located in the Tambov and Belgorod regions, conveniently

34,600 tonnes of sugar beet per day in 2014, including:

situated within a 60-km radius of the sugar beet farms of the

•• 15,600 tonnes per day at plants in Belgorod Region;

Group’s agriculture division.

•• 19,000 tonnes per day at plants in Tambov Region.

Belgorod
Region

Tambov
Region
Belgorod

Nikiforovsky

Tambov
Chernyansky
Znamensky

Regional center
Sugar plant

Nika

Land bank

Valuikisakhar

30 km radius
60 km radius

Zherdevsky
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In addition to sugar beet, the Group’s plants also refine

In 2015, the company plans to implement the

imported raw cane sugar.

following projects:

ROS AGRO Group is continually modernizing its sugar

•• Build a molasses desugarization line at the Znamensky

production facilities. The main goal of these efforts at the
Belgorod plants is to reduce costs and meet environmental

plant
•• Increase sugar beet processing capacity to 6,500 tonnes

standards, while the main goal at the plants in Tambov Region

per day at the Znamensky plant (in the second phase of

is to expand sugar beet processing capacity.

this project, capacity will be expanded to 8,000 tonnes in

In 2014, the Group carried out projects to expand the capacity

2016)

of the Zherdevsky plant to 6,000 tonnes per day and that of
the Chernyansky plant to 5,500 tonnes, and installed a new
sugar dryer at the Znamensky plant.
Also in the course of 2014, the Group carried out the first
phase of an overhaul of heating systems at the Chernyansky,

•• Install a pressing line at the Znamensky plant with annual
capacity of 12,000 tonnes
•• Build pulp drying facilities at the Chernyansky,
Znamensky and Nikiforovsky plants
•• Carry out the second phase of an overhaul of heating

Nikiforovsky and Nika sugar plants, which has reduced gas

systems at the Chernyansky, Nikiforovsky and Nika

consumption.

plants, which will further reduce gas consumption.

Results in 2014
The Group’s gross revenue in the sugar segment grew by
32.4% to 22.5 billion roubles in 2014 from 17.0 billion roubles
a year earlier. Adjusted EBITDA soared 180% to 4.8 billion
roubles from 1.7 billion roubles in 2013.
The Group’s refineries produced 497,800 tonnes of beet sugar
in 2014. This was almost unchanged from 2013, but the sugar
yield jumped by 25% to 15.3%, which positively impacted

34.2%

+

GROWTH OF GROSS REVENUE
IN THE SUGAR SEGMENT

production costs.
The Group doubled production of cane sugar to 218,800 tonnes
in 2014, becoming the biggest importer and refiner of raw cane

ROS AGRO Group sugar production,

sugar. The company’s plants accounted for 33% of the total

‘000 tonnes

amount of cane sugar produced in Russia in 2014, compared to
23% in 2013.
The company sold 752,300 tonnes of sugar in 2014,

From raw cane sugar

15.2% more than a year earlier, including 534,600 tonnes of

1,127

beet sugar. Sales of B2C products totaled 318,000 tonnes.
The average factory gate price of sugar produced by the
Group’s plants rose by 15.4% year-on-year to 28,400 roubles
per tonne in 2014.

From sugar beet
Under tolling agreements

37

463
756
216

62

614
627

547

10

498

502

478
57

2010
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Brands

Chaikofsky

Mon Cafe

Extra grade sugar:
white sugar cubes
white crystals

Extra grade sugar:
white shaped sugar cubes

Russkii Sakhar
white sugar cubes
white sugar crystals

The company’s product portfolio is represented on the
market by four brands in different price categories: Russkii

Brands

Sakhar, Chaikofsky, Mon Café and Brauni. The product

Russkii Sakhar

line is represented in the sugar cube and packaged sugar
segments in all of the most popular package sizes and fully
meets consumer needs. The Group is continually working on

Brauni
brown cane cubes
brown granulated
cane sugar

Spontaneous
brand
recognition

Brand
recognition
with prompt

Purchased at
some time

27

87

74

Chaikofsky

22

46

28

Competitor 1

10

39

20

Competitor 2

10

37

19

bringing new products to market in the sugar category and

Russkii Sakhar and Chaikofsky also have the highest brand

plans to soon begin production of single-portion sugar sticks

loyalty ratings – Russian consumers choose Russkii Sakhar

under the Chaikofsky brand.

and Chaikofsky most often.

ROS AGRO Group is the undisputed leader on the Russian

The Group’s strategy calls for further aggressive promotion

sugar market in the B2C segment, with a 15% share of the

of the company’s sugar brands and increasing the company’s

packaged sugar and sugar cube market by volume, according

presence in all segments of the sugar cube and packaged

to a Nielsen retail audit*. The market share of the Group’s

sugar market.

nearest competitor is just 2%.
In the sugar cube segment, the Group’s brands have a market
share of 43% by volume, up by 2 percentage points from a year
earlier, while the share of the company’s nearest competitor
in this segment was 9%.
ROS AGRO’s brands are very popular among consumers.
Surveys conducted by Comcon Synovate in NovemberDecember 2014 showed that the Russkii Sakhar and
Chaikofsky brands have the highest consumer ratings**,
far ahead of their nearest competitors:

*

Source: Nielsen, retail audit conducted in 16 Russian cities in December 2014

** Source: Comcon Synovate, monitoring of sugar brand health conducted for ROS AGRO Group in December 2014
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COMMERCIAL PORK
PRODUCTION
(6,3%)

2

№

Market overview
Economic Measures to Ensure the Security of the Russian

ROS AGRO Group has been one of the top five companies on

Federation

the Russian pork market since 2010. The company’s aggressive expansion of production capacity enabled the Group to

•• The depreciation of the national currency

become the country’s second largest pork producer in 2014,

•• The loss of imports from European Union countries, the
main suppliers of pork to Russia, as well as from the U.S.

as its market share grew to 6.3% from 4.5%.

and Canada reduced overall imports by 57% to 409,000
The key events that had an impact on the Russian pork

tonnes in 2014 from 973,000 tonnes in 2013. Combined

market in 2014 were:

imports from the EU, the U.S. and Canada fell to just

•• The Federal Veterinary and Phyto-Sanitary Oversight

130,000 tonnes of pork and pork products from 350,000
tonnes a year earlier.

Service’s (Rosselkhoznadzor) imposition of a ban on
imports of live pigs and pork from Europe in January

The resulting shortfall of 220,000 tonnes led to an increase

due to outbreaks of African swine fever in Poland and

in prices for live pigs. Prices in the course of the year

Lithuania

peaked at 125 roubles per kg (including VAT). At the end

•• The ban on imports of pork from the United States and

of the year, the depreciation of the national currency

Canada imposed in August by the Russian president’s

enabled prices to firm up at a level above 100 roubles per kg

decree On the Administration of Certain Special

(including VAT).

Largest Russian pork producers,* (%)
13.7
12.7
11.4

7.8
6.3
4.5

5.4 5.5

6.1 6.1

3.4 3.2

5.7 5.6 5.7 5.6
3.3

2.5 2.6

3.1

3.2 3.0

3.9
2.3

2.8

2.6

1.9 1.6

2011
2012
2013
2014

Miratorg

ROS AGRO

Cherkizovo

Agro-Belogorie Agrarnaya Gruppa Kopitaniya

* Source: National Pig Producers Union, “Rating of Largest Pork Producers in Russia in 2014,” January 2015
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Pork produced
in live weight
(+38.0%)

Compound feed
produced
(+57.4%)

186.8 565.1

‘000 tonnes

‘000 tonnes

Revenue
(+139.2%)

EBITDA
(+411.5%)

17.8

8.8

bln roubles

bln roubles

With the drop in imports and growth of prices, major

As a result of these changes, the share of pork produced by

Russian pork producers performed better in 2014 than they

the 20 top producers in Russia grew from 54.2% to 59.6% in

did in the previous year, when the industry endured the

2014, according to the National Pork Producers Union.

consequences of joining the WTO. Production of pork by

Overall pork production in Russia by all producers grew by

agricultural enterprises grew by 248,000 tonnes or 12.5% to

7.3% to 3.022 thousand tonnes in 2014.

2.237 thousand tonnes in 2014.

The growth is expected to continue in 2015, with pork pro-

On the other hand, private farms and household plots contin-

duction forecast to increase by about 100,000 tonnes in live

ued to reduce production. The conditions of WTO accession

weight.

and higher cost of borrowing are gradually pushing small
and inefficient companies out of the market.

Russian pork imports by type of product (not including

Pork production in Russia

trade with Customs Union countries),*

by all producers,***

‘000 tonnes

‘000 tonnes

Frozen pork

Subproducts

Chilled pork

Speck

Live pigs**

Agricultural organizations
Private farms
Household holdings

44

24

1,133

36

1,154

268

277

178

173
26

619

643

10

1,197
973
263

152
35

2,331
1 034

293

706

30

99
580

69

409
0,1

1,228

2014

2010

2,428
1 003

70
1,355

2,560
904

62
1,594

2,816
776

52
1,989

3,022
737

48
2,237

40
14 354
2

2010

2011

2012

2013

2011

2012

2013

2014

* Emeat agency, “Russian Pork Market in January-December 2014,” January 2015; forecast for 2014 based on Emeat data for January-November 2014.
** In slaughter weight equivalent
*** Source: Rosstat, “Production of Staple Livestock Farming Products in the Russian Federation”; forecast for 2014 – Group meat business analysis.
// 37

I      MANAGEMENT REPORT     I

CONTENTS

Assets
The Group’s meat business is comprised of two commercial

farming and breeding complexes and their own compound

pork companies with combined capacity to produce 198,000

feed plants.

tonnes per year. The companies are located in the Tambov

The location of the facilities on land controlled by the Group

and Belgorod regions, close to elevators owned by the

makes it possible to ensure biosecurity, keep animals healthy

Group, on our own agricultural land. Both are state-of-the-

and produce high quality meat.

art facilities that operate to international standards and use
the latest advancements of science and technology in pig
farming and feed production. Both operations include pig

Belgorod Bacon

Tambov Bacon

The production facilities are located in the

The production facilities are located in the Zherdevsky,

Shebekinsky and Volokonovsky districts of Belgorod

Znamensky and Sampursky districts of Tambov Region

Region and include:

and include:

•• Six commercial pig farms for 4,800 sows each

•• Seven commercial pig farms for 4,800 sows each

•• One breeding facility for 2,400 sows

•• Two breeding facilities

•• Growing and finishing division

•• Compound feed plant with capacity of 50 tonnes/hour

•• Boar house

•• Grain storage for 120,000 tonnes

•• Compound feed plant with capacity of 40 tonnes/hour

•• Slaughterhouse with capacity of 1.95 million head per
year, scheduled to open in April 2015

The sow population is 36,000, and the overall herd exceeds
400,000 head.

Tambov Bacon has capacity to produce 115,000 tonnes of pork

Belgorod Bacon has capacity to produce 90,000 tonnes

per year.

of pork per year.

All production facilities part of the construction of Tambov
Bacon’s farming complexes and the compound feed plant
were put into operation in 2014, increasing pork production
to 107,000 tonnes or 93% of design capacity.

Belgorod Bacon
capacity

Overall
herd

Tambov Bacon
capacity

90.0

400

115.0

thousand tonnes of pork
per year

// 38

thousand head

thousand tonnes of pork
per year

I      ROS AGRO PLC  Annual report 2014      I

205

Belgorod Region

thousand
tonnes

COMBINED CAPACITY OF BELGOROD
BACON AND TAMBOV BACON

Belgorod

Tambov Region

Tambov

Regional center
Pig farm
Elevator
Feed plant
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Results in 2014
The Group’s meat business increased sales by almost 150%

The Group increased pork production by 38.0% year-on-year

to 17.8 billion roubles in 2014 from 7.4 billion roubles in

to 186,800 tonnes in 2014.

2013. EBITDA more than quadrupled to 8.8 billion roubles

Compound feed production jumped 57.4% to 565,100 tonnes.

from 1.7 billion roubles in the previous year.

ROS AGRO Group pork production*,

ROS AGRO Group compound feed production*,

‘000 tonnes

‘000 tonnes

Производство комбикормов* (тыс. тонн)

565

186.8
135.4

62.4

63.5

2010

2011

359

72.6

175

234

246

2011

2012

38.9
12.7

2008

2009

2012

2013

2014

2010

2014

The Group’s pork sales grew by 58% to 182,000 tonnes in

per tonne in 2014 from 64,910 tonnes in 2013, and the price

2014.

of half bulk rose by 21.2% to 123,980 roubles per tonne from

All of the Group’s pork was sold in Russia to businesses

102,300 roubles.

and organizations in 29 regions. Following the launch of

Despite the growth of prices for feed ingredients, veterinary

the rendering plant and slaughterhouse at the beginning of

drugs and energy resources compared to 2013, the Group

2015, the Group plans to significantly expand its markets

managed to reduce production costs by about 2%. Thanks

geographically.

to its own agriculture division, the Group is protected from

The decline in the supply of meat on the domestic market in

unfavorable price changes for a substantial portion of raw

2014 pushed up prices. The Group’s average annual selling

materials. ROS AGRO Group’s low production costs set the

price for pork in live weight jumped 49.3% to 96,920 roubles

stage for one of the highest profit margins in the industry.

Anticipated geography of markets for ROS AGRO Group finished products

Type of finished product

Markets

Live pork, half bulk, large cuts

European Russia

Chilled processed products

Moscow and St. Petersburg**

Subproducts

Russia, China, Hong Kong, Thailand, Vietnam

White offal, meat and bone meal, industrial fat

Russia

*** Source: ROS AGRO Group
*** The largest markets with high demand for chilled processed products
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Plans for 2015
ROS AGRO Group plans to produce about 200,000 tonnes of pork
in live weight in 2015.
Following the launch of the slaughterhouse, the company
intends to bring production of meat products in the B2C segment
up to design capacity as quickly as possible.
Demand is expected to continue to exceed supply on

Management, control and reduction of production costs

the domestic pork market in 2015, setting the stage

using the tools of the 5S workplace organization method and

for high prices and the successful sale of the meat

lean manufacturing, as well as the continual improvement

division’s whole line of finished products within

process, will enable the Group to achieve the targeted level

Russia. Additional demand will be driven by:

of efficiency (25.5 head per sow per year and 3.0 tonnes of

•• Gradual reduction of production by inefficient agricultural

pork per sow per year) and increase its margin.

producers, which the National Pork Producers Union
estimates currently account for up to 40% of pork
production
•• Expansion of product line; with the launch of the
slaughterhouse, the company will enter the new markets of
large cuts, chilled processed products, meat and bone meal
and industrial fat
•• Expansion of markets geographically and entry into the
market of the Ural Federal District with products with long
shelf life (frozen pork, meat and bone meal, subproducts,
etc.)
•• Creation of a brand for chilled processed products to ensure
long-term demand for products in the B2C segment
•• Introduction and certification of a food safety management
system that meets international standards
•• Maintaining high sanitary conditions (IGMP=90%); using
packaging methods and equipment that ensure the required

ROS AGRO Group
plans to produce

200

thousand tonnes of pork
in live weight

product shelf life (OPF KK: 14, 21 days; OPF DF: 14, 18, 21
days; OPF MAP: 10, 14 days; ground meat МАР: 10 days)
•• Development and introduction of a complaint management
system to provide customer feedback on issues concerning
product quality and ensure prompt response to address
deficiencies
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IN BELGOROD REGION THE GROUP
CONTROLS 256.8 THOUSAND HA
OF ARABLE LAND, IN TAMBOV
REGION – 131.5 THOUSAND HA.

Land area
(+6.9%)

494.7
thousand ha

Group position in segment
ROS AGRO Group is one of Russia’s largest
agricultural companies.
Most of the Group’s farmland is located in the Belgorod

feed at the pig farms of the meet division. Having our own

and Tambov regions, in close proximity to the company’s

elevators enables us to process and store grain throughout

processing facilities, which include sugar refineries,

the year. Cultivated crops include sugar beet, wheat, barley,

compound feed plants and elevators. All of the sugar beet

peas, soybean, sunflower and corn, among others.

grown by the Group is shipped to the company’s refineries,
and a portion of the grain is used in production of compound

Belgorod Region

Tambov Region

Since Belgorod is a center for meat production, crop farming in

Unlike in Belgorod, agriculture in Tambov Region is dominated

the region is geared primarily toward meeting the feed needs

by crop farming, the development of which is favoured by fertile

of the livestock farming sector. However, demand exceeds the

Black Earth soil. The gross grain harvest in the region has been

region’s own production so there is a constant shortage of grain

steadily high in recent years, amounting to at least 2.0 million

and oilseed crops in the region and prices for these products are

tonnes, which gives Tambov Region a grain surplus.

higher than in Tambov Region.

The Group’s market share in this region is smaller than in

The Group has a strong market position in the Belgorod

Belgorod Region, and does not exceed 10% of total production of

Region, accounting for 25% of wheat production, 21% of barley

each crop.

production, 44% of pea production and 14% of sunflower seed

The Group’s local sales are growing annually on the back of the

production.

development of livestock farming in the region, but the overall

There is generally strong demand for all crops that the Group

surplus and underdeveloped crop processing infrastructure mean

grows in Belgorod Region. The main customers are agribusiness

that the company also sells its products in other regions of the

groups that produce pork and poultry.

country or to exporters.

Given the existing demand, the Group’s products are primarily
sold on the local market of Belgorod Region.

*** Источник: данные Компании.
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Crop harvest
(–13.2%)

Revenue
(+25.6%)

EBITDA
(+85.3%)

3.197

10.7

4.4

mln tonnes

bln roubles

bln roubles

Key assets
The key assets of ROS AGRO Group’s agriculture division

Cultivated land area in Tambov Region

are located in the Belgorod and Tambov regions and include

in 2014*, ( %)

farming companies with a combined 468,200 ha of land, four
elevators with capacity to store 401,800 tonnes of grain and
300,000 tonnes of outdoor storage in sleeves, as well as one
dairy farm.

19%

Winter wheat

20%

Barley

3%

In 2014, as part of the creation of an agribusiness operation
in the Russian Far East, the Group acquired 26,500 ha
of land in the Mikhailovsky district of Primorsky Krai,
including 23,800 ha of arable land, 1,700 ha of fallow land
and 1,000 ha of hayfields, pasture and so on.

Peas

20%

Sugar beet

8%

Sunflower

5%

Soybean

5%

Corn

20%

Fallow

0.2%

Other

Cultivated land area in Belgorod Region
in 2014*, ( %)

ROS AGRO Group land area*, ‘000 ha

424

452

463

495

380

22%

Winter wheat

23%

Barley

6%

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Peas

14%

Sugar beet

10%

Sunflower

11%

Soybean

2%

Corn

6%

Fallow

6%

Other

*** Source: ROS AGRO Group
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Structure of Group land bank in Tambov Region
in 2014,* (%)
The Group’s farmland is located primarily in the CentralBlack Earth region of Russia, which has some of the most

Tambov
Region

13%

Short-term
lease

13%

Owned

74%

Long-term
lease

fertile land in the world. The soil is rich in humus (the main
organic component of soil with nutrients), ensuring high
crop yields. The soil in Tambov Region, for example, has
a humus content of 8%.
The Group controls 256,800 ha of arable land in Belgorod
Region and 131,500 ha in Tambov Region. The combined
area of arable land in these regions increased by 18,508 ha
in 2014, as the Group acquired control of 25,933 ha while
terminating two leases for 7,485 ha.
The cultivated land in the Mikhailovsky district of Primorsky

Structure of Group land bank in Belgorod Region

Krai is planted with 20,400 ha of soybean and 3,400 ha of

in 2014,* (%)

corn. The Group plans to begin tilling its 1,700 ha of fallow
land in this region in 2016.

Belgorod
Region

13%

Long-term
lease

49%

Owned

38%

Short-term
lease

Arable land

412

Structure of Group land bank
in Primorsky Krai in 2014,* (%)

Primorsky
Krai

*** Source: ROS AGRO Group
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thousand ha
67%

Owned

33%

Long-term
lease
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Results in 2014
The imposition of sanctions against Russia in 2014 did not

The Group also harvested 2.318 million tonnes of sugar beet

have a noticeable impact on the business of the Group’s

and 70,000 tonnes of sunflower seeds.

agriculture division, since all the main resources for

The Group achieved yields of 4.7 tonnes/ha for winter

production were acquired in the first half of the year.

wheat, 3.5 tonnes/ha for barley, 1.9 tonnes/ha for sunflow-

The agriculture division increased sales by 25.6% to

er and 3.6 tonnes/ha for corn. With a sugar beet yield of

10.7 billion roubles in 2014. EBITDA grew by 85.3% to

37.1 tonnes/ha, the sugar yield was 7.2 tonnes/ha, up by 11%

4.4 billion roubles.

from 2013.

The Group harvested 718,000 tonnes of grain in 2014,
including 380,000 tonnes of winter wheat, 291,000 tonnes
of barley and 47,000 tonnes of corn.

Crop harvest,* ‘000 tonnes

3,684
3,072

3,273

3,197
Crop harvest of
ROS AGRO Group
in 2014 amounted to

3,197

1,342

thousand tonnes
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

The Group increased sales of barley, peas and sunflower

The agriculture division is investing in the expansion and

seeds in 2014, while sales of other crops fell.

maintenance of its fleet of machinery and elevators, and

The most profitable crop in the reporting period was

construction of seed facilities in order to ensure efficient and

sunflower, which saw strong demand and a substantial

timely land cultivation as the land bank grows. This, in turn,

increase in prices on the domestic market. The Group’s

is reducing logistical costs and improving product quality.

average selling price for sunflower seeds rose from
9,800 roubles per tonne to 15,800 roubles per tonne over
the year.
Margins were also high on wheat, for which demand remains
strong on the domestic market and among exporters, as well
as on sugar beet thanks to the increase in yield.
The lowest margins in 2014 were on soybean, corn and peas.

*** Source: ROS AGRO Group
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The agriculture division invested 1.4 billion roubles
and 0.8 billion roubles respectively in development
and maintenance in 2014. The following projects were
carried out:
•• 14 projects to expand land bank in Tambov Region;

Allocated for
business
development

control acquired over 25,933 ha of arable land
•• Deployment of irrigation system, marking the start of

1.4

a major land improvement programme in Tambov Region
•• Introduction of grain storage in polyethylene sleeves,
increasing our grain storage capacity in Tambov Region

bln rub

by 80,000 tonnes
•• Rollout of SAP ERP enterprise resource planning software;

Allocated for
business
maintenance

integration testing begun. This is the first project on such
a scale in the world and the first in Russia’s agriculture

0.8

sector.
•• Construction, reconstruction and repair of product storage
facilities, increasing storage capacity by 18,000 tonnes

bln rub

The company also upgraded its fleet of farm machinery and
specialized equipment.

Gross yield and crop harvest in 2014
Yield, t/ha

Winter wheat
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Gross harvest, ‘000 t
Group total

Belgorod Region

Tambov Region

Group total

Belgorod Region

Tambov Region

4.7

5.0

3.9

381

283

98
83

Barley

3.5

3.6

3.2

291

209

Peas

1.4

1.5

1.1

27

22

5

Corn

3.6

4.0

3.2

47

24

23

Sugar beet

37.1

38.5

35.0

2,318

1,395

923

Sunflower

1.9

1.9

1.9

70

49

21

Soybean

0.5

0.5

0.5

18

15

3

Other

2.7

2.7

5.0

45

44

1
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Plans for 2015
The Group will continue to develop its agriculture business
in 2015, despite the difficult economic situation in Russia.
The company sees a significant increase in currency
exchange rates as the main risk. The business plan for 2015
estimates the impact of the exchange rate as a cost increase
of 1.2 billion roubles, which amounts to 17% of costs in
2014.

The Group is planning the following projects in its
agriculture division:

•• Expand land bank in Tambov Region by 30,000 ha

•• Launch pilot implementation of SAP ERP system in

•• Start construction and reconstruction of strategic

following areas:

production and social infrastructure, including:

–– Production (crop farming)

–– Fuelling stations in Tambov Region

–– Processing and storage

–– Reconstruction of machinery and tractor stations

–– Sales
–– Supply chain

in Tambov and Belgorod regions
–– Housing for company employees

–– Farmland management

•• Project to irrigate 1,423 ha of farmland in Tambov Region

–– Equipment maintenance and repair

•• Expand storage capacity for our own products by 60,000

–– Legal support

tonnes

–– Finance
–– Management accounting
–– Production logistics

In Tambov region,
land bank increased by

30

thousand ha

Implementation of a project
to irrigate farmland
in Tambov Region of

1,423

ha
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Oil and fats business
Operating
results
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MARGARINE
MARKET
(49%)

1

MAYONNAISE
MARKET
(9%)

№

5

№

The Group’s oil and fats business includes two independent divisions: production of sauces and fats at the Fats Plant (EZhK)
and production of vegetable oil at the SAPP oil extraction plant. The Group is a leader in both market segments, and there is
strong demand for the oil and fats division’s products on both the Russian and foreign markets.

Sauces and fats
Group position in segment
ROS AGRO Group is Russia’s largest producer of margarine

Sauces are currently the fastest growing segment of the

for the consumer market and fifth largest producer of

Russian oil and fats market, driven by strong consumer

mayonnaise, according to the Oils and Fats Union of Russia.

demand. Russia is one of the top ten countries in the world

The company significantly strengthened its position on the

by per capita sauce consumption. However, the structure

margarine market in 2014, increasing its market share by

of the Russian market differs considerably from the global

12 percentage points to 49% from 37%. The Group’s share of

market. The most popular sauce product in Russia is

the Russian mayonnaise market remained firm at 9%.

mayonnaise.

Largest mayonnaise producers in Russia

Largest margarine producers in Russia

in 2014,* ( %)

in 2014,* ( %)

2014

*
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23%

Essen

49%

ROS AGRO

20%

EFKO

18%

22%

NMZhK

Solnechnye
Produkty

16%

Solnechnye
Produkty

18%

NMZhK

10%

Yevdakovsky
MZhK

9%

ROS AGRO

4%

Unilever

4%

Irkutsky MZhK

2%

Other

Research only includes companies of Oils and Fats Union of Russia

2014

5%

Other
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Margarine
produced
(+14.9%)

Mayonnaise
produced
(+3.0%)

Revenue
EZhK
(+22.3%)

EBITDA
EZhK
(+24.9%)

thousand tonnes

thousand tonnes

bln roubles

bln roubles

47.1

57.7

6.8

0.50

Russia’s mayonnaise market is one of the largest in

countries in Western and Eastern Europe. Furthermore,

the world and is growing annually. Per capita mayonnaise

margarine consumption has been declining in recent years.

consumption is about 4.4 kg per year, which is higher

The situation on the domestic market has prompted the

than in other countries. Surveys show that 90% of Russian

Group to aggressively promote its margarine on Central

households use mayonnaise on a regular basis.

Asian markets, where there is growing demand for this

Ketchup, the popularity of which has grown dramatically in

product. The company has near-term plans to enter the

the past decade, is second, with per capita consumption of

markets of northern China and Afghanistan.

about 1 kg per year.
Demand is weakest for prepared sauces, the main markets
for which are Moscow, St. Petersburg and other large cities.
Margarine consumption in Russia, meanwhile, is lower
than the global average and particularly lags behind

Key assets
The Group produces its sauces and fats at the Fats Plant

a Waldner universal line to package mayonnaise into tubs

in Yekaterinburg (EZhK), one of the five largest Russian

and pails.

enterprises in the industry and a leader on the CIS market.

The Group ensures high product quality by using good

EZhK has capacity to produce 57,900 tonnes of margarine

quality natural ingredients, the latest technology and state-

and 112,000 tonnes of mayonnaise per year.

of-the-art, automated equipment. In order to further improve

The company has a range of more than 50 products,

product quality and become more competitive, EZhK is

including mayonnaises, margarines, sunflower oil, ketchup,

implementing a range of measures to introduce the ISO

mustards, culinary and confectionary fats and soap.

22000 and PAS 220 international standards for food safety

The expanding geography of sales and acquisition of

management systems.

the Mechta Khozyaiki brand have led to the expansion
of production and packaging facilities. In recent years,
the company has set up a fifth section in the mayonnaise
division, and acquired equipment to expand the capacity of
the margarine division, new mayonnaise production unit and
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Results in 2014
EZhK increased sales by 22.3% year-on-year to 6.8 billion

up and mustard, compared to respectively 32,500 tonnes,

roubles in 2014, and its EBITDA grew by 24.9%

10,700 tonnes and 600 tonnes in 2013.

to 0.50 billion roubles from 0.40 billion roubles.

Prices for EZhK’s products in 2014 rose by 3.9% to 59,000

EZhK increased production by 7.5% year-on-year

roubles per tonne for mayonnaise (including sauces) and

to 117,900 tonnes in 2014, including 57,700 tonnes

7.3% to 54,500 roubles per tonne for margarine (including

of mayonnaise and prepared sauces and 47,100 tonnes

spreads).

of margarine and spreads, respectively 3.0% and 14.9% more
than in 2013.
The plant had capacity to produce 62,700 tonnes
of mayonnaise and 47,100 tonnes of margarine in 2014.
Sales totaled 105,100 tonnes in 2014 (not including packaged oil), including 57,700 tonnes of mayonnaise and
47,400 tonnes of margarine. The plant’s main markets were
Eastern Russia (Ural Federal District and adjoining regions
of Siberia and the Volga region) and in Central Asia, where
the company is a market leader in Kazakhstan, Uzbekistan,
Kyrgyzstan and Tajikistan. Schedroe Leto, for example,
is the number one oil and fats brand in Uzbekistan.
The company exported 77% of its margarine and spreads
in 2014, and also exported a large share of its mayonnaise,
ketchup and mustard.
The company exported 36,500 tonnes of margarine in 2014,

In 2014,
EZhK increased sales to

6.8

bln rub

10,400 tonnes of mayonnaise and 700 tonnes of ketch-

Margarine and mayonnaise production,* ‘000 tonnes

Margarine & spreads
57

32

2010

2011

***Source: ROS AGRO Group
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Mayonnaise & prepared sauces

57

35

EZhK’s main export markets, (%)

56

55
36

2012

41

2013

58
47

2014

36.9%

Uzbekistan

22.1%

Kazakhstan

11.8%

Turkmenistan

9.4%

Tajikistan

8.3%

Kyrgyzstan

4.6%

Azerbaijan

3.3%

Moldova

3.7%

Other
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Brands

Assortment:
Mayonnaise
Prepared sauces
Spreads
Mustard
Vegetable oil

Assortment:
Ketchup
Margarine
Mustard

Assortment:
Mayonnaise

Assortment:
Mayonnaise
Margarine
Spreads
Ketchup

Plans for 2015
The economic downturn in Russia and declining consumer

mayonnaise, particularly in the mid-priced category, and

purchasing power is expected to reduce demand for dairy

a slowdown in the decline of margarine sales.

butter and other higher priced foods as households switch to

These trends could help increase demand for EZhK products.

more affordable alternatives, offering an opportunity for the
growth of markets for spreads, mayonnaise sauces, ketchup
and mustard. There could also be an increase in sales of

EZhK will further develop its business in 2015
by continuing to optimize its product line and will
carry out the following projects:
•• Acquire equipment to refine, deodorize and re-esterify
vegetable oils and fats in order to comply with the
Technical Regulation of the Customs Union on reduction
of trans fats in oil and fats products (cost: 778.87 million
roubles)

•• Acquire margarine packaging line (cost: 221.473 million
roubles)
•• Acquire freon refrigeration systems to replace ammonia
refrigeration systems (cost: 34.00 million roubles)
•• Reduce peroxide value (cost: 14.00 million roubles)
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Vegetable oil
Group position in segment
ROS AGRO Group is Russia’s eighth largest processor of

Most of Russia’s vegetable oil production capacity is located

sunflower seeds, with a market share of 3.9%.

in the Southern and Central regions, and plants with process-

The structure of the Russian vegetable oil market differs

ing capacity of 1,000 to 1,500 tonnes per day account for the

considerably from the global market in that the undisputed

highest share of oilseed processing (33%).

market leader in Russia is sunflower oil, which only ranks

Demand for vegetable oil is met primarily by domestic pro-

fourth on the world market. The second most popular oil in

ducers, whose market share is growing with every year. Palm

Russia, like on the world market, is soybean oil. The most

oil accounts for the largest share of imports.

common vegetable oil in the world is palm oil.

Production of sunflower oil and meal in Russia grew by 30%
year-on-year in 2014 following the expansion of oilseed

Russian sunflower seed processing by company

processing capacity. Russian oil extraction plants produced

in 2014, (%)

3.96 million tonnes of sunflower oil and 3.47 million tonnes
of sunflower seed meal.
12.6%
7.1%

Solnechnye
Produkty

The rouble’s depreciation at the end of 2014 led to a steep
increase in prices for sunflower oil and made exports more

Aston

attractive. Exports of both unrefined and refined sunflower oil

Yug Rusi

surged, peaking in December.

4.7%

EFKO

Russia exported 1.66 million tonnes of sunflower oil and

5.6%

Bunge

1.75 million tonnes of meal in 2014.

3.8%

Kernel

Consumption of unrefined sunflower oil in Russia grew

7.2%

NMZhK

by 16% to 2.38 million tonnes in 2014.

3.9%

ROS AGRO

3.1%

Neﬁs

2.4%

Sigma

25.8%

Other

23.8%

Key assets
The Group’s production facilities in the vegetable oil

(pressed and extracted) and high-protein, granulated

division include the Samaraagroprompererabotka (SAPP)

sunflower seed meal.

oil extraction plant and five elevators with capacity to store

SAPP received an international GMP+2 B Good

193,000 tonnes of sunflower seeds.

Manufacturing Practice certificate in August 2014, becoming

SAPP is located in a region with large sunflower harvests

only the second Russian oil extraction plant to do so.

and, due to the absence of other oil extraction plants, is the

The GMP standard regulates and assesses the parameters

dominant vegetable oil producer in the region. The plant has

of production and lab testing from the seed to the finished

capacity to process 1,210 tonnes of sunflower seeds per day.

product. The certification will expand the possibilities for

The plant’s main products are unrefined sunflower oil

meal exports to European markets.

*** Source: ROS AGRO Group
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Results in 2014
The oil extraction plant significantly improved its

Vegetable oil production,* ‘000 tonnes

performance in 2014, doubling revenue to 9.4 billion roubles
and more than doubling EBITDA to 1.4 billion roubles from

188

0.6 billion roubles in 2013.
The improvement was due to the full utilization of

152

production capacity in 2014, whereas in 2013 the plant was
shut down for several months due to disruptions in feedstock

110

supplies.
The plant, which had processing capacity of 1,154 tonnes of

67

seeds per day in 2014, processed 392,300 tonnes of sunflower
seeds in the year, up from 216,600 tonnes in 2013.
Vegetable oil production surged 71.3% to 188,400 tonnes,
and sales to third parties and other segments jumped 170%

2011

2012

2013

2014

to 199,500 tonnes. The plant increased production of meal
by 61.0% year-on-year to 170,700 tonnes and almost doubled
sales to 239,400 tonnes.
Despite the steep increase in prices for the Group’s sunflower
oil in the fourth quarter (by 27% to 38,700 roubles per
tonne), reflecting the general market trend, the average price
for the year fell 6.3% from 2013 to 29,500 roubles per tonne.
The price for meal rose by 15.4% to 9,000 roubles per tonne
in 2014.

Plans for 2015
The oil extraction plant carried out a project at the beginning

Two other projects will be aimed at reducing the oil

of 2015 to increase its capacity for unhulled sunflower seeds

extraction plant’s electricity costs:

to 1,250 tonnes per day.

•• Replacement of lighting in the hulling and winnowing,

The Group also began working on the designs of a plant to
refine, deodorize and bottle sunflower oil with design capaci-

pressing and extraction divisions with LED lighting
•• Construction of new feeder for power supply

ty of 49,000 tonnes per year.
In order to reduce logistical expenses on oil delivery in 2015,
the company will set up a river logistics point in the town of
Yekaterinovka, Samara Region.

*

Including revenue from EZhK, which is eliminated in a devision. Revenue from sales by third parties and to other divisions amounted
to 8.1 bln rub (+142.4%)
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5. Financial results
Key performance indicators
Sales
(+62%)

Gross
profit
(+172%)

Adjusted
EBITDA
(+166%)

mln rub

mln rub

mln rub

Sales
of sugar
(+32%)

Gross profit
(sugar)
(+103%)

Adjusted EBITDA
(sugar)
(+180%)

59,112 24,082 18,069
22,464 6,190
mln rub

mln rub

4,809

Sales
of meat
(+139%)

Gross profit
(meat)
(+706%)

Adjusted EBITDA
(meat)
(+412%)

mln rub

mln rub

8,829
mln rub

Sales
of agricultural products
(+26%)

Gross profit
(agricultural products)
(+65%)

Adjusted EBITDA
(agricultural products)
(+85%)

mln rub

mln rub

4,375
mln rub

Sales
of oil and fats
(+67%)

Gross profit
(oil and fats)
(+86%)

Adjusted EBITDA
(oil and fats)
(+84%)

mln rub

mln rub

17,751 9,413
10,710 4,994
14,920 4,368
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mln rub

1,882
mln rub
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Key consolidated financial performance indicators
Year ended
in RR million

Variance

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

Sales

59,112

36,490

22,622

62

Gross profit

24,082

8,858

15,224

172

Gross margin, %

41%

24%

16%

18,069

6,784

11,285

31%

19%

12%

20,177

3,202

16,975

530

34%

9%

25%

,

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

Sales, incl.

59,112

36,490

22,622

62

Sugar

22,464

16,963

5,501

32

Meat

17,751

7,421

10,329

139

Agriculture

10,710

8,529

2,181

26

Oil

14,920

8,920

6,001

67

Adjusted EBITDA*
Adjusted EBITDA margin, %
Net profit for the period
Net profit margin %

166

Key financial performance indicators by segment
Year ended
in RR million

Other

Variance

46

117

(72)

(61)

Eliminations

(6,778)

(5,460)

(1,317)

(24)

Gross profit, incl.

24,082

8,858

15,224

172

Sugar

6,190

3,051

3,139

103

Meat

9,413

1,167

8,245

706

Agriculture

4,994

3,034

1,960

65

Oil

4,368

2,352

2,016

86

46

117

(72)

(61)

(928)

(864)

(64)

(7)

18,069

6,784

11,285

166

Sugar

4,809

1,720

3,089

180

Meat

8,829

1,726

7,103

412

Agriculture

4,375

2,361

2,014

85

Other
Eliminations

Adjusted EBITDA*, incl.

Oil

1,882

1,025

857

84

(1,000)

(398)

(603)

(152)

(825)

350

(1,175)

–

Adjusted EBITDA margin, %

31%

19%

12%

Sugar

21%

10%

11%

Meat

50%

23%

26%

Agriculture

41%

28%

13%

Oil

13%

11%

1%

Other
Eliminations

,
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Sugar Segment
Adjusted
EBITDA
(+180%)

4,809
mln rub

Adjusted
EBITDA
margin

21%

Gross
profit
(+103%)

Operating profit
(+553%)

mln rub

mln rub

6,190 3,962

The financial results of the sugar segment for the year 2014 compared to the year 2013
are presented in the table below:

Year ended
in RR million

Sales
Cost of sales
Gains less losses from trading sugar derivatives
Gross profit
Gross profit margin

Distribution and selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other operating income/(expenses), net

31 December 2013

Units

%

22,464

16,963

5,501

32

(16,649)

(14,087)

(2,562)

(18)

375

175

200

114

6,190

3,051

3,139

103

28%

18%

10%

,

(1,587)

(1,443)

(144)

(10)

(723)

(765)

43

6

82

(235)

317

–

3,962

607

3,355

553

Depreciation included in operating profit

929

908

21

2

Other operating income/(expenses), net

(82)

235

(318)

–

–

(30)

30

–

4,809

1,720

3,089

180

21%

10%

11%

,

Operating profit

Reversal of provision for net realisable value of agricultural products
in stocks
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA margin
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Production volume
of sugar
(+17%)

Production volume
of beet sugar
(–1%)

Production volume
of cane sugar
(+101%)

Sugar sales
volume
(+15%)

thousand tonnes

thousand tonnes

thousand tonnes

thousand tonnes

717

498

219

752

Sales in the sugar segment increased as a result of sales

Sugar sales and production volumes and the average sales

volume increase and an increase in sale prices.

prices per kilogram (excl. VAT) were as follows:

Year ended

Variance

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

717

611

106

17

beet sugar

498

502

(4)

(1)

cane sugar

219

109

110

101

Sales volume (in thousand tonnes)

752

653

99

15

Sale price (rubles per kg, excl. VAT)

28.4

24.6

3.8

15

Sugar production volume (in thousand tonnes), incl.

The closure of Rzhevsky Sakharnik in 2013, one of the

An increase in the sale prices in 2014 compared to 2013

Group’s sugar plants in the Belgorod region, and the

together with an increase in sales volume led to an increased

resulting disposal of the related production assets and write-

profitability of the segment.

off of work in progress led to the loss in the amount of RR
236 million, which is included in Other operating expenses,
net in 2013, which was not the case in 2014.
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Meat Segment
Adjusted
EBITDA
(+412%)

8,829
mln rub

Adjusted
EBITDA
margin

50%

Adjusted
EBITDA
Tambov

Adjusted
EBITDA
Belgorod

mln rub

mln rub

4,964 3,865

The financial results of the meat segment for the year 2014 compared to the year 2013
are presented in the table below:

Year ended
in RR million

Sales
Gain on revaluation of biological assets and agricultural produce

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

17,751

7,421

10,329

139

9,346

1,821

7,526

413

(17,684)

(8,075)

(9,609)

(119)

9,413

1,167

8,245

706

53%

16%

37%

,

7,636

601

7,036

1,172

Adjusted gross profit margin

43%

8%

35%

,

Distribution and selling expenses

(55)

(32)

(23)

(72)

(439)

(357)

(82)

(23)

376

186

190

102

332

287

44

15

Operating profit

9,294

964

8,330

864

Depreciation included in operating profit

1,356

1,227

128

10

Other operating income, net

(376)

(186)

(190)

(102)

332

287

44

15

(9,346)

(1,821)

(7,526)

(413)

Revaluation of biological assets attributable to realised biological assets and included in
cost of sales

7,570

1,254

6,316

504

Adjusted EBITDA

8,829

1,726

7,103

412

50%

23%

26%

,

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Gross profit margin
Gross profit excl. effect of biological assets revaluation

General and administrative expenses
Other operating income, net
incl. reimbursement of operating costs (government grants)

Reimbursement of operating costs (government grants)
Gain on revaluation of biological assets and agricultural produceпродукции

Adjusted EBITDA margin
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Gross
profit
(+706%)

Operating
profit
(+864%)

Pork sales volumes
(+58%)

mln rub

mln rub

thousand tonnes

9,413

9,294

Sale
price
(+51%)

182

95.9

rub/kg

An increase in Sales by 139% was driven by a significant

Tambov region after their launch in 2013.

increase both in pork sales volume and pork sale prices. The

Pork sales volumes and the average pork sale prices per

sales volume of pork increased by 58% as a result of the first

kilogram (excl. VAT) were as follows:

full year of operation of new pig breeding facilities in the
Year ended
31 December 2014

Variance

31 December 2013

Units

%

Sales volume (in thousand tonnes)

182

115

67

58

Sale prices (roubles per kg, excl. VAT)

95.9

63.6

32.3

51

The increase in sales prices and volumes also led to a

The breakdown of adjusted EBITDA between Belgorod Meat

significant amount of Gain on revaluation of biological

and Tambov Meat is as follows:

assets (pigs) in 2014 compared to 2013.

Year ended
31 December 2014 года
in RR million

Year ended
31 December 2013 года

Belgorod Meat

Tambov Meat

Belgorod Meat

Tambov Meat

Sales to third parties and other segments

7,768

9,982

4,887

2,535

Adjusted EBITDA

3,865

4,964

1,727

(1)

50%

50%

35%

–

Adjusted EBITDA margin

An increase of income from government grants accompanied

An increase in pork sales prices together with a decrease

by a decline in charitable donations and other social costs

in feed costs led to increased profitability of the meat

resulted in double increase of Other operating income, net

segment.

in 2014 compared to 2013.
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Agriculture division
Adjusted
EBITDA
(+85%)

4,375
mln rub

Adjusted
EBITDA
margin

41%

Gross
profit
(+65%)

Operating
profit
(+177%)

mln rub

mln rub

4,994 3,300

The segment’s area of controlled land now stands at 495 thousand hectares, including 27 thousand hectares in the Far
Eastern region. The financial results of the agricultural segment for the year 2014 compared to the year 2013 are presented below:

Year ended
in RR million

Sales
Gain on revaluation of biological assets and agricultural produce
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Gross profit margin
Gross profit excl. effect of biological assets and agricultural produce revaluation
Adjusted gross profit margin

Distribution and selling expenses

31 December 2013

Units

%

10,710

8,529

2,181

26

2,897

1,669

1,229

74

(8,614)

(7,164)

(1,450)

(20)

4,994

3,034

1,960

65

47%

36%

11%

,

4,883

3,160

1,723

55

46%

37%

9%

,

(1,161)

(1,193)

31

3

General and administrative expenses

(383)

(659)

277

42

Other operating (expenses)/income, net

(150)

11

(161)

–

incl. reimbursement of operating costs (government grants)

216

281

(65)

(23)

3,300

1,193

2,107

177

820

772

48

6

Other operating (expenses)/income, net

150

(11)

161

–

Reimbursement of operating costs (government grants)

216

281

(65)

(23)

(2,897)

(1,669)

(1,229)

(74)

2,791

1,773

1,018

57

(5)

22

(27)

–

4,375

2,361

2,014

85

41%

28%

13%

,

Operating profit

Depreciation included in operating profit

Gain on revaluation of biological assets and agricultural produce
Gain on initial recognition of agricultural produce attributable to realised agricultural
produce
Revaluation of biological assets attributable to realised biological assets and included in
cost of sales
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA margin
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Sales volume of
sugar beet
(-21%)

Sales volume
of crops
(+3%)

Sales volume
of sunflower seeds
(+182%)

thousand tonnes

thousand tonnes

thousand tonnes

2,330

635

Growth
in sales

99

26%

An increase in Sales by 26% in 2014 compared to 2013

wheat and soya beans sales volume and a decrease in barley

resulted from an increase in barley, peas and sunflower seeds

sale prices.

sales volume and sugar beet and grain, except for barley,

Sales volumes by product were as follows:

sale prices, that was partly offset by a decrease in sugar beet,
Year ended
Thousand tonnes

Variance

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

2,330

2,935

(605)

(21)

635

617

17

3

224

208

16

8

99

35

64

182

32

33

(1)

(2)

sugar beet
grain
incl. sold to other segments
sunflower seeds
incl. sold to other segments

Sales volumes of grain include sales of wheat, barley, corn,

The average sale prices per kilogram (excl. VAT) were as

peas and soya beans. All sugar beet is sold to the sugar

follows:

segment.
Year ended
RR per kilogram, excl. VAT

Variance

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

6.4

5.9

0.5

8

wheat
barley

4.9

6.2

(1.3)

(20)

15.8

9.8

6.0

61

peas

9.0

8.2

0.8

10

corn

4.9

4.0

0.9

23

sunflower seeds

A decrease in General and administrative expenses

In 2014 the Group disposed one of non-core subsidiary

came from a decrease in payroll costs by RR 199 million

engaged in the cultivation of dairy cattle livestock. Loss

from RR 392 million in 2013 to RR 193 million in 2014.

on the disposal in the amount of RR 179 million was

As a result of changes in the organization structure

included in Other operating expenses, net in the agricultural

of the Belgorod division of the agricultural segment

segment.

payroll costs of some departments were reclassified from
administrative expenses into production costs.
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Oil segment
Adjusted
EBITDA
(+84 %)

1,882
mln rub

Adjusted
EBITDA
margin

13%

Gross
profit
(+86 %)

Operating
profit
(+132 %)

mln rub

mln rub

4,368

1,601

The financial results of the oil segment for the year 2014 compared to the year 2013
are presented below:

Year ended
in RR million

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Gross profit margin

Distribution and selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other operating income/(expenses), net
Operating profit

Depreciation included in operating profit
Other operating income/(expenses), net
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA margin

Variance

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

14,920

8,920

6,001

67

(10,552)

(6,567)

(3,985)

(61)

4,368

2,352

2,016

86

29%

26%

3%

,

(2,390)

(1,266)

(1,123)

(89)

(463)

(375)

(88)

(23)

86

(21)

107

–

1,601

689

912

132

367

314

52

17

(86)

21

(107)

–

1,882

1,025

857

84

13%

11%

1%

,

The breakdown of Sales, Gross profit and Adjusted EBITDA
between the Samara oil plant and Ekaterinburg fat plant is as
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2014
in RR million

Samara oil plant

Ekat. fat plant

Samara oil plant

Ekat. fat plant

Sales to third parties and other segments

8,098

6,822

3,341

5,578

Internal sales

1,285

–

1,266

–

Gross profit

2,149

2,219

860

1,493

Gross profit margin
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA margin
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Year ended 31 December 2013

23%

33%

19%

27%

1,380

502

623

402

15%

7%

14%

7%
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Sales volume
of mayonnaise
(+1%)

Sales volume
of margarine
(+16%)

Sales volume of crude
vegetable oil to external
companies (+170%)

Sales volume
of meal
(+98%)

thousand tonnes

thousand tonnes

thousand tonnes

thousand tonnes

57.7

47.4

199

239

Sales increased as a result of sales volume increase and an
increase in sale prices of mayonnaise, margarine and meal
that was partly offset by a decrease in sales prices of raw oil.
Sales volumes by product were as follows:

Year ended
Thousand tonnes

Variance

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

mayonnaise

57.7

57.0

0.7

1

margarine

47.4

41.0

6.4

16

raw oil, sales to third parties and other segments

199

74

125

170

raw oil, internal sales (to Ekat. fat plant)

%

47

45

2

5

239

121

118

98

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

mayonnaise

59.0

56.8

2.2

4

margarine

54.5

50.8

3.7

7

raw oil, third-party sales

29.5

31.5

(2.0)

(6)

9.0

7.8

1.2

15

meal

The average sale prices per kilogram (excl. VAT) for sales to
third parties were as follows:
Year ended
RR per kilogram, excl. VAT

meal

Variance

A significant increase in sales volume of raw oil and meal

brand. Transportation and loading services increased

in 2014 compared to 2013 related to the trading operations

by RR 583 million (from RR 480 million in 2013

and tolling of own sunflower seeds on the related party’s

up to RR 1,063 million in 2014). Advertising expenses

production facilities. These operations started in Q4 2013

increased by RR 266 million (from RR 367 million in 2013

and ceased in Q3 2014.

up to RR 633 in 2014).

An increase in Distribution and selling expenses is
linked to an increase in sales volume and investments
in marketing and advertising of the Mechta Khozyayki
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Key consolidated cash flow indicators
(not IFRS presentation*)

The key consolidated cash flow indicators presented according to management accounts methodology
were as follows:
Year ended
in RR million

Variance

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

Net cash from operating activities, incl.

15,677

4,780

10,897

228

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

17,553,

5,946,

11,608

195

(823)

(1,042)

220

21

Net cash used in investing activities, incl.

Working capital changes

(6,206)

(4,182)

(2,024)

(48)

Purchases of property, plant and equipment and inventories intended for construction

(5,208)

(4,249)

(959)

(23)

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities

(4,705)

33

(4,738)

–

7,644

653

6,991

1,071

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Starting 1 January 2014 the management decided to present

million (2013: RR 716 million), representing purchases

cash flows on loans given and loans repaid within cash flows

of machinery and equipment, and in the meat segment in the

from financing activities in the Group management accounts.

amount of RR 1,324 million (2013: RR 2,501 million), related

The comparative figures for 2013 have been adjusted

to the construction of a slaughter house in Tambov region.

accordingly.

Significant investments were also made in the sugar division

The main investments in property, plant and equipment

in the amount of RR 1,600 million (2013: RR 790 million),

and inventories intended for construction in 2013 were

related to the modernisation of sugar plants.

made in the agricultural segment in the amount of RR 2,055

Debt position and liquidity management

Year ended
in RR million

Gross debt

Variance

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Units

%

22.306

32.513

(10.207)

(31)

Short-term borrowings

12.500

18.144

(5.645)

(31)

Long-term borrowings

9,806

14,369

(4,562)

(32)

3.617

14.576

(10.960)

(75)

Net debt**
Short-term borrowings, net

(5,493)

904

(6,397)

–

Long-term borrowings, net

9,110

13,672

(4,562)

(33)

18,069

6,784

11,285

166

0.2

2.1

(1.9)

Adjusted EBITDA* (LTM***)
Net debt/Adjusted EBITDA (LTM)

The Group maintained a healthy debt structure: 76% of net debt relates to amounts with more than three years’ maturity.
*
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Net finance expense

Year ended
in RR million

31 December 2013

Units

%

(154)

(1,380)

1,226

89

(2,288)

(3,624)

1,336

37

2,134

2,244

(110)

(5)

Net interest expense
Gross interest expense

Variance

31 December 2014

Reimbursement of interest expense
Interest income

1,011

2,023

(1,012)

(50)

(1,397)

–

(1,397)

–

Other financial income/(expenses), net

4,550

(56)

4,606

–

Total net finance income

4,010

587

3,423

583

Losses less gains from bonds held for trading

In 2014 the Group continued to enjoy benefits from

is an increase in financial foreign exchange differences

the state agriculture subsidies programme. RR 2,134 million

gain by RR 4,514 million from RR 38 million in 2013

of subsidies received covered 93% of gross interest expense.

up to RR 4,552 million in 2014. The foreign exchange

Other financial income/(expenses), net changed by

differences gain in 2014 related mainly to the bonds

RR 4,606 million from RR 56 million of net expenses in 2013

purchased and call deposits at Credit Swiss, all denominated

to RR 4,550 million of net income in 2014. The main reason

in US Dollars.

(*) Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating profit before taking into account (i) depreciation, (ii) other operating income, net (other than reimbursement
of operating costs (government grants)), (iii) the difference between gain on revaluation of biological assets and agricultural produce recognised during the period
and the gain on initial recognition of agricultural produce attributable to realized agricultural produce together with revaluation of biological assets attributable
to realised biological assets included in cost of sales for the period (iv) provision/(reversal of provision) for net realizable value of agricultural produce, (v)
share-based remuneration (see Note 28 of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the detailed calculation of Adjusted EBITDA). Adjusted EBITDA
is not a measure of financial performance under IFRS. You should not consider it as an alternative to profit for the period as a measure of operating performance
or to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity. Our calculation of Adjusted EBITDA may be different from the calculation used by other
companies and therefore comparability may be limited. We believe that Adjusted EBITDA provides useful information to investors because it is an indicator
of the strength and performance of our ongoing business operations, including our ability to fund discretionary spending such as capital expenditures,
acquisitions of subsidiaries and other investments and our ability to incur and service debt.
(**) The Group determines the net debt as short-term borrowings and long-term borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, bonds held for trading, bank deposits
and bank promissory notes within short-term and long-term investments.
(***) LTM – The abbreviation for the “Last twelve months”.
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Appendix 1.
Consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2014
according to the Group’s management accounts (in RR thousand) –
not IFRS presentation

Year ended

Year ended

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

20,891,914

3,532,720

Depreciation and amortization

3,497,032

3,270,861

Interest expense

2,288,135

3,623,968

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:

Government grants

(2,821,533)

(2,918,386)

Interest income

(1,010,951)

(2,022,986)

(5,038)

169,518

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(786,007)

237,660

Change in provision for net realisable value of inventory

Loss/(gain) on initial recognition of agricultural produce, net

485,767

(30,090)

Share of results of associates

(46,579)

–

Gain from buy-out of promissory notes issued

(41,094)

–

(1,807,678)

(504,253)

Revaluation of biological assets, net
Change in provision for impairment of receivables and prepayments
Foreign exchange gain, net
Share based remuneration
Write-off of work in progress
Lost harvest write-off
Losses less gains from bonds held for trading
Change in provision for impairment of advances paid for property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net
Loss on other investments
Other non-cash and non-operating expenses, net
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Change in trade and other receivables and prepayments
Change in other taxes receivable
Change in inventories

46,120

126,144

(4,694,826)

(37,534)

54,423

178,280

–

55,229

5,530

31,071

1,397,230

–

(454)

18,714

179,405

–

7,747

191,480

(85,977)

23,228

17,553,166

5,945,624

(963,488)

(779,457)

104,214

1,117,390

(1,015,731)

(406,568)

Change in biological assets

268,410

(605,257)

Change in trade and other payables

370,457

(265,517)

Change in other taxes payable

413,331

(102,899)

Cash generated from operations

16,730,359

4,903,316

Income tax paid

(1,053,641)

(123,602)

Net cash from operating activities

15,676,718

4,779,714

(5,206,184)

(4,232,694)

(151,993)

(96,904)

44,135

72,300

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of other intangible assets
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
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Year ended

Year ended

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

(1,530)

(16,335)

Purchases of associates

(377,493)

–

Investments in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

(498,692)

–

(14,970)

88,708

Dividends received

1,146

18

Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed

(275)

–

–

3,289

(6,205,855)

(4,181,618)

Purchases of inventories intended for construction

Movement in restricted cash

Proceeds from sales of other investments
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

15,875,925

16,157,846

Repayment of borrowings

(27,169,213)

(31,891,024)

Interest paid

(2,295,898)

(4,127,094)

Purchases of promissory notes*

(1,700,000)

(2,900,000)

Proceeds from sales of promissory notes*

2,800,000

3,068,267

Proceeds from cash withdrawals from deposits*

16,604,773

32,345,354

Deposits placed with banks*

(4,141,047)

(18,346,112)

Purchases of bonds*

(5,244,138)

–

134,904

–

(2,455,350)

(1,122,198)

Proceeds from sales of bonds*
Loans given**
Loans repaid**

1,847,683

907,674

Interest received*

1,239,633

2,152,715

Proceeds from government grants

3,048,946

4,049,217

Sale of non-controlling interest
Purchases of non-controlling interest
Purchases of treasury shares

6,758

–

(7,289)

(261,084)

(44,033)

–

Dividends paid

(3,206,582)

(107)

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities

(4,704,929)

33,454

Net effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

2,877,615

21,347

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

7,643,549

652,897

2,672,764

2,019,867

10,316,313

2,672,764

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(*) For the purpose of conformity with the methodology of the Group’s net debt calculation, investments in financial assets related to financial activities
are presented in Cash flows from financing activities in the Group’s management accounts.
(**) Starting 1 January 2014 the management decided to present cash flows on loans given and loans repaid within cash flows from financing activities
in the Group management accounts. The comparative figures for 2013 have been adjusted accordingly.
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6. Corporate social
responsibility
Corporate social responsibility is an integral and vital part

corporate culture based on high standards, fostering

of ROS AGRO Group’s business. The company promotes

an atmosphere of trust, mutual respect and integrity.

the development of regions where it has a presence, cares

The company’s Board of Directors approved a new version

about protecting the environment, practices professional

of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics in November

management of occupational health and safety, pays taxes

2013 that defines, among others things, ROS AGRO Group’s

and wages on time, and conducts a broad range of charitable

standards of corporate responsibility toward employees,

and sponsorship activities.

shareholders, business partners, the government and the

One of the company’s priorities is to develop a cohesive

public.

Human resources management
The Group considers its employees to be its greatest

Group management believes that the key to a successful

and essential asset. Therefore, the realization of the

business is maintaining a balance between the high-quality

creative abilities of employees is crucial to the Company’s

and efficient work of all employees who share common

performance.

values and principles on one hand, and the Company’s

The Group provides employees with opportunities to realize

commitment to providing opportunities for career growth

their professional potential, improve their knowledge and

on the other.

skills, work on interesting innovation projects and be part
of a cohesive team.

Average monthly salary at Group production and operating

Average number of Group employees*

units,** ‘000 RUB

2014

49
2,234

2,256

3,326

9,335

995
424

2013
2,625

1,905

3,240

875

100

42
31

35
27

25

28

28

9,155
413

97

2013

Sugar division

Meat division

Agriculture division

Oil & Fats Division Fats Plant

Oil & Fats Division –
Oil extraction

Other

*** Including permanent and seasonal employees
****Average salary for year includes wages paid to permanent and seasonal employees, including bonuses paid for 2013, not including
insurance contributions
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The Group believes its responsibilities to employees

in Yekaterinburg and the oil extraction plant in Samara,

entail:

respectively).

•• Providing stable and decent pay, and working conditions

At the end of 2014, the Group conducted another one of the
employee engagement studies it began in 2012 and the results

that meet legal standards
•• Ensuring compliance with occupational health and safety

exceeded expectations, as average engagement throughout
the Group rose by 10 percentage points, to 50% from 40%, and

standards
•• Providing social security, medical aid and other elements
of corporate social responsibility
•• Developing and improving the system for training,
motivating and assessing the potential of employees
•• Supporting the initiative and efforts of employees to

doubled in some business units.
A comprehensive assessment of strategic personnel
is continuing at all the Group’s business divisions in
order to create a system to provide staff coverage, identify
deficiencies in skills and competencies, work out individual

grow, advance professional competency and perform

development plans and a career growth system, as well

challenging tasks

as a system of in-house and outside training of employees.

•• Maintaining an atmosphere of cooperation, mutual
understanding and stability
The Group had a monthly average of 9,335 employees in
2014, 2.0% more than in 2013. The growth was due to the
expansion of production facilities and implementation of
new projects at a number of Group businesses.
Average pay rose in all Group divisions in 2014, including
by 15% year-on-year in the sugar division, 13% in the
agriculture division, 6% in the meat division and by 17% and
21% in the oils and fats division (at the Fats Plant (EZhK)

Growth of salaries
in sugar division

Growth of salaries
in meat division

Growth of
salaries in
agriculture division

Growth of salaries
in oil and fats
division

15 %

6%

13 %

17 %
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Efforts continued in 2014 to standardize HR processes. The

agriculture and oil and fats (Fats Plant (EZhK)) divisions with

Group adopted a unified salary and variable remuneration

qualified managers.

system; and developed and introduced common standards

As part of efforts to develop the system of internal

for comprehensive evaluation, career management and

communications, the Group began publishing a monthly

development of employees. The automation of HR processes

corporate newspaper, and held summer games in which

on the basis of the ETWeb software solution is helping

more than 4,000 employees participated. The Group also has

to achieve the goals of standardizing and increasing the

monthly Information Days at all business divisions and is

efficiency of the work of HR professionals, as well as

providing communication skills training to middle and lower

Group managers on issues of staff management. System

managers.

modules on comprehensive assessment, career planning and
development were rolled out on a trial basis in 2014.
A modular programme to develop the managerial skills
of key employees was begun in order to provide the sugar,

Plans for working with employees in 2015 include
the following measures:
•• Review target organizational structures on the basis of
existing methodology taking into account established
standards
•• Plan and review remuneration according to the
methodology of the review
•• Introduce Compensation and Benefits Policy
•• Evaluate performance of employees in 2014 on the basis
of KPI; update KPI for 2015
•• Conduct scheduled evaluation of staff for fit with position
requirements, work out individual development plans
based on evaluation results
•• Implement recruitment and internal succession plan;
organize work with educational institutions to recruit
graduates
•• Develop employee training and development system
•• Roll out automated HR systems, including by increasing
the number of ETWeb users and automation of the
recruitment process using E-Staff
•• Audit internal communications system for compliance
with established requirements, develop improvement plan
based on audit results
•• Hold corporate functions
•• Introduce programmes to build and distribute housing
in Samara, Tambov and Belgorod regions
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•• Assess the level of awareness of Group employees
•• Implement measures based on results of 2014 staff
engagement study
•• Conduct staff engagement study at the end of 2015
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Occupational health
and safety
The Group’s occupational health and safety (OHS) management system fully complies with legislated standards,
ensuring a highly efficient and safe production process.

The company invests in workplace safety, providing

The Group provides ongoing training for employees and

protective clothing, personal protective equipment for

conducts special safety orientations. Compliance with

employees working with chemicals, professional literature

workplace safety standards is continually monitored by the

and healthcare. The company’s workplaces, machinery,

State Labor Inspectorate.

equipment and production processes meet OHS standards.
The following measures were carried out in

The Group’s companies comply with all standards

the agriculture division in 2014 in order to prevent

of applicable environmental legislation. Biosecurity and

work-related illnesses:

veterinary safety are a top priority at livestock farming

•• Workplace assessment

units. The Group’s pig farms are designed and built based

•• Periodic medical checkups for all employees

on the recommendations of leading international experts

•• Employee training and development in OHS

and the company adheres to the latest standards in this area

•• Acquisition of personal protective equipment for

in order to raise high quality animals and minimize the risk

employees (respirators, protective suits for work with

of disease.

fertilizers)
•• Acquisition of protective clothing
•• Collective protective equipment installed at workplaces
(lightning rods and dischargers, automatic monitoring
and alarm systems, grounding devices, safety signs)
•• Health resort vouchers provided to at-risk employees
(machinery operators, agronomists) upon completion
of harvest
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Territorial division

Strict sanitary procedures

The land on which pig farms are located is controlled by the

The Group’s pig farming complexes have procedures in place

Group, and there are no other livestock farming operations

to regularly clean and disinfect production areas. We use

or households that raise animals within a 10 km radius of

the full/empty principle, where production areas are filled

our farms. The farms are situated 1 to 3 km apart, which

exclusively with animals of the same generation. After the

helps prevent the spread of infection.

growing period is over, the area is cleaned and disinfected.

Territorial specialization

Vaccination

Animals of different generations and different production

Animals are regularly vaccinated to prevent the spread of all

functions are housed separately in order to prevent the

known diseases

spread of disease.

Restricted access

Disease monitoring
Our veterinarians constantly monitor data on the spread of

Access to areas within pig farming complexes is strictly

any diseases and study the latest scientific breakthroughs

controlled and restricted. Each site is equipped with showers

in biosecurity and veterinary safety. The Group responds

and every visitor must shower before entering and exiting,

quickly to any outbreaks of disease in the country,

as well as leave all personal belongings outside of the site

immediately halting purchases of feed and shipments of

and wear special clothing and footwear inside. Vehicles enter

animals in regions where cases of a disease are reported.

the territory of the complexes only after being washed and

The company took additional measures to strengthen

disinfected. The entry and exit of all employees, visitors and

biosecurity in 2014 due to the African swine fever epidemic

vehicles is recorded.

in a number of Russian regions. In addition, in Belgorod

Feed quality control

Region the Group was actively involved in a programme
to buy and destroy pigs kept by household farms with less
than a third compartment (medium) security level. This

Feed ingredients are under constant laboratory control,

programme made it possible to avoid the spread of African

including monitoring for quality, cleanliness, pathogenic

swine fever in Belgorod Region.

elements, infections and toxic substances. All feed is heattreated, preventing the spread of disease through feed.

// 76

I      ROS AGRO PLC  Annual report 2014      I

Environmental protection
The Group is committed to protecting the environment and minimizing the
environmental impact of its operations in all regions where it has a presence.
All of the Group’s divisions constantly monitor wastewater runoff and air
quality, and are equipped with treatment facilities that meet all the standards
of applicable environmental legislation.

In 2014, the units of the Group’s agriculture division:
•• Drafted guidelines for maximum allowable emissions and
guidelines for waste generation.
•• Established sanitary protection zones for warehouses
storing crop protection agents.
•• Entered into solid waste disposal agreements with
utilities that serve production sites.
•• Entered into agreements with counterparties to return
packaging from crop protection agents and fertilizer.

Environmental projects related to the launch of grain
cleaning and pickling facilities assure safety for both the
environment and the public. All emissions of pollutants
were within the limits set by the Federal Natural Resources
Oversight Service (Rosprirodnadzor) and specified in permits.
The Group’s livestock farming division switched completely
to the method of injecting manure directly into the soil
in 2011, reducing concentrations of ammonia in the

•• Continued soil deacidification efforts on farmland.

atmosphere. Lab analysis of samples of air, runoff, waste,

•• Disposed of residue crop protection agents and fertilizer

drinking water, manure and water from observation wells

and used packaging to prevent contamination.
•• Purchased and installed the latest high-efficiency filters
upon upgrading threshing facilities.

conducted in the course of environmental monitoring
in 2014 showed that all indicators were within the
permissible pollution limits, which is a testament to the
Group’s high standards of corporate responsibility and
environmental stewardship.
The Group’s oil and fats division continued to research the
possibilities for recycling hulls into heating fuel.
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7. Corporate governance
Corporate governance system
ROS AGRO Group is committed to developing its corporate governance system,
which it sees as vital to maintaining business performance.

The company’s core values are:
RESULTS.

In accordance with the Charter, the Company’s

We set ambitious goals and achieve them.

governance system consists of the following bodies:

CONTINUAL IMPROVEMENT.

•• General Shareholder Meeting

We do our job better and become better every day.

•• Board of Directors

TEAMWORK AND COOPERATION.

•• Board Audit Committee

We achieve goals TOGETHER and value every contribution.

•• Managing Director

OUR PEOPLE.
Our success lies in successful people. We respect
individuality, value professionalism and realize our dreams
together.

Corporate governance structure

INTEGRITY.
We value trust and rely on the integrity of every individual.
Integrity is more valuable than profit.

General Shareholder
Meeting

The company has been optimizing its corporate and legal
structure since 2010 in order to increase transparency and
reduce costs.
The company’s core corporate governance documents
are the:
•• Company Charter

Board of Directors
(with two independent
directors)

•• Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of ROS AGRO PLC
and Group companies

Board
Audit
committee

•• Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading of ROS
AGRO PLC and Group companies
•• Regulation on the Board of Directors of ROS AGRO PLC
•• Regulation on the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors of ROS AGRO PLC

Managing
Director
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Company structure

ROS AGRO PLC
(Cyprus)

99.87%

89,22%
OJSC Valuikisakhar

100%
OJSC Znamensky
Sugar Plant

LLC Rusagro Sugar

100%
100%

100%

LLC Rusagro Invest

OJSC Rusagro
Group

LLC Nezhegol Agro

100%
99.99%

LLC Rusagro
Group of
Companies

100%

LLC Rusagro Milk

99.4%

LLC Agrotechnology

100%

LLC Zherdevsky Elevator

100 %

100%

OJSC EZhK

CJSC SAPP

100%

LLC Belgorod Bacon

LLC Tambov Bacon

General Shareholder Meeting
The company’s highest governance body is the General

The General Shareholder Meeting holds exclusive

Shareholder Meeting. Annual General Shareholder Meetings

authority to:

are held once a year and any additional meetings of

•• Announce payment of dividends on the company’s

shareholders are considered extraordinary. The location for
shareholder meetings is: Mykinon 12, Lavinia Court, 6th
floor, 1065, Nicosia, Cyprus. If the location of the shareholder
meeting needs to be changed, the date and location for the
Annual General Meeting and/or extraordinary meetings are
designated by the company’s Board of Directors.

securities
•• Make decisions about issues of shares and other securities
of the company
•• Make decisions on the acquisition of previously issued
shares of the company
•• Approve the company’s financial statements
•• Review the reports of auditors and the Board of Directors
•• Elect Board directors
•• Elect an auditor for the company and determine their
remuneration
•• Approve the acquisition of company shares by Board
directors
•• Make decisions on the liquidation of the company
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is the company’s collective

At the Annual General Meeting on May 30, 2014,

governance body and is responsible for the general

shareholders elected the following directors to

management of the company’s business, with the exception

the Board for the next fiscal year:

of issues that are under the exclusive authority of the

•• Mr. Richard Smyth, Chairman of the Board of Directors

General Shareholder Meeting.

(independent)

In accordance with the company Charter, the Board consists
of at least two but not more than five directors, at least two

•• Mr. Tassos Televantides, Board Director (independent),
Chairman of the Audit Committee
•• Ms. Natalia Bykovskaya, Board Director and member

of whom should be independent.

of Audit Committee
•• Ms. Anna Khomenko, Board Director and member
of Audit Committee, Managing Director and Compliance
Officer of ROS AGRO PLC (Cyprus)
•• Mr. Maxim Basov, Board member of ROS AGRO PLC
(Cyprus), Board Director, Chief Executive Officer of OJSC
Rusagro Group, Chief Executive Officer of LLC Rusagro
Group of Companies

RICHARD ANDREW SMYTH
Chairman of the Board
Mr. Smyth has been Chairman of the company’s Board of Directors since February 2011.
He has been Regional President of Mars LLC in Central Europe and the CIS since January 2009, prior to which he was a general manager at Mars LLC from 2003 to 2009.
Mr. Smyth, born in 1962, graduated from Oxford University in the UK in 1984.

TASSOS TELEVANTIDES
Director, Chairman of Audit Committee
Mr. Televantides, a chartered certified accountant who was a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopersCyprus for more than 20 years, joined the Board of ROS AGRO PLC in November 2011,
when he was also elected Chairman of the Audit Committee.
He has been CEO of CypcoDirect Limited since 2008 and has served as Chairman of the Board
at Limassol Bishopric since 2009. From 1994 to 1998 he served on the Board of Directors of
ICPAC, and from 2002 to 2008 he was Honorary Treasurer of the Limassol Chamber of Commerce and Industry.
Mr. Televantides, who was born in 1948, has also served as a director at a Canadian pharmaceutical group, a Norwegian drilling rig construction company, Gazprombank Financial
Services and Olivant Investments.
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MAXIM BASOV
Director, CEO of OJSC Rusagro Group, CEO of LLC Rusagro Group of Companies, Head
of Meat Division
Mr. Basov, who joined the Board of ROS AGRO PLC in February 2011, has been the CEO
of OJSC Rusagro Group since the company’s inception and was appointed CEO of LLC Rusagro
Group of Companies in July 2009. In March 2015, he also became Head of the Meat Division
of the Rusagro Group of Companies.
He was general director of the Metalloinvest group from April 2006 to May 2009 and also
held management positions at Severstal, Kuzbassugol, Severstal Resources and the Interpipe
Group.
Mr. Basov, born in 1975, graduated from New York University with majors in Economics and
Finance, International Business and Philosophy.

NATALIA BYKOVSKAYA
Director, Member of Audit Committee
Ms. Bykovskaya, who joined the Board of ROS AGRO PLC in February 2011, also serves
as a director on the Board of Directors and Management Board of OJSC Rusagro Group,
and has been Deputy CEO of LLC Rusagro Group of Companies since 2007.
She joined the Group in 2004 as Deputy General Director of Rusagro-Sakhar. In 2006-2007
she was Deputy General Director of Rusagro Management.

ANNA KHOMENKO
Director, Member of Audit Committee, Managing Director and Compliance Officer
of ROS AGRO PLC
Ms. Khomenko is the Managing Partner of Fiduciana Trust (Cyprus) Limited.
She was a director at IFG Trust (Cyprus), a provider of financial services to companies listed
on the London and Dublin stock exchanges, from 2007 to 2009, prior to which she was
the head of the corporate department at Excel-Serve (Cyprus).
Ms. Khomenko studied international law at the Taras Shevchenko Institute in Ukraine and
continued here education at Keele University in the UK, where she earned a dual Bachelors
Degree in Law and International Politics.
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Board committees
In order to enhance its effectiveness, the Board of Directors

internal control and audit. For more information about the

has formed an Audit Committee, the main objective of which

Audit Committee, see the Internal Control and Audit section.

is to assist the Board on matters of financial reporting,

The Audit Committee held four in-person meetings in 2014.

Management
LLC Rusagro Group of Companies has a team of executives
with extensive and diverse business experience that has been
instrumental in the Group’s successful development.

MAXIM BASOV
CEO, LLC Rusagro Group of Companies
See Board of Directors section for details.

SERGEY KOLTUNOV
Deputy CEO, Legal and Corporate Affairs, LLC Rusagro Group of Companies
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Koltunov was head of legal services and held other management positions at Russian Alcohol Group and Danone Group in Russia. He won the Manager
of the Year award in 2010 in the Food Industry category in a competition held by the Free
Economic Society and the International Academy of Management.
Mr. Koltunov graduated with honours from the law department of Nizhny Novgorod State
University in 2003, and in 2004 he completed a second degree, with the qualification of Economist-Manager, at this university’s economic department. In 2011, he completed courses at
the Russian Presidential Academy of National Economy and Public Administration.
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SERGEY TRIBUNSKY
First Deputy CEO, M&A, Capital Markets and Investor Relations, LLC Rusagro Group
of Companies
Mr. Tribunsky, who joined Rusagro Group of Companies in 2009, was appointed First Deputy
CEO in charge of M&A, Capital Markets and Investor Relations on February 1, 2015.
He graduated from Moscow State University in 2007 with a Masters Degree in Economics,
with a focus on Project Management. He worked in the research department of investment
bank Renaissance Capital in 2008.

NAILYA MUKHAMEDZANOVA
Chief Financial Officer, LLC Rusagro Group of Companies
Ms. Mukhamedzanova was appointed CFO of Rusagro Group of Companies on January 1,
2015.
Prior to joining the Group, she served as CFO at Rasstal, Rusal, Pepsi Co and Wimm-BillDann.
She graduated from the Kama College of Law in 1994 with a major in Jurisprudence, and later
graduated from the Kama Polytechnic Institute with a major in Economics and Management.

AURIKA DMITRIEVA
HR Director, LLC Rusagro Group of Companies
Ms. Dmitrieva has been Director of Human Resources at Rusagro Group of Companies since
October 2012.
Prior to joining Rusagro, she worked at Interpipe (Ukraine) and Centravis (Ukraine). She holds
two post secondary degrees, in Psychology and HR Management.

DMITRY BREKHOV
Head of Internal Audit Department, LLC Rusagro Group of Companies
Mr. Brekhov was appointed Head of the Internal Audit Department at Rusagro Group of Companies in October 2010.
Prior to joining the Group, he was head of internal audit at agricultural investment company
Agrico and investment group Antanta Prioglobal.
Mr. Brekhov graduated from Moscow State University in 1997 with a degree in Accounting
and Audit. He holds an ACCA DipIFR diploma and general audit certification from the Finance
Ministry of Russia.
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Management of LLC Rusagro
Group of Companies Divisions

MAXIM BASOV
Head of Meat Division
See Board of Directors section for details.

KONSTANTIN BELDUSHKIN
Head of Agriculture Division
Mr. Beldushkin has been Head of the Agriculture Division since August 2013. He was appointed General Director of LLC Rusagro Invest in January 2012, prior to which he was head
of strategy at Rusagro Group of Companies from August 2009.
He has served as deputy director for strategic development, investment and optimization
at the Interpipe Group, and worked at CenterInvest Group and Bain & Company.
He graduated from the Moscow State Institute of International Relations in 1996 with
a diploma in International Economic Relations.

NIKOLAI ZHIRNOV
Head of Sugar Division
Mr. Zhirnov joined the Group in September 2009 as Commercial Director of LLC Rusagro
Centre and was appointed General Director of Rusagro Centre on October 31, 2011.
He worked for Wrigley Russia from 1997 to 2005, eventually becoming division manager.
He earned an MBA from the Stockholm School of Economics in 2004, and from 2005
to 2009 served as General Director of Sportland Russia, the Russian division of Sportland
International.
Mr. Zhirnov graduated from the Chelyabinsk State Technical University in 1996 with a degree
in Applied Mathematics.
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SERGEY BOIN
General Director, Samaraagroprompererabotka (SAPP)
Mr. Boin was appointed General Director of SAPP in July 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, he held management positions at Unimilk in the period from
2003 to 2013. He also worked as a representative of Pepsi in Samara, Togliatti, Ulyanovsk
and Saratov.
Mr. Boin graduated from the Samara Architecture and Civil Engineering Institute
in 1994 with a degree in Industrial and Civil Engineering.

VLADIMIR FILIPTSEV
General Director, Fats Plant (EZhK)
Mr. Filiptsev was appointed General Director of EZhK in December 2014.
From 1996 to 2011 he was head of sales at the Russian divisions of Wrigley and SABMiller
Rus, executive director at the Russian Standard Group and Roust Inc, and general director
of Progress. In 2011, he returned to Roust Inc in the position of general director.
Mr. Filiptsev graduated from the Bauman Moscow State Technical University in 1991 with
a degree in Radioelectronics and Laser Technology. He earned an MBA in Budapest in 1996
under a joint programme between IMC (Hungary) and Cleveland University (USA).
He worked at Coca-Cola for seven years, becoming director of sales.

YEVGENY ANTIPIN
General Director, LLC Rusagro Primorye
Mr. Antipin was appointed General Director of Rusagro Primorye in August 2014.
He was General Director of Tambov Bacon from April 2011 to July 2013. In the period
from 1990 to 2010 he held management positions at Kuzbassugol Coal Company, Optima
and Regionstroy.
He graduated from the Moscow Automobile and Road Construction University in 1988
with an automotive degree.
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Key management remuneration
Remuneration paid by the company to key management
personnel in 2014 totaled 876.776 million roubles.

Risk management
The company makes every effort to identify, assess and
minimize the potential impact of risks on its business, and
is committed to meeting international and national standards
of risk management.

Internal control and audit
The Board of Directors bears overall responsibility for

The members of the Audit Committee are elected by the

ensuring that the company maintains an adequate internal

Board. The Committee is comprised of three Board Directors,

control and audit system. Internal control is exercised jointly

and can only be chaired by an independent director.

by the Board of Directors, the Board Audit Committee and
the CEO in order to ensure compliance with regulations and

The members of the current Audit Committee were

the company’s internal documents, reliability of reporting

elected by the company’s Board on November 25, 2011

and strong performance.

and include:

The Audit Committee operates on the basis of the Regulation

•• Mr. Tassos Televantides (Chairman)

on the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, in

•• Ms. Natalia Bykovskaya

accordance with the requirements of the laws of Cyprus, the

•• Anna Khomenko

Company Charter, Regulation on the Board of Directors and
decisions of the company’s Board of Directors.

In addition to the Board Audit Committee, internal control
is exercised in accordance with Russian legislation at LLC

The Audit Committee’s objectives include:

Rusagro Group of Companies, a unit of the Group. Control

•• Assisting the Board of Directors in making decisions

over financial and operating activities is carried out by the

concerning reporting and audit
•• Increasing the effectiveness of Board control over
the financial and economic activities of the company
by reviewing and making recommendations on issues that
fall under the Board’s authority
•• Establishing an effective system of control over the
financial and economic activities of the company and
ensuring the Board’s participation in exercising control
over the financial and economic activities of the company
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Share capital
Charter capital
The company’s charter capital consisted of 60,000,000

Company trading codes:

declared common shares and 24,000,000 issued common

•• Reuters – AGRORq.L

shares with par value of 0.01 euro as of December 31, 2014.

•• Bloomberg – AGRO LI Equity

The company carried out an initial public offering on the

•• LSE – AGRO

London Stock Exchange (LSE) in April 2011.

•• MICEX – AGRO

The Group held 2,212,648 of its own Global Depositary
Receipts (GDR) as of December 31, 2014, compared to
Company equity structure on Dec. 31, 2014, (%)

2,012,608 GDR (equivalent to about 402,522 shares) as of
December 31, 2013.
The GDR of ROS AGRO PLC (ISIN - US7496552057) were

75.0%

Moshkovich
family

6.1%

Management

1.8%

RosAgro PLC

17.1%

Free ﬂoat

accepted for trading on the MICEX Stock Exchange’s First
Tier (top) quotation list on November 26, 2014. Trading of
the GDR began on December 1, 2014. The decision to list on
MICEX was made in order to expand the investor base.

Company GDR price on the LSE (Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 2014), USD/GDR, ( %)
Rusagro
USD
7.65

8.00

7.20
6.75
6.30
5.85
5.40
4.95
4.50
4.05

4.40

March

May

July

September

November
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Information for shareholders
The company delivers strong margins and equally

Seeking to ensure a level of openness that

respects the rights of all shareholders, regardless

is consistent with best practices, the company prepares

of the number of shares that they own, adhering

and promptly reports to the investment community

to the following principles:

all information that might have a material impact

•• Minimize objective risks for investors, providing full

on the price of the company’s securities:

disclosure of information about the company’s business
and refraining from actions that could mislead investors
•• Make every effort to increase shareholder value,

•• Annual and quarterly statements, information about all
material facts in the company’s operations
•• Special information and analytical materials for investors

prevent corporate conflicts and ensure a high standard
of corporate governance, making compliance with the

The company regularly reports on meetings that its

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, as well as internal

management and key executives hold with representatives

company documents a priority

of the media and the investment community, as well as their
visits to important production facilities and other events.

The company guarantees to all shareholders that it will

The company provides equal access for all representatives

safeguard all rights established by current legislation and

of the investment community to information about the

proceeding from the company’s obligations in connection

company and takes care to prevent certain groups of

with the trading of its securities on stock exchanges.

investors from gaining exclusive access to this information.

The company also offers its shareholders assistance and
support according to the best world practices in corporate
governance. The company is continually working
to make it simpler, easier, more efficient and less costly
for shareholders to exercise their rights.
The company builds its relationship with shareholders
in such a way as to best protect their rights and prevent
violation of their rights.
The company, as an issuer of securities, demonstrates its
investment appeal to investors. The foundation of this
investment appeal is the performance of the company’s
business, but issues of corporate governance, particularly
the openness and transparency of the company’s activities,
are very important for making positive investment decisions.
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Dividend policy
The company’s dividend policy is built on the following
principles:
•• Respect for shareholder rights as defined by relevant
legislation
•• Balance between the interests of the company and
shareholders
•• The need to develop the company and increase
its investment appeal
•• Transparency in how dividends are determined and paid
The company’s Board of Directors approved a dividend policy
on August 30, 2013 that provides for a payout of at least 25%
of net profit annually. The first announcement of dividends
was made in the first half of 2014 on the basis of financial
statements for 2013. The company paid total dividends of
1 billion roubles, or 42.45 roubles per share.
At an extraordinary general meeting on October 3, 2014,
shareholders approved the recommendation of the Board to pay
interim dividends for the first half of 2014 in the amount
of 2 billion roubles (USD 54,154,957.73) or 84.90 roubles
(USD 2.30) per share and 16.98 roubles (USD 0.46) per
GDR (five GDR represent one share), not including
2,212,648 treasury GDR held by the company. The interim
dividends were paid on October 17, 2014.
The Board of Directors has recommended that at the annual
general meeting shareholders approve dividends of 5.063
billion roubles, or 130.03 roubles ($2.35) per share and 26.01
roubles ($0.47) per GDR for 2014 not including 2,212,648
treasury GDR. Taking into account paid interim dividends for
the first half of 2014, the payout will be 3.063 billion roubles
($55.360 million).
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The Board of Directors presents its report together with

Adjusted EBITDA increased by RR 11,285,462 thousand

the audited consolidated financial statements of ROS AGRO

or 166%. All divisions demonstrated an increase in Adjusted

PLC (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively

EBITDA as a result of an increase in sales volume and sales

the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

prices as described above together with the continuous

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been

improvement in the efficiency of operations. In the Meat

prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

segment Adjusted EBITDA increased by RR 7,103,167

Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union (“EU”)

thousand or 412%, in the Sugar segment growth in Adjusted

and the requirements of Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

EBITDA amounted to RR 3,088,870 thousand or 180%.

Principal activities

The Other Agriculture segment demonstrated RR 2,014,185
thousand or 85% of an increase in Adjusted EBITDA.
Adjusted EBITDA in the Oil segment increased by RR

The principal activities of the Group are the agricultural

856,972 thousand or 84%.

production (cultivation of sugar-beet, grain and other

In 2014 the Group investments in property, plant and

agricultural crops), cultivation of pigs, processing of raw

equipment and inventories intended for construction

sugar and production of sugar from sugar-beet, vegetable oil

amounted to RR 5,207,714 thousand on a cash basis.

production and processing.

Investments of RR 1,324,218 thousand were made

Review of developments, position and
performance of the Group’s business

in the Meat segment mainly for construction of the slaughter
house in Tambov region. The Other Agriculture segment
invested RR 2,055,275 thousand in acquisition of new
agricultural machinery and equipment. The Sugar

In 2014 revenue increased by RR 22,622,416 thousand or 62%.

segment invested RR 1,600,262 thousand in modernization

All segments demonstrated increase in revenue. The major

of the sugar plants.

contributor to the sales growth was the Meat segment
where sales increased by RR 10,329,183 thousand or 139%

Principal risks and uncertainties

comparing to the previous year. Growth in sales of the Meat
segment resulted from a significant increase in sales volume

The Group’s critical estimates and judgments and financial

with the first full year of operation of new pig-breeding

risk management are disclosed in Notes 2 and 29 to

facilities in Tambov region after their launch in 2013 and

the consolidated financial statements. The Group’s operating

an increase in average sales prices. Sales growth in the Oil

environment is disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated

segment by RR 6,000,542 thousand or 67% was driven by

financial statements.

an increase in sales volume and an increase in sales prices

The Group’s contingencies are disclosed in Note 30 to

of consumer margarine, mayonnaise and sunflower meal

the consolidated financial statements.

that was partly offset by a decrease in sales prices of raw oil.
Both volume and price factors positively contributed to an

Future developments

increase in sales of the Sugar segment where sales increased
by RR 5,500,924 thousand or 32%. Higher sales volume

The Group adheres to its strategy the main purpose of which

of barley, pea and sunflower seeds and higher average sales

is to become the largest vertically integrated agricultural

prices of sugar beet, wheat, pea and sunflower seeds led to

company in the Russian market. In 2015 and beyond,

an increase in sales of the Other Agriculture segment that

the Group plans to continue modernization and expansion

was partly offset by a decrease in sales prices of barley and

of its production and storage facilities in all business

in sales volume of sugar beet, wheat and soya bean. Overall

segments. The Group considers its expansion in the Far

sales in the Other Agriculture segment increased by RR

Eastern region where it plans to develop agricultural and

2,180,991 thousand or 26%.

meat business.
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Results

half of 2014, with a total pay-out RR 2,000,029 thousand,
the distributed amount is RR 3,063,227 thousand. Given

The Group’s results for the year are set out on page 2

the Company owns 2,212,648 of its own GDRs, which will

of the consolidated financial statements.

be excluded from dividend distribution, the dividend will

Dividends

be RR 130.03 per ordinary share (the equivalent USD 2.35
per ordinary share based on the CBRF rate 55.3328 as of 8
April 2015). The proposed dividend is subject to approval

Pursuant to its Articles of Association the Company

by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. These

may pay dividends out of its profits. In August 2013

consolidated financial statements do not reflect the dividends

the Board of Directors has approved a new dividend

that have not been approved on the reporting date.

policy with payout ratio of at least 25% of Group’s profit
for the year applicable starting from the year ended

Share capital

31 December 2013. To the extent that the Company
declares and pays dividends, owners of Global

All changes in the share capital of the Company are disclosed

Depositary Receipts (hereafter also referred as “GDRs”)

in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

on the relevant record date will be entitled to receive
dividends payable in respect of Ordinary Shares

The role of the Board of Directors

underlying the GDRs, subject to the terms of the Deposit
Agreement.The Company is a holding company and

The Company is governed by its Board of Directors

thus its ability to pay dividends depends on the ability

(hereafter also referred as “the Board”) which is collectively

of its subsidiaries to pay dividends to the Company

responsible to the shareholders for the successful

in accordance with the relevant legislation and

performance of the Group.

contractual restrictions. The payment of such dividends

The Board sets corporate strategic objectives, ensuring

by its subsidiaries is contingent upon the sufficiency

that the necessary financial and human resources are

of their earnings, cash flows and distributable reserves.

in place for the Group to meet its objectives and reviewing

The maximum dividend payable by the Company`s

management performance. The Board of Directors

subsidiaries is restricted to the total accumulated retained

sets the Group’s values and standards and ensures all

earnings of the relevant subsidiary, determined according

obligations to shareholders are understood and met.

to the Russian law.

The Board believes it maintains a sound system of internal

In 2014 the Company declared and distributed RR

control to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’

1,000,000 thousand of dividends for the year 2013 and

investments in the Group.

RR 2,000,029 thousand of interim dividends for the first
half of 2014. Given the Company owns 2,212,648 of its

Members of the Board of Directors

own GDRs (5 GDRs represent 1 share) which are excluded
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from dividend distribution the dividends for 2013

The members of the Board of Directors at 31 December 2014

amounted to RR 42.45 per share and interim dividends

and at the date of this report are shown in the beginning

for 2014 amounted to RR 84.90 per share. There were

of these consolidated financial statements. All of them

no dividends announced and paid during the year ended

were members of the Board throughout the year ended

31 December 2013.

31 December 2014.

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of dividends

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,

for the year 2014 amounting to RR 5,063,256 thousand. Given

one third of the Directors shall retire by rotation and seek

the Company has already paid interim dividends for the first

re-election at each Annual General Meeting.
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Directors’ Interests

Conduct and Ethics (the “Codes”). In addition, since May
2014 the Company together with its subsidiaries and

The Directors Mrs. Natalia Bykovskaya, Mr. Maxim Basov,

affiliates adopted a new edition of the Codes for mandatory

Mr. Richard Smyth and Mr. Anastassios Televantides held

compliance by all employees.

interest in the Company as at 31 December 2014.
Mrs. Natalia Bykovskaya has no direct interest in the Company

Events after the balance sheet date

as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: none). The number
of shares held indirectly through her family relationship with

The material events after the consolidated balance sheet

Mr. Vadim Moshkovich as at 31 December 2014 is 17,999,996

date are disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial

(31 December 2013: 17,999,996).

statements.

The number of shares directly held by Mr. Maxim Basov
as at 31 December 2014 is 1,459,904 (31 December 2013:

Branches

none). As at 31 December 2014 there were no shares held
by Mr. Maxim Basov indirectly. As at 31 December 2013

The Company did not operate through any branches during

the number of shares held indirectly (through an entity

the year.

controlled by Mr. Maxim Basov) amounted to 1,165,458.
The number of shares directly held by Mr. Richard Smyth

Treasury shares

as at 31 December 2014 is 6,000 (31 December 2013: 6,000).
The number of shares directly held by Mr. Anastassios

On 25 August 2011 the Board unanimously resolved that it

Televantides as at 31 December 2014 is 2,000

is in the best interest of the Company to buy back GDRs from

(31 December 2013: 2,000).

the market for the total amount of up to US$10m increased

Audit Committee

to up to US$30m via subsequent Board's decision on 17 July
2012. During 2014, the Company acquired 0.20m GDRs from
the market for a cost of RR 44,033 thousand representing

The Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee.

0.17% of its issued share capital. In 2013 the Company

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for (i)

did not buy back its own GDRs from the market. As

ensuring the integrity of our financial statements, (ii)

at 31 December 2014, the Company has totally acquired

ensuring our compliance with legal and regulatory

2.21m GDRs (31 December 2013: 2.01m GDRs) from

requirements, (iii) evaluating our internal control and risk

the market for a total cost of RR 505,880 thousand

management procedures, (iv) assuring the qualification and

(31 December 2013: RR 461,847 thousand) representing

independence of our independent auditors and overseeing

1.84% of its issued share capital (31 December 2013: 1.68%).

the audit process and (v) resolving matters arising during
the course of audits and coordinating internal audit

Going Concern

functions. The Audit Committee consists of three members
appointed by the Board of Directors. The current members

Directors have access to all information necessary to

are Mr. Anastassios Televantides (Chairman), Mrs. Natalia

exercise their duties. The Directors continue to adopt

Bykovskaya and Mrs. Ganna Khomenko.

the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements

Corporate Governance

based on the fact that, after making enquiries and following
a review of the Group’s budget for 2015, including cash
flows and borrowing facilities, the Directors consider that

Since 2011, the Company adopted the following codes: Code

the Group has adequate resources to continue in operation

of Conduct on insider information and Code of Business

for the foreseeable future.
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Independent Auditors
The Independent Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for

Limited, have expressed their willingness to continue

preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated

in office. The appointment of the auditors will be approved

financial statements in accordance with International

at the Annual General Meeting.

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted
by the European Union (“EU”) and the requirements

By Order of the Board

of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

RICHARD SMYTH

This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and

Chairman of the Board of Directors

maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation

Nicosia

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free

08 April 2015

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.
Each of the Directors confirms to the best of his or her
knowledge that these consolidated financial statements
(which are presented on pages 1 to 55) have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU
and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap.
113, and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a
whole.
By Order of the Board

RICHARD SMYTH
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Nicosia
08 April 2015
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of ROS AGRO PLC
Report on the consolidated financial statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ROS AGRO PLC (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company, the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Board of Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the requirements
of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board
of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, City House, 6 Karaiskakis Street, CY-3032 Limassol, Cyprus
P O Box 53034, CY-3300 Limassol, Cyprus
T: +357 25 - 555 000, F:+357 - 25 555 001, www.pwc.com.cy
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Ltd, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity. PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd is a private company
registered in Cyprus (Reg. No. 143594). A list of the company's directors including for individuals the present name and surname, as well as any previous names and for legal entities the corporate
name, is kept by the Secretary of the company at its registered office at 3 Themistocles Dervis Street, 1066 Nicosia and appears on the company's web site. Offices in Nicosia, Limassol, Larnaca and
Paphos.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

Report on other legal requirements
Pursuant to the additional requirements of the Auditors and Statutory Audits of Annual and Consolidated Accounts Laws
of 2009 and 2013, we report the following:
•• We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit.
•• In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination of
these books.
•• The consolidated financial statements are in agreement with the books of account.
•• In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, in the manner so required.
•• In our opinion, the information given in the report of the Board of Directors is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements.

Other matter
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with
Section 34 of the Auditors and Statutory Audits of Annual and Consolidated Accounts Laws of 2009 and 2013 and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whose knowledge this report may come to.

Yiangos Kaponides
Certified Public Accountant and Registered Auditor
for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited
Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors
Limassol, 08 April 2015
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Consolidated statement of financial position
for the year ended 31 december 2014
(IN THOUSANDS OF RUSSIAN ROUBLES, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)
Notes

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Cash and cash equivalents

3

10,316,313

2,672,764

Short-term investments

4

8,863,789

15,266,561

Trade and other receivables

5

2,347,714

1,771,235

Prepayments

6

2,085,599

824,622

ASSETS
Current assets

Current income tax receivable
Other taxes receivable
Inventories
Short-term biological assets

22,119

45,433

7

1,310,407

1,487,408

8

15,508,659

13,865,425

10

3,454,937

2,212,805

43,909,537

38,146,253

29,519,968

28,365,116

32,846

36,600

24

1,191,832

1,175,578

6

2,669,373

2,334,610

-

2,580

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

9

Inventories intended for construction
Goodwill
Advances paid for property, plant and equipment
Advances paid for intangible assets
Long-term biological assets

10

1,793,059

1,553,595

Long-term investments

11

929,129

870,815

Investments in associates

12

87,407

-

Deferred income tax assets

25

1,016,544

353,674

338,699

289,058

17,373

2,404

Other intangible assets
Restricted cash

3

Total non-current assets

37,596,230

34,984,030

Total assets

81,505,767

73,130,283

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings

14

12,499,623

18,144,254

Trade and other payables

15

2,772,385

2,352,775

475,850

346,980

16

1,706,091

1,327,263

17,453,949

22,171,272

Current income tax payable
Other taxes payable
Total current liabilities

// 97

CONTENTS

Notes

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Long-term borrowings

14

9,806,306

14,368,799

Government grants

17

1,962,562

1,735,151

Deferred income tax liability

25

Non-current liabilities

463,649

290,028

Total non-current liabilities

12,232,517

16,393,978

Total liabilities

29,686,466

38,565,250

9,734

9,734

Equity
Share capital

13

Treasury shares

13

(505,880)

(461,847)

Share premium

13

10,557,573

10,557,573

Share-based payment reserve

26

1,291,198

1,236,775

Retained earnings

40,159,833

23,214,348

Equity attributable to owners of ROS AGRO PLC

51,512,458

34,556,583

306,843

8,450

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

51,819,301

34,565,033

Total liabilities and equity

81,505,767

73,130,283

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 8 April 2015
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Basov M.D.

Richard Smyth

Director of ROS AGRO PLC

Director of ROS AGRO PLC
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 december 2014
(IN THOUSANDS OF RUSSIAN ROUBLES, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

Notes

Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2013

Sales

18

59,112,243

36,489,827

Gain on revaluation of biological assets and agricultural produce

10

12,243,734

3,489,463

Cost of sales

19

(47,649,710)

(31,296,627)

Gains less losses from trading sugar derivatives

29

375,305

175,407

24,081,572

8,858,070

Gross profit

Distribution and selling expenses

20

(4,472,174)

(2,992,953)

General and administrative expenses

21

(2,991,315)

(2,623,918)

Share-based remuneration

26

(54,423)

(178,280)

Other operating income/(expenses), net

22

272,884

(116,537)

16,836,544

2,946,382

(154,478)

(1,380,376)

1,010,951

2,022,986

Operating profit

Interest expense

23

Interest income
Losses less gains from bonds held for trading

(1,397,230)

-

Other financial income/(expenses), net

23

4,549,548

(56,272)

Share of results of associates

12

46,579

-

20,891,914

3,532,720

(714,935)

(330,963)

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

25

Profit for the year

20,176,979

3,201,757

Total comprehensive income for the year

20,176,979

3,201,757

20,134,178

3,201,534

42,801

223

20,176,979

3,201,757

20,134,178

3,201,534

Profit is attributable to:
Owners of ROS AGRO PLC
Non-controlling interest
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income is attributable to:
Owners of ROS AGRO PLC
Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per ordinary share for profit attributable to the owners of ROS AGRO PLC,
basic and diluted (in RR per share)

27

42,801

223

20,176,979

3,201,757

854.59

135.67
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 december 2014
(IN THOUSANDS OF RUSSIAN ROUBLES, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

Notes

Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2014

20,891,914

3,532,720

3,497,032

3,270,861

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Government grants

19,20,21
23

2,288,135

3,623,968

17,22,23

(2,821,533)

(2,918,386)

(1,010,951)

(2,022,986)
169,518

Interest income
Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss/ (gain) on initial recognition of agricultural produce, net
Change in provision for net realisable value of inventory

22

(5,038)

10,19

(786,007)

237,660

19

485,767

(30,090)

(46,579)

-

Share of results of associates
Gain from buy-out of promissory notes issued
Revaluation of biological assets, net
Change in provision for impairment of receivables and prepayments
Foreign exchange gain, net

22

(41,094)

-

10,19

(1,807,678)

(504,253)

20

46,120

126,144

22,23

(4,694,826)

(37,534)

Share based remuneration

26

54,423

178,280

Write-off of work in progress

22

-

55,229

Lost harvest write-off

22

5,530

31,071

Losses less gains from bonds held for trading

1,397,230

-

22

(454)

18,714

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net

22

179,405

-

Loss on other investments

22

7,747

191,480

(85,977)

23,228

17,553,166

5,945,624

Change in provision for impairment of advances paid for property, plant and equipment

Other non-cash and non-operating expenses, net
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Change in trade and other receivables and prepayments

(963,488)

(779,457)

104,214

1,117,390

(1,015,731)

(406,568)

Change in biological assets

268,410

(605,257)

Change in trade and other payables

370,457

(265,517)

Change in other taxes payable

413,331

(102,899)

Cash generated from operations

16,730,359

4,903,316

Income tax paid

(1,053,641)

(123,602)

Net cash from operating activities

15,676,718

4,779,714

Change in other taxes receivable
Change in inventories
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Notes

Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2014

(5,206,184)

(4,232,694)

(151,993)

(96,904)

44,135

72,300

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of other intangible assets
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of inventories intended for construction

(1,530)

(16,335)

Proceeds from cash withdrawals from deposits

16,604,773

32,345,354

Deposits placed with banks

(4,141,047)

(18,346,112)
-

Purchases of associates

6,12

(377,493)

Investments in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

6,24

(498,692)

-

(5,244,138)

-

Purchases of bonds
Proceeds from sales of bonds
Purchases of promissory notes
Proceeds from sales of promissory notes
Loans given
Loans repaid
Movement in restricted cash
Interest received
Dividends received
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed

22

134,904

-

(1,700,000)

(2,900,000)

2,800,000

3,068,267

(2,455,350)

(1,122,198)

1,847,683

907,674

(14,970)

88,708

1,239,633

2,152,715

1,146

18

(275)

-

-

3,289

2,880,602

11,924,082

Proceeds from borrowings

15,875,925

16,157,846

Repayment of borrowings

(27,169,213)

(31,891,024)

(2,295,898)

(4,127,094)

6,758

-

(7,289)

(261,084)

Proceeds from sales of other investments
Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid
Sale of non-controlling interest

13

Purchases of non-controlling interest

13

Dividends paid
Proceeds from government grants
Purchases of treasury shares

13

Net cash used in financing activities
Net effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

2,877,615

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

(3,206,582)

(107)

3,048,946

4,049,217

(44,033)

-

(13,791,386)

(16,072,246)

21,347
7,643,549

652,897

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

3

2,672,764

2,019,867

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

3

10,316,313

2,672,764
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 december 2014
(IN THOUSANDS OF RUSSIAN ROUBLES, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

Attributable to owners of ROS AGRO PLC
Notes

Balance at 1 January 2013
Total comprehensive income for the year

Treasury shares

Share premium

9,734

(461,847)

10,557,573

-

-

-

Share based remuneration

26

-

-

Acquisition of non-controlling interest

13

-

-

-

Balance at 31 December 2013

9,734

(461,847)

10,557,573

Balance at 1 January 2014

9,734

(461,847)

10,557,573

-

-

-

-

(44,033)

-

Total comprehensive income for the year
Purchases of treasury shares

13

Share based remuneration

26

Dividends declared

-

-

-

-

-

-

Recognition of non-controlling interests on acquisition of subsidiaries

24

-

-

-

Derecognition of non-controlling interests on disposal of subsidiaries

22

-

-

-

Acquisition of non-controlling interest

13

-

-

-

Disposal of ownership interests in subsidiaries without loss of control

13

-

-

-

9,734

(505,880)

10,557,573

Balance at 31 December 2014
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Attributable to owners of ROS AGRO PLC
Share-based payment reserve

Retained earnings*

Total

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

1,058,495

20,211,049

31,375,004

71,076

31,446,080

-

3,201,534

3,201,534

223

3,201,757

178,280

-

178,280

-

178,280

-

(198,235)

(198,235)

(62,849)

(261,084)

1,236,775

23,214,348

34,556,583

8,450

34,565,033

1,236,775

23,214,348

34,556,583

8,450

34,565,033

-

20,134,178

20,134,178

42,801

20,176,979

-

-

(44,033)

-

(44,033)

54,423

-

54,423

-

54,423

-

(3,000,029)

(3,000,029)

(788)

(3,000,817)

-

-

-

79

79
27,098

-

-

-

27,098

-

(3)

(3)

(528)

(531)

-

(188,661)

(188,661)

229,731

41,070

1,291,198

40,159,833

51,512,458

306,843

51,819,301

* Retained earnings in the separate financial statements of the Company is the only reserve that is available for distribution in the form of dividends.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 december 2014
(IN THOUSANDS OF RUSSIAN ROUBLES, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

1. Background
Description of the business

•• cultivation of pigs;
•• processing of raw sugar and production of sugar from

These consolidated financial statements were prepared

sugar-beet;

for ROS AGRO PLC (hereinafter the “Company”) and its

•• vegetable oil extraction and processing.

subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively with the Company,

The registered office of ROS AGRO PLC is at 8 Mykinon,

the “Group”). The Group is ultimately controlled by

CY-1065, Nicosia, Cyprus.

Mr. Vadim Moshkovich (hereinafter the “Owner”), who

The Group operates in the Russian Federation except for

controls 75.00% of issued shares in ROS AGRO PLC as at

financial derivatives trading activity (Note 29).

31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

Principal subsidiaries of the Group included into these

The principal activities of the Group are:

consolidated financial statements are listed below.

•• agricultural production (cultivation of sugar-beet, grain

The Group’s ownership share is the same as voting share.

and other agricultural crops);

Group’s share in the share capital, %
Entity

Principal activity

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

OJSC Rusagro Group

Investment holding, financing

100

100

LLC Group of Companies Rusagro

Investment holding, financing

100

100

Sugar division trading company, sales operations

100

100

OJSC Valuikisakhar

Beet and raw sugar processing

99.9

99.9

OJSC Sugar Plant Znamensky

Beet and raw sugar processing

89.2

99.2

Limeniko Trade and Invest Limited

Financial derivatives trading

100

100

OJSC Fats and Oil Integrated Works

Oil processing

100

100

CJSC Samaraagroprompererabotka

Oil extraction

100

100

Sugar segment
LLC Rusagro-Sakhar

Oil segment

Meat segment
LLC Belgorodsky Bacon
(former OJSC Belgorodsky Bacon)

Cultivation of pigs

100

100

LLC Tambovsky Bacon

Cultivation of pigs

100

100

Other agriculture segment
LLC Rusagro-Invest

Agriculture

100

100

LLC Agrotehnology (former OJSC Agrotehnology)

Agriculture

100

100

Grain elevator

100

99.4

LLC Zherdevsky Elevator
(former OJSC Zherdevsky Elevator)
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Operating Environment of the Group

increased trading spreads. Subsequent to 31 December 2014:
•• the CBRF exchange rate fluctuated between 55.3328

The Russian Federation displays certain characteristics of an

Russian Roubles per USD and 69.6640 Russian Roubles

emerging market. Its economy is particularly sensitive to

per USD; between 60.4124 Russian Roubles per EUR and

oil and gas prices. The legal, tax and regulatory frameworks

78.7900 Russian Roubles per EUR.

continue to develop and are subject to frequent changes and

•• Russia's credit rating was downgraded by Fitch Ratings

varying interpretations (Note 30). During 2014 the Russian

in January 2015 to BBB-, whilst Standard & Poor’s cut it

economy was negatively impacted by a decline in oil prices

to BB+ and Moody’s Investors Service decrease it to Ba1,

and ongoing political tension in the region and international

putting it below investment grade for the first time in a

sanctions against certain Russian companies and individuals.

decade. Fitch Ratings still have Russia as investment

As a result during 2014:

grade. However, all these rating agencies indicated

•• the Central Bank of the Russian Federation (“CBRF”)

a negative outlook, meaning further downgrades are

exchange rate fluctuated between 32.6587 Russian
Roubles per USD and 56,2584 Russian Roubles per USD;
between 45.0559 Russian Roubles per EUR and 68.3427
Russian Roubles per EUR
•• the CBRF key interest rate increased from 5.5% p.a. to
17.0% p.a. including an overnight increase from 10.5%
p.a. to 17.0% p.a. on 17 December 2014;
•• the Russian Trade System (hereinafter RTS stock
exchange) index declined from 1 443 on 1 January 2014
to 791 on 31 December 2014;
•• access to international financial markets to raise funding
was limited for certain entities; and

possible.
•• the RTS stock exchange index ranged between 791 on
31 December 2014 to 966 on 7 April 2015;
•• bank lending activity decreased as banks are reassessing
the business models of their borrowers and their ability to
withstand the increased lending and exchange rates; and
•• the CBRF key refinancing interest rate decreased from
17.0% p.a. on 17 December to 14 % p.a. on 16 March
2015.
These events may have a further significant impact on
the Group’s future operations and financial position,
the effect of which is difficult to predict. The future economic

•• capital outflows increased compared to prior years.

and regulatory situation and its impact on the Group’s

The financial markets continue to be volatile and are

operations may differ from management’s current

characterised by frequent significant price movements and

expectations.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the initial recognition

These consolidated financial statements have been

of financial instruments based on fair value, financial

prepared in accordance with International Financial

instruments categorized as at fair value through profit

Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European

or loss, revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets,

Union (EU) and the requirements of the Cyprus

biological assets that are presented at fair value less

Companies Law, Cap.113. The consolidated financial

point-of-sale costs and agricultural produce which is
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measured at fair value less point-of-sale costs at the point

the experience with similar assets. The future economic

of harvest. The Group entities registered in Russia keep

benefits embodied in the assets are consumed principally

their accounting records in Russian Roubles in accordance

through use. However, other factors, such as technical

with Russian accounting regulations (RAR). These

or commercial obsolescence and wear and tear, often result

consolidated financial statements significantly differ from

in the diminution of the economic benefits embodied

the financial statements prepared for statutory purposes

in the assets. Management assesses the remaining useful

under RAR in that they reflect certain adjustments,

lives in accordance with the current technical conditions

which are necessary to present the Group’s consolidated

of the assets and estimated period during which the assets

financial position, results of operations, and cash flows

are expected to earn benefits for the Group. The following

in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU.

primary factors are considered: (a) expected usage

As of the date of the authorisation of these consolidated

of the assets; (b) expected physical wear and tear, which

financial statements all International Financial Reporting

depends on operational factors and maintenance programme;

Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards

and (c) technical or commercial obsolescence arising from

Board (IASB) and effective as at 1 January 2014 have been

changes in market conditions. Were the estimated useful

adopted by the EU through the endorsement procedure

lives to differ by 10% from management’s estimates,

established by the European Commission.

the impact on the depreciation charge for the year would be

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

to increase it by RR 387,279 (2013: RR 360,619) or decrease

of these consolidated financial statements are set out

it by RR 336,658 (2013: RR 304,438) (Note 2.6).

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Critical accounting estimates
and judgements in applying accounting
policies

Fair value of livestock
and agricultural produce
Fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of livestock
at the end of each reporting period was determined using
the physiological characteristics of the animals, management
expectations concerning the potential productivity and

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect

market prices of animals with similar characteristics.

the amounts recognized in the financial statements and

Fair value of the Group’s bearer livestock is determined by

the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities within

using valuation techniques, as there were no observable

the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are

market prices near the reporting date for pigs and cows

continuously evaluated and are based on management’s

of the same physical conditions, such as weight and age.

experience and other factors, including expectations

The fair value of the bearer livestock was determined based

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under

on the expected quantity of remaining farrows and calves

the circumstances. Management also makes certain

for pigs and cows, respectively, and the market prices

judgements, apart from those involving estimations,

of the young animals. The fair value of mature animals is

in the process of applying the accounting policies. Judgements

determined based on the expected cash flow from the sale

that have the most significant effect on the amounts

of the animals at the end of the production usage. The cash

recognised in the consolidated financial statements, and

flow was calculated based on the actual prices of sales

estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to

of culled animals from the Group’s entities to independent

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

processing enterprises taking place near the reporting

reporting period include:

date, and the expected weight of the animals. Future cash
flows were discounted to the reporting date at a current

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

market-determined pre-tax rate. In the fair value calculation

The estimation of the useful lives of items of property,

of the immature animals of bearer livestock management

plant and equipment is a matter of judgement based on

considered the expected culling rate.

// 106

I     ROS AGRO PLC International Financial Reporting Standards Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 and Independent Auditor’s Report    I

Key inputs used in the fair value measurement of bearer
livestock of the Group were as follows:

31 December 2014

Length of production usage in calves / farrows
Market prices for comparable bearer livestock in the same region
(in Russian Roubles/kg, excl. VAT)

31 December 2013

Cows

Pigs (sows)

Cows

Pigs (sows)

5

5

5

5

166

284

122

229

Should the key assumptions used in determination of fair

livestock as at the reporting dates would be higher or lower

value of bearer livestock have been 10% higher/lower with

by the following amounts:

all other variables held constant, the fair value of the bearer
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

10% increase

10% decrease

10% increase

10% decrease

2,439

(2,981)

2,633

(2,995)

11,190

(11,190)

14,934

(14,934)

38,114

(19,368)

25,185

(13,192)

109,803

(109,803)

97,102

(97,102)

Cows
Length of production usage in calves
Market prices for comparable bearer livestock in the same region
Pigs
Length of production usage in farrows
Market prices for comparable bearer livestock in the same region

The fair value of consumable livestock (pigs) is determined

livestock as at 31 December 2014 would be higher/lower by

based on the market prices multiplied by the livestock

RR 296,596 (31 December 2013: RR 186,678).

weight at the end of each reporting period, adjusted for

The fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs for

the expected culling rates. The market price of consumable

agricultural produce at the time of harvesting was calculated

pigs being the key input used in the fair value measurement

based on quantities of crops harvested and the prices on

was 99 Russian Roubles per kilogram, excluding VAT, as at

deals that took place in the region of location on or about

31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: 62 Russian Roubles

the moment of harvesting and was adjusted for estimated

per kilogram, excluding VAT).

point-of-sale costs at the time of harvesting. The average

Should the market prices used in determination of fair value

market prices (Russian Roubles/tonne, excluding VAT)

of consumable livestock have been 10% higher/lower with all

used for fair value measurement of harvested crops were

other variables held constant, the fair value of the consumable

as follows:

2014

2013

Sugar beet

2,034

1,421

Winter wheat

5,069

5,163

Barley

4,301

5,243

Sunflower

11,404

9,453

Pea

7,500

5,909

Corn

5,196

4,489

17,186

17,414

Soya bean

Should the market prices used in determination of fair value

in 2014 would be higher/lower by RR 926,545 (2013: RR

of harvested crops have been 10% higher/lower with all other

851,390).

variables held constant, the fair value of the crops harvested
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Impairment test of property, plant and
equipment
Changes in the operating environment of the Group (Note1)

2.3 Foreign currency and translation
methodology

were identified by management as impairment indicators,

Functional and presentation currency

and so the Group estimated recoverable amounts of property,

The functional currency of the Group’s consolidated

plant and equipment of each of its cash generating

entities is the Russian Rouble (RR), which is the currency

units (CGUs) as at 31 December 2014 based on value-in-

of the primary economic environment in which

use calculations (as of 31 December 2013 management

the Group operates. The Russian Rouble has been chosen

determined that there were no indicators that would

as the presentation currency for these consolidated financial

necessitate performing an impairment test of property, plant

statements.

and equipment and intangible assets).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Translation of foreign currency items into
functional currency

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have

Russian Roubles at the official exchange rate of the Central

been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These

Bank of the Russian Federation (CBRF) at the date

calculations require the use of estimates as further detailed

of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities

in Note 24. No Impairment was recognized during the year.

denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate

Deferred income tax asset recognition

ruling at that date.

The recognised deferred tax asset represents income taxes

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from

recoverable through future deductions from taxable profits

the settlement of the transactions and from the translation

and is recorded in the statement of financial position.

of monetary assets and liabilities at year-end exchange rates

Deferred income tax assets are recorded to the extent that

are recognised in profit or loss.

realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The future
taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits that are

2.4 Group accounting

probable in the future are based on a medium-term business
plan prepared by management and extrapolated results

Consolidation

thereafter. The business plan is based on management

Subsidiaries are those investees, including structured

expectations that are believed to be reasonable under

entities, that the Group controls because the Group (i) has

the circumstances. The key assumptions in the business plan

power to direct relevant activities of the investees that

are EBITDA margin and pre-tax discount rate (Notes 24, 25).

significantly affect their returns, (ii) has exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investees,

Tax legislation

and (iii) has the ability to use its power over the investees

Russian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to

to affect the amount of investor’s returns. The existence

varying interpretations (Note 30).

and effect of substantive rights, including substantive
potential voting rights, are considered when assessing
whether the Group has power over another entity. For a right
to be substantive, the holder must have practical ability
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to exercise that right when decisions about the direction

arrangements but excludes acquisition related costs such

of the relevant activities of the investee need to be made.

as advisory, legal, valuation and similar professional

The Group may have power over an investee even when it

services. Transaction costs related to the acquisition and

holds less than majority of voting power in an investee. In

incurred for issuing equity instruments are deducted from

such a case, the Group assesses the size of its voting rights

equity; transaction costs incurred for issuing debt as part

relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other

of the business combination are deducted from the carrying

vote holders to determine if it has de-facto power over

amount of the debt and all other transaction costs associated

the investee. Protective rights of other investors, such

with the acquisition are expensed.

as those that relate to fundamental changes of investee’s

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains

activities or apply only in exceptional circumstances,

on transactions between group companies are eliminated;

do not prevent the Group from controlling an investee.

unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the cost cannot be

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which

recovered. The Company and all of its subsidiaries use uniform

control is transferred to the Group (acquisition date) and are

accounting policies consistent with the Group’s policies.

deconsolidated from the date on which control ceases.

Non-controlling interest is that part of the net results and

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account

of the equity of a subsidiary attributable to interests which

for the acquisition of subsidiaries other than those acquired

are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company.

from parties under common control. Identifiable assets

Non-controlling interest forms a separate component

acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed

of the Group’s equity.

in a business combination are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-

Associates

controlling interest.

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant

The Group measures non-controlling interest on a

influence (directly or indirectly), but not control, generally

transaction by transaction basis, either at: (a) fair value, or (b)

accompanying a shareholding of between 20 and 50 percent

the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of net

of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted

assets of the acquiree.

for using the equity method of accounting and are initially

Goodwill is measured by deducting the fair value of net

recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased

assets of the acquiree from the aggregate of the fair value

or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit

of the consideration transferred for the acquiree, the amount

or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.

of non-controlling interest in the acquiree and fair value

Dividends received from associates reduce the carrying

of an interest in the acquiree held immediately before

value of the investment in associates. Other post-acquisition

the acquisition date. Any negative amount (“negative

changes in the Group’s share of net assets of an associate

goodwill, bargain purchase”) is recognised in profit or loss,

are recognised as follows: (i) the Group’s share of profits

after management reassesses whether it identified all

or losses of associates is recorded in the consolidated profit

the assets acquired and all liabilities and contingent liabilities

or loss for the year as the share of results of associates,

assumed and reviews appropriateness of their measurement.

(ii) the Group’s share of other comprehensive income is

The consideration transferred for the acquiree is measured

recognised in other comprehensive income and presented

at the fair value of the assets given up, equity instruments

separately, (iii); all other changes in the Group’s share

issued and liabilities incurred or assumed, including fair

of the carrying value of net assets of associates are

value of assets or liabilities from contingent consideration

recognised in profit or loss within the share of results
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of associates.

goodwill, and the consideration for the acquisition is

However, when the Group’s share of losses in an associate

accounted for in these consolidated financial statements

equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any

as an adjustment to retained earnings within equity.

other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

Disposals of subsidiaries and associates

payments on behalf of the associate.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its

any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair

associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest

value at the date when control is lost, with the change

in the associates; unrealised losses are also eliminated

in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value

unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment

is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently

of the asset transferred.

accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint

The cost of an associate acquired in stages is measured

venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously

as the sum of the consideration paid for each purchase plus a

recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that

share of investee’s profits and other equity movements. Any

entity, are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed

acquisition-related costs are treated as part of the investment

of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts

in the associate.

previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Purchases of non-controlling interests

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but

The Group applies economic entity model to account

significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share

for transactions with owners of non-controlling interest.

of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive

The difference, if any, between the carrying amount of a non-

income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

controlling interest acquired and the purchase consideration
is recorded as capital transaction in the statement of changes

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

in equity.
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less

Purchases of subsidiaries from parties under
common control

accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, if any.

Business combinations involving entities under common

less provision for impairment, if required.

control (ultimately controlled by the same party, before

Costs of minor repairs and maintenance are expensed when

and after the business combination, and that control is not

incurred. Cost of replacing a major part or component

transitory) are accounted for using the predecessor basis

of property, plant and equipment items is capitalized and

of accounting. Under this method the consolidated financial

the replaced part is retired.

statements of the acquiree are included in the consolidated

Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated

financial statements from the beginning of the earliest

depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements.

period presented or, if later, the date when common control

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing

was established. The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary

proceeds with the carrying amount and are included

transferred under common control are accounted for

in operating profit or loss for the year within other operating

at the predecessor entity’s IFRS carrying amounts using

income and expenses.

uniform accounting policies on the assumption that
the Group was in existence from the date when common
control was established. Any difference between the carrying
amount of net assets, including the predecessor entity's
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2.6 Depreciation

the fair value since little biological transformation has taken
place since initial cost incurrence due to the seasonal nature

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other than

of the crops. Unharvested crop-growing costs represent

land and assets under construction is calculated using

costs incurred to plant and maintain seed crops which

the straight-line method to allocate their cost to the residual

will be harvested during the subsequent reporting period.

values over their estimated useful lives:

Subsequent to the year-end unharvested crops are measured

Asset category

Useful life, years

Buildings

15-50

at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. A gain or loss
from the changes in the fair value less estimated point-

Constructions

5-50

of-sale costs is included as a separate line "Gain/ (loss) on

Machinery, vehicles and equipment

3-20

revaluation of biological assets and agricultural produce"

Other

4-6

above the gross profit line.
Upon harvest, grain crops, sugar beets and other plant crops

Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from

are included into inventory for further processing or for sale

the month following the date they are ready for use.

and are initially measured at their fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at the time of harvesting. A gain or loss

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that

arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair

the Group would currently obtain from disposal of the asset

value less estimated point-of-sale costs is recognised

less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already

in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its

Bearer livestock is classified as non-current assets; consumable

useful life. The residual value of an asset is nil if the Group

livestock and unharvested crops are classified as current assets

expects to use the asset until the end of its physical life.

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

2.7 Biological assets and agricultural
produce

2.8 Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment

Biological assets of the Group consist of unharvested crops

losses, if any. The Group tests goodwill for impairment

(grain crops, sugar beets and other plant crops) and livestock

at least annually and whenever there are indications that

(pigs and cows).

goodwill may be impaired. Goodwill is allocated to the cash-

Livestock is measured at their fair value less estimated

generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that

point-of-sale costs. Fair value at initial recognition is

are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business

assumed to be approximated by the purchase price incurred.

combination. Such units or groups of units represent

Point-of-sale costs include all costs that would be necessary

the lowest level at which the Group monitors goodwill and

to sell the assets. All the gross gains or loss arising from

are not larger than an operating segment. Gains or losses

initial recognition of biological assets and from changes

on disposal of an operation within a cash-generating unit

in fair-value-less-cost-to-sell of biological assets are included

to which goodwill has been allocated include the carrying

as a separate line "Gain/ (loss) on revaluation of biological

amount of goodwill associated with the operation disposed

assets and agricultural produce" above the gross profit line.

of, generally measured on the basis of the relative values

At the year-end unharvested crops are carried

of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-

at the accumulated costs incurred, which approximate

generating unit which is retained.
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2.9 Intangible assets

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,

The Group’s intangible assets other than goodwill have definite

willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair value is

useful lives and primarily include capitalised computer

the current bid price for financial assets and current asking

software, patents, trademarks and licences. Acquired computer

price for financial liabilities which are quoted in an active

software licences, patents and trademarks are capitalised on

market. For assets and liabilities with offsetting market

the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring them to use.

risks, the Group may use mid-market prices as a basis for
establishing fair values for the offsetting risk positions

Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line

and apply the bid or asking price to the net open position

method over their useful lives:

as appropriate. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted

Asset category

Useful life, years

Trademarks

5-12

in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange or other institution and those

Software licences

1-3

prices represent actual and regularly occurring market

Capitalised internal software development costs

3-5

Other licences

1-3

transactions on an arm’s length basis.
Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models

If impaired, the carrying amount of intangible assets is

or models based on recent arm’s length transactions

written down to the higher of value in use and fair value less

or consideration of financial data of the investees are

costs to sell.

used to fair value certain financial instruments for which

2.10 Impairment of non-current assets

external market pricing information is not available. Fair
value measurements are analysed by level in the fair
value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are measurements

The Group’s non-current assets except for deferred

at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

tax, biological assets and financial assets are tested for

assets or liabilities, (ii) level two measurements are

impairment in accordance with the provisions of IAS 36,

valuations techniques with all material inputs observable

Impairment of Assets. The Group makes an assessment

for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)

whether there is any indication that an asset may be

or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and (iii) level three

impaired at each reporting date, except for goodwill which is

measurements are valuations not based on solely observable

tested at least annually regardless of whether there are any

market data (that is, the measurement requires significant

indications of impairment. If any such indication exists, an

unobservable inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair

estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset is made. IAS

value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end

36 requires an impairment loss to be recognised whenever

of the reporting period.

the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly

amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher

attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial

of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not

Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash

have been incurred if the transaction had not taken place.

flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset

Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to

and from its disposal at the end of its life.

agents (including employees acting as selling agents),

2.11 Financial instruments

advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or discounts,

Financial instruments – key measurement
terms

financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs.

Depending on their classification financial instruments are

instrument was recognised at initial recognition less any

carried at fair value or amortised cost as described below.

principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial
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assets less any write-down for incurred impairment losses.

recognition is only recorded if there is a difference between

Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction

fair value and transaction price which can be evidenced by

costs deferred at initial recognition and of any premium

other observable current market transactions in the same

or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest

instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs include

method. Accrued interest income and accrued interest

only data from observable markets. Subsequently to initial

expense, including both accrued coupon and amortised

recognition financial instruments are measured as described

discount or premium (including fees deferred at origination,

below.

if any), are not presented separately and are included
in the carrying values of related items in the statement

Derecognition of financial instruments

of financial position.

The Group derecognises financial assets when (i) the assets

The effective interest method is a method of allocating

are redeemed or the rights to cash flows from the assets

interest income or interest expense over the relevant period

have otherwise expired or (ii) the Group has transferred

so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

interest rate) on the carrying amount. The effective interest

of the assets or (iii) the Group has neither transferred nor

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future

retained substantially all risks and rewards of ownership

cash payments or receipts (excluding future credit losses)

but has not retained control. Control is retained if

through the expected life of the financial instrument or a

the counterparty does not have the practical ability to

shorter period, if appropriate, to the net carrying amount

sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party

of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate

without needing to impose additional restrictions on

discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to

the sale. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s

the next interest repricing date except for the premium

obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged

or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating

or cancelled.

rate specified in the instrument, or other variables that are
amortised over the whole expected life of the instrument.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

The present value calculation includes all fees paid

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have

or received between parties to the contract that are an

two subcategories: (i) assets designated as such upon initial

integral part of the effective interest rate.

recognition, and (ii) those classified as held for trading.

not reset to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are

Trading investments are securities or other financial assets

Classification of financial instruments

which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-

The Group classified its financial instruments into

term fluctuations in price or trader’s margin, or are included

the following measurement categories: financial assets at fair

in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term trading exists.

value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial

The Group classifies financial assets into trading investments

assets and loans and receivables.

if it has an intention to sell them within a short period after
acquisition, i.e. within 1 to 3 months. Trading investments

Initial recognition and measurement
of financial instruments

also include financial derivatives. Trading investments are

A financial instrument is recognised when the Group

intentions subsequently change.

becomes a party to the contractual provisions

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

of the instrument. The Group’s financial assets and liabilities

financial assets designated irrevocably, at initial recognition,

are initially recorded at fair value plus, for instruments not

into this category. Recognition and measurement

at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable

of this category of financial assets is consistent with

transaction costs. Fair value at initial recognition is best

the above policy for trading investments. Management

evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial

designates financial assets into this category only if (a)

not reclassified out of this category even when the Group’s

// 113

CONTENTS

such classification eliminates or significantly reduces an

29). As such transactions are directly related to the core

accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise from

activity of the Group, and their results are presented

measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and

above gross profit as 'Gains less losses from trading sugar

losses on them on different bases; or (b) a group of financial

derivatives' in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

assets, financial liabilities or both is managed and its

and other comprehensive income. Management believes that

performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance

the presentation above gross profit line appropriately reflects

with a documented risk management or investment strategy,

the nature of derivative operations of the Group.

and information on that basis is regularly provided to and
reviewed by the Group’s key management personnel.

Impairment of financial assets carried
at amortised cost

Loans and receivables

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss when

Loans and receivables are unquoted non-derivative financial

incurred as a result of one or more events (“loss events”)

assets with fixed or determinable payments other than

that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial

those that the Group intends to sell in the near term. Loans

asset and which have an impact on the amount or timing

and receivables comprise accounts receivable, cash and

of the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or a

cash equivalents, restricted cash, bank deposits, unquoted

group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

promissory notes and loans issued. Loans and receivables are

If the Group determines that no objective evidence exists

initially recognised at their fair value plus transaction costs

that impairment was incurred for an individually assessed

and subsequently carried at amortised cost using effective

financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes

interest method.

the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for

Available-for-sale financial assets

impairment. The primary factors that the Group considers

Available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value.

in determining whether a financial asset is impaired are

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that

its overdue status and realisability of related collateral, if

are either designated in this category or not classified in any

any. The following other principal criteria are also used

of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets

to determine whether there is objective evidence that an

unless management intends to dispose of the investments

impairment loss has occurred:

within twelve months of the reporting date.

•• any portion or instalment is overdue and the late
payment cannot be attributed to a delay caused by

Financial liabilities
All the Group’s financial liabilities fall into the following
measurement categories: (a) held for trading which are
represented by financial derivatives and (b) other financial
liabilities. Liabilities held for trading are carried at fair
value with changes in value recognised in profit or loss for

the settlement systems;
•• the counterparty experiences a significant financial
difficulty as evidenced by its financial information that
the Group obtains;
•• the counterparty considers bankruptcy or a financial
reorganisation.

the year in the period in which they arise. Other financial

If the terms of an impaired financial asset held at amortised

liabilities are carried at amortised cost.

cost are renegotiated or otherwise modified because
of financial difficulties of the counterparty, impairment is

Presentation of results from sugar trading
derivatives

measured using the original effective interest rate before

The Group engages in raw sugar derivative trading

Impairment losses are always recognised through an

transactions through an agent on ICE Futures US primarily

allowance account to write down the asset’s carrying

in order to manage the raw sugar purchase price risk (Note

amount to the present value of expected cash flows (which
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exclude future credit losses that have not been incurred)

2.14 Prepayments

discounted at the original effective interest rate of the asset.
The calculation of the present value of the estimated

Prepayments classified as current assets represent advance

future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects

payments to suppliers for goods and services. Prepayments

the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs

for construction or acquisition of property, plant and

for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not

equipment and prepayments for intangible assets are

foreclosure is probable.

classified as non-current assets. Prepayments are carried

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment

at cost less provisions for impairment, if any. If there is

loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively

an indication that the assets, goods or services relating

to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised

to a prepayment will not be received, the carrying value

(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),

of the prepayment is written down accordingly and a

the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by

corresponding impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss

adjusting the allowance account through profit or loss for

for the year.

the year.
Uncollectible assets are written off against the related

2.15 Inventories

impairment loss provision after all the necessary procedures
to recover the asset have been completed and the amount

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable

of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries

value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis.

of amounts previously written off are credited to profit

The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises

or loss for the year.

raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity) but excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash held

of business, less selling expenses.

on demand with banks, bank deposits with original maturity

Raw materials intended for the operating activities

of less than three months, other short-term highly liquid

of the Group, finished goods and work in progress

investments with original maturities of three months or less.

are classified as current assets. Materials intended

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost

for construction are classified as non-current assets

using the effective interest method.

as “Inventories intended for construction”.

Bank deposits with original maturities at the reporting date
of more than three months and less than twelve months

2.16 Borrowings

are classified as short-term investments and are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Bank

Borrowings are recognised initially at their fair value,

deposits with original maturity at the reporting date of more

net of transaction costs incurred. In subsequent periods,

than twelve months are classified as long-term and are

borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective

carried at amortised cost.

interest method; any difference between the amount at initial

2.13 Trade and other receivables

recognition and the redemption amount is recognised
as interest expense over the period of the borrowings.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

Trade receivables are carried at amortised cost using

construction or production of assets that necessarily take

the effective interest method less provision made for

a substantial time to get ready for intended use or sale

impairment of these receivables.

(qualifying assets) are capitalised as part of the costs of those
assets.
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Capitalisation of borrowing costs continues up to the date

2.20 Income tax

when the assets are substantially ready for their use or sale.
The Group capitalises borrowing costs that could have

Income taxes have been provided for in the financial

been avoided if it had not made capital expenditure on

statements in accordance with legislation enacted

qualifying assets. Borrowing costs capitalised are calculated

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

at the Group’s average funding cost (the weighted average

The income tax charge or credit comprises current tax and

interest cost is applied to the expenditures on the qualifying

deferred tax and is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

assets), except to the extent that funds are borrowed
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

Current tax

Where this occurs, actual borrowing costs incurred less any

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to or recovered

investment income on the temporary investment of those

from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable profits

borrowings are capitalised.

or losses for the current and prior periods.

2.17 Trade and other payables

Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance

Trade and other payables are recognised when

sheet liability method, on tax losses carry forward and

the counterparty has performed its obligations under

temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets

the contract, and are carried at amortised cost using

and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated

the effective interest method.

financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not

2.18 Value added tax

accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting

Output value added tax related to sales is payable to tax

nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax balance is determined

authorities on the earlier of (a) collection of the receivables

using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially

from customers or (b) delivery of the goods or services to

enacted at the end of the reporting period and are expected to

customers. Input VAT is generally recoverable against output

apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised

VAT upon receipt of the VAT invoice. The tax authorities

or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred income

permit the settlement of VAT on a net basis. VAT related to

tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

purchases where all the specified conditions for recovery

that future taxable profit will be available against which

have not been met yet is recognised in the statement

the temporary differences can be utilised.

of financial position and disclosed separately within other

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences

taxes receivable, while input VAT that has been claimed is

arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except

netted off with the output VAT payable. Where provision has

where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is

been made for impairment of receivables, impairment loss is

controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

recorded for the gross amount of the debtor, including VAT.

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.19 Other taxes payable

The Group's uncertain tax positions are reassessed
by management at the end of each reporting period.
Liabilities are recorded for income tax positions that are

Other taxes payable comprise liabilities for taxes other

determined by management as more likely than not to

than on income outstanding at the reporting date, accrued

result in additional taxes being levied if the positions were

in accordance with legislation enacted or substantively

to be challenged by the tax authorities. The assessment

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

is based on the interpretation of tax laws that have been
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enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow

period and any known court or other rulings on such issues.

of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and

Liabilities for penalties, interest and taxes other than on

a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where

income are recognised based on management’s best estimate

the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for

of the expenditure required to settle the obligations at the end

example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement

of the reporting period.

is recognised as a separate asset but only when

2.21 Payroll costs and related
contributions

the reimbursement is virtually certain.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Wages, salaries, contributions to the Russian Federation

Revenues and related cost of sales are recognised when

state pension and social insurance funds, paid annual leave

goods are shipped and the title and significant risks and

and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits are

rewards of ownership pass to the customer in accordance

accrued in the year, in which the associated services are

with the contractual sales terms. Sales are measured

rendered by the employees of the Group.

at the fair value of consideration received or receivable
for the goods sold and services rendered, net of discounts

Pension costs

and value added taxes, and after eliminating sales between

The Group contributes to the Russian Federation state pension

the Group companies.

fund on behalf of its employees and has no obligation beyond

The amount of revenue arising from exchanges of goods

the payments made. The contribution was approximately

or services is measured at the fair value of the goods

17.6% (2013: 18.7%) of the employees’ gross pay and is

or services received, adjusted by the amount of any cash

expensed in the same period as the related salaries and wages.

or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair value

The Group does not have any other legal or constructive

of the goods or services received cannot be measured

obligation to make pension or other similar benefit payments

reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value

to its employees.

of the goods or services given up, adjusted by the amount
of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. Non-cash

Share-based payment transactions

transactions are excluded from the cash flow statement.

The Group accounts for share-based compensation

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

in accordance with IFRS 2, Share-based Payment. The fair value

using the effective interest method.

of the employee services received in exchange for the grant

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

of the equity instruments is recognized as an expense. The total

payment is established.

amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the instruments granted

2.24 Segment reporting

measured at the grant date. For share-based compensation
made to employees by shareholders, an increase to share-based

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

payment reserve in equity is recorded equal to the associated

with the internal reporting provided to the Group’s chief

compensation expense each period.

operating decision maker. Segments whose revenue, result

2.22 Provisions for liabilities and charges

or assets are ten percent or more of all the segments are
reported separately.

Provisions for liabilities and charges are recognised where
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
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2.25 Government grants

2.27 Offsetting

Government grants comprise compensation of interest

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount

expense under bank loans and government grants relating to

reported in the statement of financial position only when

costs and property, plant and equipment.

there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised

Government grants relating to property, plant and

amounts, and there is an intention to either settle on a

equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred

net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

government grants and are credited to profit or loss on a

simultaneously.

straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Government grants relating to costs are deferred and

2.28 Operating leases

recognised in profit or loss as other operating income over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they

Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not

are intended to compensate.

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental

Compensation of interest expense under bank loans is credited

to ownership from the lessor to the Group, the total lease

to profit or loss over the periods of the related interest expense

payments are charged to profit or loss for the year on a

unless this interest was capitalised into the carrying value

straight-line basis over the lease term. The lease term

of assets in which case it is included in non-current liabilities

is the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has

as government grants and credited to profit or loss on a

contracted to lease the asset together with any further

straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

terms for which the lessee has the option to continue to

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate

lease the asset, with or without further payment, when

of interest is treated as a government grant. The loan

at the inception of the lease it is reasonably certain that

is recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 39

the lessee will exercise the option (Note 31).

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
The benefit of the below-market rate of interest is measured

2.29 Share capital and share premium

as the difference between the initial carrying value
of the loan determined in accordance with IAS 39 and

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs

the proceeds received.

directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown

Government grants are recognized at their fair value when

in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Any

there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received

excess of the fair value of consideration receivable over

and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

the par value of shares issued is recorded as share premium

Government grants cash inflows are presented in financing

in equity. Share premium can only be resorted to for limited

activities section of the consolidated statement of cash

purposes, which do not include the distribution of dividends,

flows.

and is otherwise subject to the provisions of the Cyprus

2.26 Dividends

Companies Law on reduction of share capital.

2.30 Treasury shares

Dividends are recorded as a liability and deducted from
equity in the period in which they are declared and approved,

Where the Company or its subsidiaries purchase

appropriately authorised and are no longer at the discretion

the Company’s equity instruments, the consideration paid,

of the Group. Any dividends declared after the reporting

including any directly attributable incremental costs, net

period and before the financial statements are authorised for

of income taxes, is deducted from equity attributable to

issue are disclosed in the subsequent events note.

the Company’s owners until the equity instruments are
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cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such equity

disclose information that helps financial statement readers

instruments are subsequently sold or reissued, any

to evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated

consideration received, net of any directly attributable

with the entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint

incremental transaction costs and the related income tax

arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities. To

effects, is included in equity attributable to the Company’s

meet these objectives, the new standard requires disclosures

owners.

in a number of areas, including significant judgments

2.31 Amendments of the consolidated
financial statements after issue

and assumptions made in determining whether an entity
controls, jointly controls, or significantly influences its
interests in other entities, extended disclosures on share
of non-controlling interests in group activities and cash

Any changes to these consolidated financial statements after

flows, summarised financial information of subsidiaries with

issue require approval of the Group’s management who

material non-controlling interests, and detailed disclosures

authorised these consolidated financial statements for issue.

of interests in unconsolidated structured entities.

2.32 Adoption of new or revised standards
and interpretations

IAS 27, Separate Financial Statements, (revised in May
2011 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013), was changed and its objective is now to
prescribe the accounting and disclosure requirements for

During the current year the Group adopted all the new

investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

when an entity prepares separate financial statements.

(IFRS) that are relevant to its operations and are effective

The guidance on control and consolidated financial

for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2014. This

statements was replaced by IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial

adoption did not have a material effect on the accounting

Statements.

policies of the Group with the exception of the following:

Transition Guidance Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements (issued in May

IFRS 12 (issued on 28 June 2012 and effective for annual

2011 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after

periods beginning 1 January 2013). The amendments clarify

1 January 2013), replaces all of the guidance on control and

the transition guidance in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial

consolidation in IAS 27 “Consolidated and separate financial

Statements. Entities adopting IFRS 10 should assess

statements” and SIC-12 “Consolidation - special purpose

control at the first day of the annual period in which IFRS

entities”. IFRS 10 changes the definition of control so that

10 is adopted, and if the consolidation conclusion under

the same criteria are applied to all entities to determine

IFRS 10 differs from IAS 27 and SIC 12, the immediately

control. This definition is supported by extensive application

preceding comparative period (that is, year 2012 for a

guidance.

calendar year-end entity that adopts IFRS 10 in 2013)

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities, (issued

is restated, unless impracticable. The amendments also

in May 2011 and effective for annual periods beginning

provide additional transition relief in IFRS 10, IFRS 11, Joint

on or after 1 January 2013), applies to entities that have an

Arrangements, and IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other

interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate

Entities, by limiting the requirement to provide adjusted

or an unconsolidated structured entity. IFRS 12 sets out

comparative information only for the immediately preceding

the required disclosures for entities reporting under

comparative period. Further, the amendments will remove

the two new standards: IFRS 10, Consolidated financial

the requirement to present comparative information for

statements, and IFRS 11, Joint arrangements, and replaces

disclosures related to unconsolidated structured entities for

the disclosure requirements currently found in IAS 28,

periods before IFRS 12 is first applied.

Investments in associates. IFRS 12 requires entities to

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (issued on 31
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October 2012 and effective for annual periods beginning

2013 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2014). The amendment introduced a definition

1 January 2015).

of an investment entity as an entity that (i) obtains funds

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and

from investors for the purpose of providing them with

interpretations are not expected to significantly affect

investment management services, (ii) commits to its

the Group’s financial statements.

investors that its business purpose is to invest funds
(iii) measures and evaluates its investments on a fair

Not yet adopted and not yet endorsed by
the European Union

value basis. An investment entity will be required to

New standards

account for its subsidiaries at fair value through profit

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (issued in July 2014

or loss, and to consolidate only those subsidiaries that

and effective for annual periods beginning on or after

provide services that are related to the entity's investment

1 January 2018)

activities. IFRS 12 was amended to introduce new

IFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts (issued in January

disclosures, including any significant judgments made

2014 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after

in determining whether an entity is an investment entity

1 January 2016).

and information about financial or other support to an

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (issued

unconsolidated subsidiary, whether intended or already

on 28 May 2014 and effective for the periods beginning on

provided to the subsidiary.

or after 1 January 2017).

IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,

Amendments

(revised in May 2011 and effective for annual periods

Amendments to IFRS 11- Accounting for Acquisitions

beginning on or after 1 January 2014).The amendment

of Interests in Joint Operations (issued on 6 May 2014

of IAS 28 resulted from the Board’s project on joint

and effective for the periods beginning on or after

ventures. When discussing that project, the Board decided

1 January 2016)

to incorporate the accounting for joint ventures using

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification

the equity method into IAS 28 because this method is

of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

applicable to both joint ventures and associates. With this

(issued on 12 May 2014 and effective for the periods

exception, other guidance remained unchanged.

beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

At the date of approval of these financial statements

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 - Agriculture: Bearer

the following financial reporting standards were issued by

plants (issued on 30 June 2014 and effective for annual

the International Accounting Standards Board but were not

periods beginning 1 January 2016)

yet effective:

Amendments to IAS 27 - Equity Method in Separate

solely for capital appreciation or investment income and

Financial Statements (issued on 12 August 2014 and

Adopted by the European Union

effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2016).

New IFRIC

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution

IFRIC 21 - Levies (issued on 20 May 2013 and effective for

of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

annual periods beginning 1 January 2015).

Venture (issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for

Amendments

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions -

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 (issued on 25

Amendments to IAS 19 (issued in November 2013 and

September 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning

effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2016)

on or after 1 January 2016).

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 (issued in December

Amendments to IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative (issued

2013 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after

in December 2014 and effective for annual periods on

1 January 2016).

or after 1 January 2016)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2013 (issued in December

Amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 - Investment
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Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (issued

standards and interpretations at the point when these are

in December 2014 and effective for annual periods on

endorsed by the European Union. As a result the impact

or after 1 January 2016).

of the above new standards and interpretations that have not

The Group management assesses the impact of new

been endorsed by the European Union has not been assessed.

3. Cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Bank balances receivable on demand

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

9,668,025

1,670,000

634,623

844,891

Brokerage accounts

7,668

154,914

Interest receivable on bank deposits within cash equivalents

5,831

2,631

Cash in hand
Total

166

328

10,316,313

2,672,764

\

The Group had the following currency positions:
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

US Dollars

8,806,460

259,592

Russian Roubles

1,509,449

2,227,235

Euro

74

185,831

Other

330

106

Total

10,316,313

2,672,764

The weighted average interest rate on cash at bank balances

irrevocable bills of credit issued for purchases of property,

presented within cash and cash equivalents was 2.49%

plant and equipment, which were included in “Restricted

at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: 5.36%).

cash” line within non-current assets in the statement

As at 31 December 2014 the cash amounts of RR 17,373

of financial position.

(31 December 2013: RR 2,404) were restricted under

4. Short-term investments
31 December 2014

Bonds held for trading

31 December 2013

6,684,189

-

Bank deposits with maturity over three months

992,200

13,467,355

Loans issued to third parties

906,522

6,383

Interest receivable on bonds held for trading

121,781

-

Financial derivatives

95,627

8,298

Interest receivable on bank deposits within short-term investments

34,463

326,621

Loans issued to related parties (Note 26)

17,515

316,840

Interest receivable on loans issued to third parties

11,409

739

83

3,888

-

1,100,000

Interest receivable on loans issued to related parties (Note 26)
Promissory notes
Interest receivable on promissory notes
Total

-

36,437

8,863,789

15,266,561
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Bonds held for trading are denominated in US dollars and

bank deposits in the amount of RR 442,200

mature in period from 2021 till 2043. Nominal interest

(31 December 2013: RR 12,350,375) were pledged

rates on bonds vary between 4.20% and 7.75% with interest

as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (Note 14).

payable every six months. Bonds held for trading were

Loans issued to third parties are denominated in Russian

acquired with the intention of generating a profit from

Roubles with interest rate varying between 9.00% and 11.0%

short-term price fluctuations and for the purpose of these

(31 December 2013: 8.0%). The weighted average interest

consolidated financial statements were classified as trading

rate on the loans issued to third parties equals 9.03%

investments with measurement at fair value through profit

(31 December 2013: 8.0%).

and loss.

Promissory notes are denominated in Russian Roubles and

In 2014 the losses less gains from bonds held for trading

represented by promissory notes of Sberbank RF (Note

revaluation amounted to RR 1,397,230 (2013: nil).

29). At 31 December 2013 promissory notes in the amount

The bank deposits within short-term investments are

of RR 1,100,000 were pledged as collateral for the Group’s

denominated in Russian Roubles. As at 31 December 2014

borrowings (Note 14).

5. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

2,033,757

1,600,014

Receivables under cession of rights

90,000

-

Receivables for sale of ownership interests in subsidiaries

41,086

-

Other

107,179

42,649

Less: provision for impairment (Note 29)

(144,897)

(95,548)

Total financial assets within trade and other receivables

2,127,125

1,547,115

Deferred charges
Total trade and other receivables

220,589

224,120

2,347,714

1,771,235

The above financial assets within trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Russian Roubles

1,001,360

1,335,996

US dollars

1,117,920

211,119

Euro

7,845

-

Total

2,127,125

1,547,115

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

24,444

14,484

Accrued

139,971

7,482

Utilised

Reconciliation of movements in the trade and other receivables impairment provision

As at 1 January 2013

(87,069)

(3,764)

As at 31 December 2013 (Note 29)

77,346

18,202

Accrued

17,717

36,098

Utilised

(1,183)

(2,872)

Disposal of subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2014 (Note 29)
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6. Prepayments
Prepayments classified as current assets represent the following advance payments:
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Prepayments under share purchase agreements

773,713

-

Prepayments to customs

651,907

228,868

Interest expenses prepaid

186,473

149,677

Prepayments for transportation services

131,618

211,539

Prepayments for advertising expenses

74,125

16,574

Prepayments for sunflower seeds

43,842

51,284

Prepayments for fuel and energy

39,613

63,322

Prepayments for fertilizers
Other prepayments
Less: provision for impairment
Total

-

22,546

247,412

151,893

(63,104)

(71,081)

2,085,599

824,622

Prepayments under share purchase agreements include

The consideration was transferred to the seller in the end

prepayments for the shares of following companies:

of 2014, but the shares were actually transferred to

In the end of 2014 the Group entered into agreement for

the Group in January 2015.

purchase of 29.00% of ordinary shares of OJSC Pugachevski

In the end of 2014 the Group entered into a preliminary

elevator for cash consideration of RR 320,000 to be paid

share purchase agreement for acquisition of 100.00%

in advance. The consideration was transferred to the seller

ownership interest of LLC “Rusagro-Primorie” for cash

in the end of 2014. As at 31 December 2014 the shares were

consideration of RR 300,000 to be paid in advance in US

not yet transferred to the Group.

dollar with exchange rate of 56.4940 Russian Roubles per

In the end of 2014 the Group won through the public auction

US Dollar. The consideration in the amount of RR 322,242

a right to purchase 100.00% ownership interest of the share

was transferred to the seller in the end of 2014. The main

capital of OJSC “Experimental entity of Primorskaya

agreement was signed in February 2015.

State Agricultural Academy” (OJSC “Uchkhoz PGSKHA”)

Reconciliation of movements in the prepayments

for cash consideration in the amount of RR 131,471.

impairment provision
2014

2013

As at 1 January

71,081

94,069

Reversed

(7,695)

(21,309)

(282)

(1,679)

63,104

71,081

Utilised
As at 31 December

As at 31 December 2014 prepayments classified as noncurrent assets and included in “Advances paid for property,
plant and equipment” line in the statement of financial
position in the amount of RR 2,669,373 (31 December 2013:
RR 2,334,610) represent advance payments for construction
works and purchases of production equipment.
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7. Other taxes receivable
Value added tax receivable
Other taxes receivable

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

1,463,020

1,484,827

2,065

2,581

Less: provision for impairment

(154,678)

-

Total

1,310,407

1,487,408

8. Inventories
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Raw materials

6,906,165

6,033,844

Finished goods

7,164,295

6,481,945

Work in progress

1,916,237

1,354,577

Less: provision for write-down to net realisable value

(478,038)

(4,941)

15,508,659

13,865,425

Total

9. Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings

Machinery, vehicles
and equipment

Constructions

Assets under
construction

Other

Total

Cost (Note 2.5)
As at 1 January 2013

13,696,611

17,433,983

1,844,827

5,546,887

185,260

38,707,568

Additions

71,130

787,122

1,225

3,816,409

547

4,676,433

Transfers

4,741,330

2,213,580

1,384,770

(8,342,813)

3,133

-

Disposals
As at 31 December 2013

(311,461)

(329,552)

(12,338)

(1,374)

(6,335)

(661,060)

18,197,610

20,105,133

3,218,484

1,019,109

182,605

42,722,941

(2,579,254)

(8,133,690)

(423,438)

-

(117,739)

(11,254,121)

(787,101)

(2,509,709)

(195,076)

-

(18,956)

(3,510,842)

Accumulated depreciation (Note 2.6)
As at 1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Disposals

152,144

241,937

7,730

-

5,327

407,138

As at 31 December 2013

(3,214,211)

(10,401,462)

(610,784)

-

(131,368)

(14,357,825)

Net book value as at 31 December 2013

14,983,399

9,703,671

2,607,700

1,019,109

51,237

28,365,116

18,197,610

20,105,133

3,218,484

1,019,109

182,605

42,722,941

196,679

1,634,462

3,257

3,150,028

2,897

4,987,323

38,831

10,860

680

-

83

50,454

Cost (Note 2.5)
As at 1 January 2014
Additions
Acquisitions through business
combinations
Transfers

77,061

968,763

226,895

(1,277,397)

4,678

-

Disposals

(14,301)

(244,189)

(1,041)

(18,693)

(2,160)

(280,384)

Disposal through disposal of subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2014

(96,840)

(33,151)

(5,206)

(855)

(441)

(136,493)

18,399,040

22,441,878

3,443,069

2,872,192

187,662

47,343,841

(3,214,211)

(10,401,462)

(610,784)

-

(131,368)

(14,357,825)

(909,174)

(2,622,256)

(214,537)

-

(15,775)

(3,761,742)
232,419

Accumulated depreciation (Note 2.6)
As at 1 January 2014
Charge for the year
Disposals

7,106

222,410

770

-

2,133

30,279

30,331

2,241

-

424

63,275

As at 31 December 2014

(4,086,000)

(12,770,977)

(822,310)

-

(144,586)

(17,823,873)

Net book value as at 31 December 2014

14,313,040

9,670,901

2,620,759

2,872,192

43,076

29,519,968

Disposal through disposal of subsidiaries
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At 31 December 2014 property, plant and equipment with

modernization programme on the Group’s sugar plants with

a net book value of RR 9,609,240 (31 December 2013:

due date in August 2015

RR 8,905,057) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s

During the reporting period the Group capitalised within

borrowings (Note 14).

assets under construction interest expense of RR 674 (2013:

As at 31 December 2014 the assets under construction

RR 228,624). The average capitalisation rate was 9.65%

relates mainly to the construction of slaughter house

(2013: 10.05%).

in Tambov region with due date in May 2015 and

10. Biological assets
The fair value of biological assets belongs to level 3

during the year ended 31 December 2014. The reconciliation

measurements in the fair value hierarchy. Pricing model is

of changes in biological assets between the beginning and

used as a valuation technique for biological assets fair value

the end of the year can be presented as follows:

measurement. There were no changes in valuation technique
Short-term biological assets

As at 1 January 2013
Increase due to purchases and gain arising from cost inputs

Consumable livestock, pigs

Unharvested crops

Total

748,657

495,472

1,244,129

6,931,985

5,692,430

12,624,415

-

1,709,015

1,709,015

Gain on initial recognition of agricultural produce
Lost harvest write-off (Note 22)

-

(31,071)

(31,071)

(7,635,349)

(7,527,862)

(15,163,211)

Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs

1,829,528

-

1,829,528

As at 31 December 2013

1,874,821

337,984

2,212,805

Increase due to purchases and gain arising from cost inputs

9,687,028

5,593,220

15,280,248

-

2,870,540

2,870,540

Decrease due to harvest and sales of the assets

Gain on initial recognition of agricultural produce
Lost harvest write-off (Note 22)

-

(5,530)

(5,530)

(17,200,766)

(8,360,611)

(25,561,377)

Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs

8,658,251

-

8,658,251

As at 31 December 2014

3,019,334

435,603

3,454,937

Decrease due to harvest and sales of the assets

Bearer livestock
Long-term biological assets

As at 1 January 2013
Increases due to purchases and breeding costs of growing livestock
Decreases due to sales
Loss arising from changes in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs
As at 31 December 2013
Increases due to purchases and breeding costs of growing livestock
Decreases due to sales
Disposal through disposal of subsidiaries (Note 22)
Gain arising from changes in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs
As at 31 December 2014

Pigs

Cows

1,169,064

Total

182,995

1,352,059

715,516

175,760

891,276

(508,399)

(132,261)

(640,660)

(8,772)

(40,308)

(49,080)

1,367,409

186,186

1,553,595

654,646

79,131

733,777

(1,044,986)

(98,869)

(1,143,855)
(65,401)

-

(65,401)

688,015

26,928

714,943

1,665,084

127,975

1,793,059

In 2014 the aggregate gain on initial recognition
of agricultural produce and from the change in fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs of biological assets amounted to
RR 12,243,734 (2013: RR 3,489,463).
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Livestock population were as follows:
31 December 2014

Cows (heads)

31 December 2013

2,802

5,543

Pigs within bearer livestock (heads)

81,251

79,121

Pigs within consumable livestock (tonnes)

32,127

30,977

Cows are cultivated for the purpose of production of milk.

In 2014 agriculture land cultivated amounted to 388

In 2014 the milk produced amounted to 9,357 tonnes (2013:

thousand ha (2013: 375 thousand ha).

12,101 tonnes).

The main crops of the Group’s agricultural production and
output were as follows (in thousands of tonnes):
2014

2013

2,318

2,871

Winter wheat

379

416

Barley

291

173

70

71

Sugar beet

Sunflower
Pea

27

25

Corn

49

53

Soya bean

18

30

Key inputs in the fair value measurement of the livestock

anticipate that milk or crops prices will decline significantly

and the agricultural crops harvested together with

in the foreseeable future except some seasonal fluctuations

sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in those inputs

and, therefore, has not entered into derivative or other

are disclosed in Note 2.2.

contracts to manage the risk of a decline in respective prices.

Biological assets with a carrying value of RR 684,303

The Group reviews its outlook for milk, meat and crops

(31 December 2013: RR 520,049) were pledged as collateral

prices regularly in considering the need for active financial

for the Group’s borrowings (Note 14).

risk management.

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from
changes in milk, meat and crops prices. The Group does not

11. Long-term investments
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Bank deposits

696,500

696,500

Interest receivable on long-term bank deposits

182,717

118,291

Available-for-sale financial assets

19,305

26,712

Loans issued to third parties

26,526

26,484

Other long-term investments

4,081

2,828

929,129

870,815

Total

The above long-term investments are denominated
in Russian Roubles.
As at 31 December 2014 bank deposits placed in Alfa
Bank in the amount of RR 696,500 (31 December 2013:
RR 696,500) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
obligations (Note 14).
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12. Investments in associates
On 21 March 2014 the Group acquired 31.00% of the share

liabilities of the investees as the Group had not finalized

capital of OJSC Tockiy elevator for RR 23,601. On 26 August

the fair value determination of these assets and liabilities

2014 the Group acquired further 68.87% of the share capital

at the moment of preparation of these consolidated financial

and obtained control of OJSC Tockiy elevator (see Note 24).

statements. The fair values of identifiable assets and

On 24 July 2014 the Group invested RR 25 in share capital

liabilities of OJSC Tockiy elevator were determined using

of LLC Rusprotein and thereby acquired 25% of ownership

discounted cash flow models. The valuation of property,

interest in the investee.

plant and equipment was performed by an independent

On 26 September 2014 the Group acquired 10.50%

professional appraiser.

of ownership interest in CJSC Status for RR 33,867. Together

The table below summaries the information on net

with previously held 14.50% the Group share in CJSC Status

assets or liabilities of the acquired associates at the date

reached 25.00%.

of acquisition, consideration transferred and other details

Acquisition of LLC Rusprotein and CJSC Status was

of the above transactions.

accounted using the provisional amounts of assets and

Share of ownership interest acquired
Cash consideration transferred
Investment in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
Total consideration

Net assets/ (liabilities) of associates acquired

LLC Rusprotein
(consolidated)

CJSC Status

OJSC Tockiy elevator

25%

25%

31%

25

33,867

23,601

-

7,387

-

7,387

25

41,254

23,601

64,880

Total

57,493

(10,085)

348,661

59,859

398,435

Non-controling interest in net assets/ (liabilities)

(4,538)

-

-

(4,538)

Group's share in the net assets/ (liabilities) of associates
acquired net of non-controliing interest

(1,387)

87,165

18,556

104,334

1,412

-

5,045

6,457

-

45,912

-

45,911

Goodwill arising from the acquisition
Excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the cost of the investment

The Group's interests in its principal associates were as follows:
Group's share in the share capital
Name of entity

Principal activity

31 December 2014

LLC Rusprotein

31 December 2013

Holding company

25.00%

-

CJSC Status

Registrar

25.00%

-

The country of incorporation of the Croup’s associates,

All Group’s associates are private companies and there are

as well as their principal place of business, is the Russian

no quoted market prices available for there shares.

Federation. The associates incorporated as CJSC have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares. Shares in CJSC
Status and LLC Rusprotein are held directly by the Group.
LLC Rusprotein control 55% shares of CJSC Ussurisky
maslozhirovoi combinat "Primorskaya soya" (hereinafter
CJSC UMZHK "Primorskaya soya"). The Group has no direct
holdings in CJSC UMZHK "Primorskaya soya".
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The table below summarizes the movements in the carrying amount of the Group's investment in associates:

Carrying amount at 1 January

Fair value of share of net assets/ (liabilities) of associates acquired
Goodwill arising on acquisition
Share of profit/ (loss) of associates
De-recognition of investments in associates as result of business combination (Note 24)

Carrying amount at 31 December

2014

2013

-

-

104,334

-

6,457

-

667

-

(24,051)

-

87,407

-

Summarized financial information of each material associate is as follows at 31 December 2014:
LLC Rusprotein (consolidated)*

CJSC Status

Total

Current assets

775,728

456,091

1,231,819

Non-current assets

468,408

41,983

510,391

(1,100,507)

(148,445)

(1,248,952)

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

(159,432)

-

(159,432)

Net assets/ (liabilities)

(15,803)

349,629

333,826

Revenue

480,476

159,039

650,169

(5,652)

968

(3,231)

Profit or loss/ Total comprehensive income or loss

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s

associate is RR 753 for 2014 (2013: nil). Cumulatively,

interest in the associates.

the unrecognised share of losses of this associate as at

The carrying value of the Group’s investment in LLC

31December 2014 is RR 753 (31 December 2013: nil).

Rusprotein is nil. The unrecognised share of loss of this

13. Share capital, share premium and transactions with
non-controlling interests
Share capital and share premium

Treasury shares

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, issued and paid share capital

In 2014, the Company acquired 200,040 of its own GDRs,

consisted of 24,000,000 ordinary shares with par value

that is equivalent to approximately 40,008 shares, through

of Euro 0.01 each.

purchases on the Main Market of the London Stock

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the authorised share capital

Exchange (2013: no acquisitions of own GDRs). The total

consisted of 60,000,000 ordinary shares with par value

amount paid to acquire the GDRs was RR 44,033. The GDRs

of Euro 0.01 each.

are held as ‘treasury shares’.

Share premium represents the excess of contributions

At 31 December 2014 the Group held 2,212,648 of its

received over the nominal value of shares issued.

own GDRs (31 December 2013: 2,012,608 own GDRs)
that is equivalent of approximately 442,530 shares
(31 December 2013: 402,522 shares).

* Financial information on LLC Rusprotein is provided on consolidated basis including financial information of all its subsidiaries.
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Purchases of non-controlling interests
In 2014 the Group increased its share in LLC Zherdevsky

In 2013 the Group acquired shares in several other

Elevator and OJSC Tockiy elevator (Note 24) up to 100%.

subsidiaries from minority shareholders for a total

The consideration paid was RR 531. The difference between

consideration of RR 10,084. The excess of consideration paid

the carrying amount of a non-controlling interest and

over the Group’s share of identifiable net assets acquired

the purchase consideration in the amount of RR 3 was

amounted to RR 1,354.

recorded as a capital transaction in the statement of changes
in equity.
In 2013 the Group increased its share in CJSC
Samaraagroprompererabotka by 25.1%. The consideration

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary
without loss of control

paid was RR 251,000. The excess of consideration paid

In 2014 the Group disposed 10% of ownership interests

over the Group’s share of identifiable net assets acquired

in OJSC Sugar Plant Znamensky for consideration

amounted to RR 196,465.

in the amount of RR 41,070. The difference between

In 2013 the Group bought out 100% of additional share

the carrying amount of a non-controlling interest and

issue of its subsidiary OJSC Zherdevsky Elevator. As a result

the consideration received in the amount of RR 188,661 was

of this transaction the amount of non-controlling interest

recorded as a capital transaction in the statement of changes

in the subsidiary increased by RR 416 with a corresponding

in equity.

decrease in retained earnings.

14. Borrowings
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Short-term borrowings

Interest rate

Carrying amount

Interest rate

Carrying amount

Bank loans

11.5-13.8%

6,850,000

0.9-12.0%

12,434,311

Loans received from third parties

6.0%

821,109

2.0-5.0%

1,145,771

Loans received from related parties (Note 26)

9.5%

50,000

-

65,575

29,330

Interest accrued on borrowings from third parties
Interest accrued on borrowings from related parties (Note 26)
Current portion of long-term borrowings
Total

65

26,682

4,712,874

4,508,160

12,499,623

18,144,254

All short-term borrowings are at fixed interest rate.
The above borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Russian Roubles
Euro
US Dollars
Total

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

11,648,901

15,930,470

850,722

1,127,475

-

1,086,309

12,499,623

18,144,254
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31 December 2014
Short-term borrowings

Carrying amount

Interest rate

Carrying amount

9.5-13.0%

14,291,423

9.5-13.0%

18,388,106

¼ of the CBRF rate*

227,758

¼ of the CBRF rate*

263,137

-

2.0%

225,716

9.5-13.0%

(4,485,117)

9.5-11.5%

(4,508,160)

¼ of the CBRF rate*

(227,758)

Bank loans
Government loans

31 December 2013

Interest rate

Promissory notes issued and loans received from third parties
Less current portion of long-term borrowings from:
Bank loans
Government loans
Total

9,806,306

14,368,799

The above borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Russian Roubles

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

9,806,306

14,183,035

US Dollars

-

185,764

9,806,306

14,368,799

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

2 years

3,333,332

4,456,205

3-5 years

6,440,774

9,004,833

32,200

644,624

9,806,306

14,105,662

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

2 years

-

263,137

Total

-

263,137

Total

Maturity of long-term borrowings:

Fixed interest rate borrowings:

More than 5 years
Total

Floating interest rate borrowings:

For details of property, plant and equipment and biological

borrowings refer to Notes 4 and 11.

assets pledged as collateral for the above borrowings see

Shares of several companies of the Group are pledged

Note 9 and Note 10 respectively. For details of promissory

as collateral for the bank borrowings, as follows:

notes and bank deposits pledged as collateral for the above
Pledged shares, %
31 December 2014

LLC Group of Companies Rusagro

31 December 2013

-

50.0

LLC Tambovsky Bacon

100.0

100.0

LLC Belgorodsky Bacon (former OJSC Belgorodsky Bacon)

100.0

100.0

OJSC Valuikisakhar

51.0

51.0

OJSC Sugar Plant Znamensky

51.0

-

Compliance with covenants

If any of covenants are breached, the repayment can be
altered by the respective lender, up to immediate repayment.

Under long-term borrowings facility agreements, the Group

There were no breaches of covenants in 2014. In 2013

is required to comply with certain financial and non-financial

there was a breach of one covenant under a loan agreement

covenants.

with Sberbank which was made in 2011 and related to

The most significant and most important is to maintain net

a pledge of property, plant and equipment which were

debt/Adjusted EBITDA ratio.

sold. The Group has not received a waiver from the bank

*The above loans were provided at subsidised interest rates by the Government and were initially measured at an effective rate of 12%
// 130

I     ROS AGRO PLC International Financial Reporting Standards Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 and Independent Auditor’s Report    I

before 31 December 2013. In March 2014 the breach was

determines the Net Debt of the Group as outstanding long-

remedied with an amendment to the pledge agreement

term borrowings and short-term borrowings less cash and

signed with Sberbank. This loan amounted to RR 885,946

cash equivalents, all bank deposits, bonds held for trading

as at 31 December 2013 and taking into account the remedy

and banks’ promissory notes. The Group management

obtained the Group presented this loan within long-term

compares net debt figure with Adjusted EBITDA (Note 28)

borrowings in these consolidated financial statements.

and considers the normal level of Net Debt/Adjusted EBITDA
ratio to be not more than 3.

Net Debt*

As at 31 December 2014 the net debt of the Group was
as follows:

As part of liquidity risk management, the Group Treasury
analyses its net debt position. The Group management
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Long-term borrowings

9,806,306

14,368,799

Short-term borrowings

12,499,623

18,144,254

(10,316,313)

(2,672,764)

Cash and cash equivalents
Banks’ promissory notes (Note 4)
Bank deposits within short-term investments (Note 4)
Bank deposits within long-term investments (Note 11)
Bonds held for trading (Note 4)

-

(1,100,000)

(992,200)

(13,467,355)

(696,500)

(696,500)

(6,684,189)

-

3,616,727

14,576,434

9,109,806

13,672,299

Net debt*
including long-term Net debt
including short-term Net debt

(5,493,079)

904,135

Adjusted EBITDA* (Note 28)

18,069,475

6,784,013

Net debt/ Adjusted EBITDA*

0.20

2.15

For the purpose of conformity with the methodology of the Group's Net Debt calculation, cash flows from investing and
financing activities in the Group management accounts are presented as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2014
According to
IFRS

Year ended 31 December 2013

Reclassifications

Management
accounts

According to
IFRS

Reclassifications

Management
accounts

(5,206,184)

-

(5,206,184)

(1,530)

-

(1,530)

(4,232,694)

-

(4,232,694)

(16,335)

-

16,604,773

(16,604,773)

(16,335)

-

32,345,354

(32,345,354)

-

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of inventories intended for construction
Proceeds from cash withdrawals from deposits
Deposits placed with banks

(4,141,047)

4,141,047

-

(18,346,112)

18,346,112

-

Purchases of bonds

(5,244,138)

5,244,138

-

-

-

-

134,904

(134,904)

-

-

-

-

Proceeds from sales of bonds
Purchases of promissory notes
Proceeds from sales of promissory notes
Loans given

(1,700,000)

1,700,000

-

(2,900,000)

2,900,000

-

2,800,000

(2,800,000)

-

3,068,267

(3,068,267)

-

(2,455,350)

2,455,350

-

(1,122,198)

1,122,198

-

Loans repaid

1,847,683

(1,847,683)

-

907,674

(907,674)

-

Interest received

1,239,633

(1,239,633)

-

2,152,715

(2,152,715)

-

Other cash flows in investing activities*

(998,142)

-

(998,142)

67,411

-

67,411

Net cash used in investing activities

2,880,602

(9,086,458)

(6,205,856)

11,924,083

(16,105,700)

(4,181,618)

* not an IFRS measure.
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Year ended 31 December 2014

Year ended 31 December 2013

According to
IFRS

Reclassifications

Management
accounts

According to
IFRS

Reclassifications

Management
accounts

Proceeds from borrowings

15,875,925

-

15,875,925

16,157,846

-

16,157,846

Repayment of borrowings

(31,891,024)

Cash flow from financing activities

(27,169,213)

-

(27,169,213)

(31,891,024)

-

Proceeds from cash withdrawals from deposits

-

16,604,773

16,604,773

-

32,345,354

32,345,354

Deposits placed with banks

-

(4,141,047)

(4,141,047)

-

(18,346,112)

(18,346,112)

Purchases of bonds

-

(5,244,138)

(5,244,138)

-

-

-

Proceeds from sales of bonds

-

134,904

134,904

-

-

-

Purchases of promissory notes

-

(1,700,000)

(1,700,000)

-

(2,900,000)

(2,900,000)

Proceeds from sales of promissory notes

-

2,800,000

2,800,000

-

3,068,267

3,068,267

Loans given

-

(2,455,350)

(2,455,350)

-

(1,122,198)

(1,122,198)

Loans repaid

-

1,847,683

1,847,683

-

907,674

907,674

Interest paid

(2,295,898)

-

(2,295,898)

(4,127,094)

-

(4,127,094)

Interest received
Proceeds from government grants
Other cash flows in financing activities*
Net cash from financing activities

-

1,239,633

1,239,633

-

2,152,715

2,152,715

3,048,946

-

3,048,946

4,049,217

-

4,049,217

(3,251,146)

-

(3,251,146)

(261,191)

-

(261,191)

(13,791,386)

9,086,458

(4,704,928)

(16,072,246)

16,105,700

33,454

Starting 1 January 2014 the management decided to present

The comparative figures for 2013 have been adjusted

cash flows on loans given and loans repaid within cash flows

accordingly.

from financing activities in the Group management accounts.

15. Trade and other payables
Trade accounts payable
Payables for land rent
Other payables
Total financial liabilities within trade and other payables
Payables to employees
Advances received
Total trade and other payables

Financial liabilities within trade and other payables of RR
28,124 (31 December 2013: RR 12,336) are denominated
in US Dollar, financial liabilities within trade and
other payables of RR 57,892 are denominated in Euro
(31 December 2013: RR 24,991). All other financial liabilities
within trade and other payables are denominated in Russian
Roubles.

*See details in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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31 December 2014

31 December 2013

1,335,137

1,038,789

-

4,385

107,817

123,848

1,442,954

1,167,022

703,211

804,335

626,220

381,418

2,772,385

2,352,775
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16. Other taxes payable
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

1,540,487

1,151,109

Property tax

62,545

67,378

Unified social tax

60,672

51,785

Personal income tax

17,258

25,469

2,987

2,995

Value added tax

Transport tax
Other

22,142

28,527

Total

1,706,091

1,327,263

17. Government grants
In 2005-2014 the Group received government grants from

the carrying value of assets, were similarly deferred and

Tambov and Belgorod regional governments and the Federal

amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected lives

government in partial compensation of the investments into

of the related assets. There were no deferred government

acquisition of equipment for agricultural business and sugar

grants, related to capitalised interest expense in 2014 (2013:

processing and the investments into construction of the pig-

RR 322,265).

breeding farms and the slaughter house. The receipts

At the end of 2014 and 2013 the Group prepaid interest

of these grants in 2014 amounted to RR 338,070 (2013:

expenses on some of its bank loans for 2015 and 2014

RR 697,936). These grants are deferred and amortised on

respectively (Note 6) and obtained government grants

a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related

in the amount of RR 127,657 (2013: 98,490) for partial

assets.

reimbursement of these interest expenses. These grants

Additionally, in 2007-2014 the Group obtained

are deferred as at the reporting date and included

the government grants for reimbursement of interest

in the statement of comprehensive income in the following

expenses on bank loans received for construction of the pig-

financial year together with the related interest expenses.

breeding farms in Belgorod and Tambov. The government

The movements in deferred government grants

grants related to interest expenses capitalised into

in the statement of financial position were as follows:
2014

2013

1,735,151

722,617

Government grants received

465,732

1,118,691

Amortization of deferred income to match related interest expenses

(98,490)

-

Amortization of deferred income to match related depreciation (Note 22)

(139,831)

(106,157)

As at 31 December

1,962,562

1,735,151

As at 1 January

Other bank loan interests, which had been refunded by
the state, were credited to the income statement and netted
with the interest expense (Note 23).
Other government grants received are included in Note 22.
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18. Sales
Sales of goods
Sales of services
Total

2014

2013

58,880,617

36,369,913

231,626

119,914

59,112,243

36,489,827

Sales in 2014 include revenue arising from exchange of goods amounting to RR 193,744 (2013: RR 183,588) and exchange
of services amounting to RR 152,711 (2013: RR 48,789).

19.Cost of sales
2014

2013

38,871,128

23,779,317

Depreciation

3,153,763

2,987,010

Services

2,341,741

2,311,022

Payroll

2,548,293

2,149,426

249,018

99,942

Raw materials and consumables used

Other
Provision/ (Reversal of provision) for net realisable value
Total

485,767

(30,090)

47,649,710

31,296,627

Raw materials and consumables used include the gain

of biological assets (cows and pigs) attributable to

recorded on initial recognition of agricultural produce

the realised biological assets, in the amount of RR 7,565,516

attributable to the realised agricultural produce (both

(2013: RR 1,276,194).

of current and previous year harvest) in the amount of RR

Payroll costs above include statutory pension contributions

2,084,533 (2013: RR 1,946,675), and the result of revaluation

of RR 408,678 (2013: RR 354,893).

20. Distribution and selling expenses
2014

2013

2,206,486

1,498,138

Payroll

659,504

430,151

Advertising

656,830

393,080

Depreciation and amortization

248,679

195,725

Materials

157,119

119,613

Transportation and loading services

Fuel and energy

62,176

46,903

Provision for impairment of receivables (Notes 5, 6)

46,120

126,144

Other

435,260

183,199

Total

4,472,174

2,992,953

Payroll costs above include statutory pension contributions
of RR 94,199 (2013: RR 66,850).
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21. General and administrative expenses
2014

2013

1,821,846

1,470,784

Taxes, excluding income tax

364,655

388,223

Services of professional organisations

Payroll

136,985

115,026

Depreciation

94,590

88,126

Rent

85,254

67,721

Security

79,586

91,166

Materials

67,526

69,387

Bank services

63,168

49,689

Repair and maintenance

45,725

39,301

Fuel and energy

32,157

51,083

Travelling expenses

30,729

32,093

Communication

23,027

27,618

Insurance

16,310

16,703

1,538

1,866

Statutory audit fees
Other

128,219

115,132

Total

2,991,315

2,623,918

Payroll costs above include statutory pension contributions

in “Services of professional organisations” were fees of RR

of RR 214,778 (2013: RR 184,748).

421 (2013: RR 464) for other non-assurance services charged

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2014, included

by the Company’s statutory auditor.

22. Other operating income/(expenses), net
2014

2013

Reimbursement of operating expenses (government grants)

548,045

568,636

Operating foreign exchange gains and losses, net

143,181

-

Amortization of deferred income to match related depreciation (Note 17)

139,831

106,157

Gain from buy-out of promissory notes issued

41,094

-

Rental income

9,342

17,904

Gain/ (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

5,038

(169,518)

454

(18,714)

-

49,853

Provision for impairment of advances paid for property, plant and equipment
Settlement of accounts receivable previously written-off
VAT refunded under the court decision

-

22,571

Charitable donations and social costs

(509,819)

(400,590)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net*

(179,405)

-

Loss on other investments

(7,747)

(191,480)

Lost harvest write-off (Note 10)

(5,530)

(31,071)

-

(55,229)

Write-off of work in progress
Other

88,400

(15,056)

Total

272,884

(116,537)
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*In the end of 2014 the Group disposed of one non-core subsidiary:
OJSC Oskolskie Prostori

Cash and cash equivalents

274

Trade and other receivables

736

Prepayments

781

Other taxes receivable

262

Inventories

22,781

Property, plant and equipment

73,218

Long-term biological assets

65,401

Total assets

163,453

Trade and other payables

(10,075)

Other taxes payable

(1,055)

Long-term borrowings

(443,850)

Total liabilities

(454,980)

Non-controlling interest

27,098

Writing-off of intercompany loans provided to the disposed subsidiary

(443,818)

Fair value of consideration received

16

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

(179,405)

Cash inflow on disposal

-

Cash outflow on disposal, net of cash disposed

(275)

23. Interest expense and other financial income/(expenses), net
Interest expense comprised of the following:

Interest expense
Reimbursement of interest expense (government grants)
Interest expense, net

Other financial income/ (expenses), net comprised of the following items:

Financial foreign exchange differences gain, net
Other financial expenses, net
Other financial income/ (expenses), net

2014

2013

2,288,135

3,623,968

(2,133,657)

(2,243,592)

154,478

1,380,376

2014

2013

4,551,644

37,534

(2,096)

(93,806)

4,549,548

(56,272)

24. Goodwill
2014

2013

1,175,578

1,175,578

16,254

-

1,191,832

1,175,578

2014

2013

Oil Samara CGU

667,329

651,075

Other agriculture CGU

178,133

178,133

Sugar CGU

346,370

346,370

1,191,832

1,175,578

Carrying amount at 1 January
Acquisitions of subsidiaries
Carrying amount at 31 December

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the following CGUs:

Carrying amount at 31 December
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On 21 March 2014 the Group acquired 31.00% of the share

Samaraagroprompererabotka. The goodwill of RR 16,254

capital of OJSC Tockiy elevator for RR 23,601. On 26 August

arising from the acquisition was allocated to Oil Samara CGU.

2014 the Group acquired further 68.87% of the share

The following table summarises the consideration

capital and obtained control of OJSC Tockiy elevator,

paid for OJSC “Tockiy elevator”, the fair value of assets

a grain elevator situated in Orenburg region within a

acquired, liabilities assumed and non-controlling interest

zone of operations of the Group’s oil extraction plant

at the acquisition date.

Consideration transferred

52,434

Fair value of equity interest in Tockiy held before the business combination

24,051

Total consideration

76,485

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents

7,455

Trade and other receivables

1,598

Prepayments

823

Current income tax receivable

550

Other taxes receivable

79

Inventories

3,421

Property, plant and equipment

50,453

Deferred income tax assets

6,953

Trade and other payables

(1,011)

Other taxes payable

(867)

Deferred income tax liability

(9,145)

Total identifiable net assets

60,309

Non-controlling interest

(79)

Goodwill arising from the acquisition

16,255

Total purchase consideration and previously held interest in the acquiree

76,485

Less: Non-cash consideration

(24,051)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired

(7,455)

Outflow of cash and cash equivalents on acquisition

44,979

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2014

for the same period according to leading industry

and 2013 was tested for impairment. The recoverable

publications. Cash flows beyond the five-year period

amount of the Group’s cash-generating units has been

are projected with a long-term growth rate of 2.6% per

determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash

annum (31 December 2013: 2.8% per annum). As a result

flow projections based on financial budgets approved by

of the testing, no impairment losses were recognised.

the Group management covering a five-year period and

Assumptions used for value-in-use calculations to which

the expected market prices for the Group’s key products

the recoverable amount is most sensitive were:
31 December 2014

EBITDA margin*
Pre-tax discount rate

Oil Samara CGU

Other agriculture CGU

15.2-16.5%
24.2%

31 December 2013

Sugar CGU

Oil Samara CGU

Other agriculture CGU

Sugar CGU

26.6-28.2%

28.9%

19.7-20.0%

25.3-28.0%

14.5-14.6%

19.2%

23.7%

18.5%

15.1%

18.3%

A reasonably possible shift in key assumptions underlying the value-in-use calculations would not lead to impairment
of goodwill as of 31 December 2014 and as of 31 December 2013.
* EBITDA margin is calculated as the sum of operating cash flows before income tax and changes
in working capital divided by the amount of cash flow received from trade customers.
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25. Income tax
2014

2013

Current income tax charge

1,206,375

491,595

Deferred tax (credit)/ charge

(491,440)

(160,632)

714,935

330,963

Income tax expense

The Group companies domiciled in Russia were subject to

would have been subject to a 0% income tax rate in 2012,

an income tax rate of 20% (2013: 20%) of taxable profits,

18% income tax rate during the period 2013 to 2015 and

except for profit on sales of agricultural produce taxable

20% subsequently.

at 0% (2013: 0%) and profit obtained from the Group’s oil

Group entities operating in other tax jurisdictions were taxed

extraction activity in Samara region taxable at a reduced rate

at 0% and 12.5% (2013: 0% and 12.5%).

of 15.5% in 2012-2016 years.

The current income tax charge represents a tax accrual

In October 2012 an amendment to the Tax Code was enacted

based on statutory taxable profits. A reconciliation between

to set the income tax rate for agriculture producers at 0%

the expected and the actual taxation charge is as follows:

in perpetuity. Before the amendment, agriculture entities
2014

2013

Profit before tax:

20,891,914

3,532,720

- taxable at 0%

22,466,117

2,395,657

- taxable at 12.5%

(2,649,289)

19,974

- taxable at 15.5%

1,110,058

367,455

(34,973)

749,634

(166,097)

209,379

- non-taxable income

(24,102)

(13,226)

- non-deductible expenses

491,665

114,278

- taxable at 20%
Theoretical tax charge calculated at the applicable tax rate of 20%, 15.5% and 12.5% (2013: 20%, 15.5% and 12.5%)

Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for taxation purposes:

- share of results of associates

(9,316)

-

- share based remuneration

10,885

35,656

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses

(3,847)

-

Withholding income tax on dividends distributed

210,550

-

Accruals of deferred tax liability in respect of withholding income tax on dividends to be distributed

184,211

-

Adjustments of income tax in respect of prior years and tax penalties

30,509

(3,778)

Other

(9,523)

(11,346)

714,935

330,963

Income tax expense
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Differences between IFRS as adopted by the EU and local

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax

statutory taxation regulations give rise to certain temporary

bases. Deferred taxes are attributable to the following:

differences between the carrying value of certain assets

1 January 2014

Deferred tax assets
acquisition

Deferred tax credited/
(charged) to profit
or loss

31 December 2014

Tax effects of deductible/ (taxable) temporary differences:
Property, plant and equipment

(416,756)

(9,113)

15,203

(410,666)

Impairment of receivables

65,238

6,081

77,053

148,372

Payables

75,131

-

(53,889)

21,242

Financial assets
Inventory and biological assets
Loss carried forward
Withholding income tax on dividends to be distributed

38,400

835

5,328

44,563

232,074

-

306,013

538,087

32,006

-

332,972

364,978
(184,211)

-

-

(184,211)

Other

37,553

5

(7,028)

30,530

Net deferred tax (liability) / asset

63,646

(2,192)

491,441

552,895

Recognised deferred tax asset
Recognised deferred tax liability

353,674

1,016,544

(290,028)

(463,649)

1 January 2014

Deferred tax assets
acquisition

Deferred tax credited/
(charged) to profit
or loss

31 December 2014

Tax effects of deductible/ (taxable) temporary differences:
Property, plant and equipment

(447,224)

-

30,468

(416,756)

Impairment of receivables

41,552

-

23,686

65,238

Payables

59,787

-

15,344

75,131

Financial assets
Inventory and biological assets
Loss carried forward
Other
Net deferred tax asset / (liability)

Recognised deferred tax asset
Recognised deferred tax liability

29,700

2,700

6,000

38,400

168,312

-

63,762

232,074

29,803

-

2,203

32,006

18,384

-

19,169

37,553

(99,686)

2,700

160,632

63,646

237,838

353,674

(337,524)

(290,028)

In the context of the Group’s current structure tax losses
and current tax assets of different companies may not be set
off against taxable profits and current tax liabilities of other
companies and, accordingly, taxes may accrue even where
there is a net consolidated tax loss. Therefore, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset only when they relate to
the same taxable entity.
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2014

2013

Deferred tax assets:
-Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months

492,729

61,576

-Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months

523,815

292,098

1,016,544

353,674

-Deferred tax liability to be settled after more than 12 months

(269,442)

(274,575)

-Deferred tax liability to be settled within 12 months

(194,207)

(15,453)

(463,649)

(290,028)

552,895

63,646

Deferred tax liabilities:

Total net deferred tax asset / (liability)

The Group has not recognised a deferred tax liability of RR

In August 2013 the Board of Directors has approved a new

1,435,486 (2013: RR 1,158,114 ) in respect of temporary

dividend policy with payout ratio of at least 25% of net

differences associated with undistributed earnings

income. As the dividends will be distributed from net

of subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timing

income of reporting period they will be subject to current

of reversal of those temporary differences and it is probable

withholding income tax at the applicable rate.

that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

26. Related party transactions
Parties are generally considered to be related if one party

company controlled by the Owner through two separate

has the ability to control the other party, is under common

agreements.

control or can exercise significant influence over the other

Under the first agreement, 3.5% of ordinary shares of ROS

party in making financial or operational decisions as defined

AGRO PLC were purchased for USD 3.5 for all shares.

by IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”. In considering each

The terms of the agreement provide that the shares remain

possible related party relationship attention is directed

effectively under control of the seller and are actually

to the substance of the relationship not merely the legal

transferred to the buyer gradually until July 2014 provided

form. Related parties may enter into transactions which

that Mr. Basov remains in the position of the CEO of OJSC

unrelated parties might not, and transactions between

Rusagro Group. For the purpose of these consolidated

related parties may not be effected on the same terms,

financial statements this transaction was treated as an

conditions and amounts as transactions between unrelated

equity-settled share-based payment transaction, under

parties. All of the Group’s related party transactions during

which Mr. Maxim Basov, as an employee, is granted shares

the year ended 31 December 2014 and the year ended

of the Company as part of his compensation for the services

31 December 2013 consist of transactions with members

rendered to the Group. The fair value of shares granted,

of the Board of Directors and other key management

determined at the grant date, less cash paid for them by

personnel, transactions with the entities controlled by

the buyer, is expensed in the statement of comprehensive

the Owner and transactions with the entities controlled by

income in accordance with the graded vesting schedule with

the key management personnel.

a corresponding increase in equity. Expenses recognised

Key management personnel

under this agreement for the year ended 31 December 2014
in the amount of RR 51,651 (2013: RR 178,280) are
presented under the heading “Share-based remuneration”

Share-purchase agreements

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

In March 2011 a company controlled by Mr. Maxim Basov,

comprehensive income. Under the second agreement, 1.5%

a Director of ROS AGRO PLC and the CEO of OJSC Rusagro

of ordinary shares of ROS AGRO PLC were purchased for

Group, purchased 5% of shares of ROS AGRO PLC from a

USD 15,000,000. The shares were transferred to the buyer
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immediately. For the purpose of these consolidated financial

As at 31 December 2014, the share-based payment reserve

statements this transaction was treated as an equity-settled

accumulated in equity as a result of the above share-

share-based payment transaction that vested immediately.

based payment transactions amounted to RR 1,291,198

The difference between the fair value of shares granted

(31 December 2013: RR 1,236,775).

and cash paid for them by the buyer in the amount of RR
in equity.

Other remuneration to key management
personnel

The fair value of shares granted was determined by using

Remuneration to 13 (2013: 17) representatives of key

a discounted cash flow analysis. These calculations used

management personnel, included in payroll costs, comprised

cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved

short-term remuneration such as salaries, discretionary

by the Group management covering a five-year period.

bonuses and other short-term benefits totaling RR 876,776

The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average

including RR 77,037 payable to the State Pension Fund

growth rate for the business sector of the economy in which

(2013: RR 263,259 and RR 21,915 respectively).

85,895 was expensed in 2011 with a corresponding increase

the Group operates. The future cash flows were discounted
using a discount rate of 12% and a long-term growth rate

The Company Directors’ remuneration

of 4%. The discount rate was derived from the Group’s post-

Included in the share-based compensation and other

tax weighted average cost of capital.

remuneration to key management personnel disclosed above,

In 2014 the Group initiated new share option incentive

are the Company directors' fees, salaries and other short-

scheme for its top-management. Under the scheme

term benefits totaling RR 779,015 in respect of the year

the employees will be granted a Company’s GDR

ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RR 304,866).

provided the remain in their position up to a specific
dependent on the average market prices of GDRs for

Loan agreements with the Key management
personnel

the period preceding this date. Expenses recognized under

Balances and transactions under the loan agreements with

this agreement for the year ended 31 December 2014

the Key management personnel consist of the following:

date in the future. The amount of GDRs granted will be

in the amount of RR 2,772 (2013: nil) are included in “Sharebased remuneration” line in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

Transactions

Loans issued
Interest accrued on loans issued
Loans repaid
Interest payable accrued
Interest paid

Balances

Short-term loans issued (Note 4)
Interest receivable (Note 4)
Interest payable (Note 14)

Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2013

17,515

-

83

-

-

75,580

-

2,236

26,682

11,431

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

17,515

-

83

-

-

26,682

In 2014 loans issued to the Key management personnel
are denominated in Russian Roubles with an interest rate
of 8.25%.
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Entities controlled by the Owner
Balances and transactions with entities controlled by
the Owner are presented in the table below:

Transactions

Sales of goods and services

Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2013

4,203

552

1,331,115

266,913

1,386

-

Loans received

-

1,000,000

Loans repaid

-

1,000,000

Interest accrued on loans received

-

2,270

Interest paid

-

2,270

Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2013

1,935,302

2,246,229

2,922

215

(34,150)

(4,566)

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of goods

Balances

Advances paid for property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

the Owner are denominated in Russian Roubles with an

Entities controlled by the Key Management
Personnel

interest rate of 8.4%. The loans were fully repaid in 2013.

Balances and transactions with entities controlled by the Key

In 2013 loans received from the Entities controlled by

management personnel are presented in the table below:

Transactions

Sale of goods and services
Purchases of goods

Year ended
31 December 2013

229,860

106,379

2,661,479

709,144

Purchases of services

41,408

42,351

Provision for impairment of receivables

24,162

-

Foreign exchange differences gain, net

9,317

-

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

8,227

-

860,105

1,076,721

1,176,945

759,981

45,485

14,098

Interest received

49,373

10,210

Loans received

50,000

-

65

-

Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2013

24,162

86,186

Loans issued
Loans repayments received
Interest accrued on loans issued

Interest accrued on loans received

Balances

Trade and other receivables, gross
Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

(24,162)

-

Prepayments

-

3,733

Short-term loans issued (Note 4)

-

316,840

Interest receivable (Note 4)

-

3,888

Trade and other payables

(22,749)

(78,767)

Short-term loans received (Note 14)

(50,000)

-

(65)

-

Interest payable (Note 14)
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Loans issued to the entities controlled by the Key

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding

Management Personnel are denominated in Russian Roubles

contractual commitments in respect of purchases

with an interest rate of 12% (31 December 2013: 12%). Loans

or construction of property, plant and equipment from

are fully repaid in 2014.

the entities controlled by the Key Management Personnel

Loan received from the entities controlled by the Key

in the amount of RR 147,558 (31 December 2013:

Management Personnel is denominated in Russian Roubles

RR 794,840).

with an interest rate of 9.5% valid till 31 December 2014 and
average monthly MosPrimeM1 rate minus 3% valid from

Associates

1 January 2015.

Balances and transactions with associates are presented

Trade and other receivables impaired as at

in the table below:

31 December 2014 were fully paid in the beginning of 2015.

Transactions

Purchases of goods
Purchases of services

Balances

Trade and other payables

Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2013

9,322

-

202

-

Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2013

(2)

-

27. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing

the Company and held as treasury shares. The Company

the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by

has no dilutive potential financial instruments; therefore,

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

the diluted earnings per share equals the basic earnings per

during the year excluding the effect of GDRs purchased by

share.
Year ended
31 December 2014

Transactions

Year ended
31 December 2013

Profit for the year attributable to the Company’s equity holders

20,134,178

3,201,534

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

23,559,989

23,597,478

854.59

135.67

Basic and diluted earnings per share (RR per share)

28. Segment information
Operating segments are components that engage in business

financial information is available. The CODM is a person

activities that may earn revenues or incur expenses, whose

or a group of persons who allocates resources and assesses

operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief

the performance of the Group. The functions of CODM are

operating decision maker (CODM) and for which discrete

performed by the Board of Directors of ROS AGRO PLC.

Description of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenue
The Group is organised on the basis of four main business

•• Other agriculture – represents cultivation of plant crops

segments:

(sugar beet, grain crops and other plant crops) and dairy

•• Sugar – represents production and trading operation with

cattle livestock;

white sugar;
•• Meat – represents cultivation of pigs and selling
of consumable livestock to third parties;

•• Oil – represents vegetable oil extraction, production and
sales of mayonnaise, consumer margarine, and bottled
vegetable oil.
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Certain of the Group's businesses are not included within

EBITDA figure is not an IFRS measure. Adjusted EBITDA is

the reportable operating segments, as they are not included

reconciled to IFRS operating profit in this Note.

in the reports provided to the CODM. The results of these

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating profit before taking

operations are included in "Other" caption. The Company,

into account:

OJSC Rusagro Group and LLC Group of Companies Rusagro

•• depreciation;

that represent the Group's head office and investment

•• other operating income, net (other than reimbursement

holding functions and earn revenue considered incidental to
the Group's activities are included in "Other" caption.

of operating costs (government grants));
•• the difference between the gain on revaluation
of biological assets and agriculture produce recognised

Factors that management used to identify
the reportable segments

in the year and the gain on initial recognition

The Group’s segments are strategic business units that

agricultural produce for the year and revaluation

focus on different customers. They are managed separately

of biological assets attributable to realised biological

because of the differences in the production processes,

assets and included in cost of sales;

of agricultural produce attributable to realised

the nature of products produced and required marketing

•• share-based remuneration.

strategies.

•• provision/(reversal of provision) for net realisable value

Segment financial information reviewed by the CODM

of agricultural products in stocks.

includes:

Transactions between operating segments are accounted for

•• Quarterly reports containing information about income

based on financial information of individual segments that

and expenses by business units (segments) based on IFRS

represent separate legal entities.

numbers, that may be adjusted to present the segments
results as if the segments operated as independent

Analysis of revenues by products and services

business units and not as the division within the Group;

Each business segment except for the “Other agriculture”

•• Quarterly reports with a breakdown of separate material

segment is engaged in the production and sales of similar

lines of IFRS consolidated statement of financial positions

or related products (see above in this note). The “Other

and IFRS consolidated statement of cash flows by segment;

agriculture” segment in addition to its main activity

•• In addition to the main financial indicators, operating

of growing and harvesting agricultural crops, is engaged

data (such as yield, production volumes, cost per

in the cultivation of dairy cattle livestock. Related revenue

unit, staff costs) and revenue data (volumes per type

from sales of milk and other livestock products was

of product, market share) are also reviewed by the CODM

RR 246,057 (2013: RR 257,574).

on a quarterly basis.

For the amount of revenue from services, which comprise
mainly processing of sugar beet for third party agricultural

Measurement of operating segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities

enterprises, see Note 18.

Starting from 1 January 2012, the Group management

Geographical areas of operations

switched from reviewing segment information prepared on

All the Group’s assets are located in the Russian Federation.

the basis of RAR to reviewing segment information prepared

Distribution of the Group’s sales between countries

in accordance with IFRS accounting principles. The CODM

on the basis of the customers’ country of domicile was

assesses the performance of the operating segments based

as follows:

on the Adjusted EBITDA figure for the period. Adjusted

Russian Federation
Foreign countries
Total
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Year ended
31 December 2014

Year ended
31 December 2013

51,503,880

32,818,904

7,608,363

3,670,923

59,112,243

36,489,827
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Major customers
The Group has no customer or group of customers under

Information about reportable segment
adjusted EBITDA, assets and liabilities

common control who would account for more than 10%

The Group adopted IFRS 8 “Operating segments”

of the Group’s consolidated revenue.

according to which operating segments are reported
in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Group's CODM.

Segment information for the reportable segments’ assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is set out below:
2014

Sugar

Meat

Other agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

Assets

22,076,701

25,931,180

14,862,851

6,539,443

55,020,631

(42,925,039)

81,505,767

Liabilities

14,856,089

14,289,901

6,384,683

3,770,635

7,501,156

(17,115,998)

29,686,466

1,664,321

1,951,650

2,224,998

312,453

98,415

-

6,251,837

Additions to noncurrent assets*

2013

Sugar

Meat

Other agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

Assets

18,446,108

26,546,283

16,579,398

7,132,230

52,510,508

(48,084,244)

73,130,283

Liabilities

12,742,005

20,254,982

11,179,482

5,773,683

12,545,109

(23,930,011)

38,565,250

833,725

3,676,927

894,057

210,675

24,965

(1,356)

5,638,993

Additions to noncurrent assets*

Segment information for the reportable segments’ adjusted
EBITDA for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013
is set out below:

2014

Sales (Note 18)
Gain on revaluation of biological assets
and agriculture produce (Note 10)
Cost of sales (Note 19)
incl. Depreciation
Gains less losses from trading sugar
derivatives
Gross profit
Distribution and Selling, General and
administrative expenses (Notes 20, 21)
incl. Depreciation
Share-based remuneration
Other operating income/(expenses), net
(Note 22)
incl. Reimbursement of operating costs
(government grants)

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

22,463,664

17,750,521

10,710,176

14,920,094

45,558

(6,777,770)

59,112,243

-

9,346,266

2,897,468

-

-

-

12,243,734

(16,648,910)

(17,684,177)

(8,613,918)

(10,552,318)

-

5,849,613

(47,649,710)

(823,648)

(1,341,535)

(713,102)

(231,919)

-

(43,559)

(3,153,763)

375,305

-

-

-

-

-

375,305

6,190,059

9,412,610

4,993,726

4,367,776

45,558

(928,157)

24,081,572

(2,310,319)

(494,835)

(1,543,870)

(2,852,293)

(1,070,871)

808,699

(7,463,489)

(105,323)

(13,968)

(106,843)

(134,860)

(24,873)

42,598

(343,269)

-

-

-

-

(54,423)

-

(54,423)

82,069

376,370

(150,321)

85,900

7,236,857

(7,357,991)

272,884

-

331,844

216,201

-

-

-

548,045

3,961,809

9,294,145

3,299,535

1,601,383

6,157,121

(7,477,449)

16,836,544

Depreciation included in Operating
Profit

928,971

1,355,503

819,945

366,779

24,872

961

3,497,031

Other operating (income) /expenses, net

(82,069)

(376,370)

150,321

(85,900)

(7,236,856)

7,357,991

(272,883)

Share-based remuneration

-

-

-

-

54,423

-

54,423

Reimbursement of operating costs
(government grants)

-

331,844

216,201

-

-

-

548,045

Operating profit
Adjustments:

*Additions to non-current assets exclude additions to financial instruments and deferred tax assets, goodwill and restricted cash.
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Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

Gain on revaluation of biological assets
and agriculture produce

-

(9,346,266)

(2,897,468)

-

-

-

(12,243,734)

Gain on initial recognition of
agricultural produce attributable to
realised agricultural produce

-

-

2,791,408

-

-

(706,875)

2,084,533

Revaluation of biological assets
attributable to realised biological assets
and included in cost of sales

-

7,570,152

(4,636)

-

-

-

7,565,516

4,808,711

8,829,008

4,375,306

1,882,262

(1,000,440)

(825,372)

18,069,475

Sugar

Meat

Other
agriculture

Oil

Other

Eliminations

Total

16,962,740

7,421,338

8,529,185

8,919,552

117,486

(5,460,474)

36,489,827

-

1,820,756

1,668,707

-

-

-

3,489,463

(14,087,051)

(8,074,897)

(7,163,924)

(6,567,290)

-

4,596,535

(31,296,627)

(799,937)

(1,214,092)

(680,016)

(220,076)

-

(72,889)

(2,987,010)

175,407

-

-

-

-

-

175,407

2014

Adjusted EBITDA*

2013

Sales (Note 18)
Gain on revaluation of biological assets
and agriculture produce (Note 10)
Cost of sales (Note 19)
incl. Depreciation
Gains less losses from trading sugar
derivatives
Gross profit
Distribution and Selling, General and
administrative expenses (Notes 20, 21)
incl. Depreciation
Share-based remuneration

3,051,096

1,167,197

3,033,968

2,352,262

117,486

(863,939)

8,858,070

(2,208,689)

(389,437)

(1,852,068)

(1,641,364)

(532,865)

1,007,552

(5,616,871)

(107,587)

(13,165)

(91,572)

(94,316)

(17,788)

40,577

(283,851)

-

-

-

-

(178,280)

-

(178,280)

Other operating income/(expenses), net
(Note 22)

(235,436)

186,377

10,750

(21,443)

2,883,643

(2,940,428)

(116,537)

incl. Reimbursement of operating costs
(government grants)

-

287,450

281,186

-

-

-

568,636

606,971

964,137

1,192,650

689,455

2,289,984

(2,796,815)

2,946,382

Depreciation included in Operating
Profit

907,524

1,227,256

771,588

314,392

17,788

32,313

3,270,861

Other operating (income) /expenses, net

Operating profit
Adjustments:

235,436

(186,377)

(10,750)

21,443

(2,883,643)

2,940,428

116,537

Share-based remuneration

-

-

-

-

178,280

-

178,280

Reimbursement of operating costs
(government grants)

-

287,450

281,186

-

-

-

568,636

Gain on revaluation of biological assets
and agriculture produce

-

(1,820,756)

(1,668,707)

-

-

-

(3,489,463)

Gain on initial recognition of
agricultural produce attributable to
realised agricultural produce

-

-

1,773,091

-

-

173,585

1,946,676

Revaluation of biological assets
attributable to realised biological assets
and included in cost of sales

-

1,254,131

22,063

-

-

-

1,276,194

Reversal of provision for net realisable
value of agricultural products in stocks

(30,090)

-

-

-

-

-

(30,090)

1,719,841

1,725,841

2,361,121

1,025,290

(397,591)

349,511

6,784,013

Adjusted EBITDA*

* Non-IFRS measure
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29. Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

risk, credit risk, use of non-derivative financial instruments,
and investing excess liquidity.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including commodity price risk,

Credit risk

foreign exchange risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The credit risk represents the risk of losses for the Group

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses

owing to default of counterparties on obligations to transfer

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

to the Group cash and cash equivalents and other financial

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

assets.

performance. The Group does not use derivative financial

Activities of the Group that give rise to credit risk include

instruments to hedge its risk exposures except for raw sugar

granting loans, making sales to customers on credit

commodity price risk management as described below.

terms, placing deposits with banks and performing other

Operating risk management is carried out on the level

transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial

of the finance function of the Group’s business segments

assets.

with overall monitoring and control by management

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk

of the Group. The management is implementing principles

at the reporting date without taking account of any collateral

for overall risk management, as well as policies covering

held is as follows:

specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest-rate

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Bank deposits (Note 11)

696,500

696,500

Interest receivable (Note 11)

182,717

118,291

Loans issued (Note 11)

26,526

26,484

Available-for-sale investments (Note 11)

19,305

26,712

Restricted cash

17,373

2,404

Long-term financial assets

Other long-term investments (Note 11)
Total long-term financial assets

4,081

2,828

946,502

873,219

10,316,313

2,672,764

Short-term financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Bonds held for trading (Note 4)

6,684,189

-

Financial assets within trade and other receivables (Note 5)

2,127,125

1,547,115

Bank deposits (Note 4)

992,200

13,467,355

Loans issued (Note 4)

924,037

323,223

Interest receivable (Note 4)

167,736

367,685

Financial derivatives (Note 4)

95,627

8,298

-

1,100,000

Total short-term financial assets

21,307,227

19,486,440

Total

22,253,729

20,359,659

Promissory notes (Note 4)
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As at 31 December 2014 the Group has collateral against

in financial institutions which at the moment of transaction

RR 212,130 of its trade receivables (2013: RR 163,734).

have the minimum risk of a default. Starting 2010

The Group has geographical concentration of credit risk

the Group’s Treasury as additional measure of minimising

in the Russian market since the majority of the Group’s

credit risk places cash in the same banks from which

customers conduct their business in Russian Federation.

the Group obtains loans thus substantially reducing the risk

For minimisation of credit risk related to cash in bank,

of loss due to bank failure. The table below shows the rating

bank deposits and restricted cash the Group places cash

and balances with major banks at the reporting dates:
31 December 2014

Rating agency

Rating

Balance

31 December 2013
Rating

Balance

288,547

Credit Suisse

Fitch Ratings

A

8,606,390

A

Sberbank RF

Fitch Ratings

BBB

1,595,394

BBB

530,763

Standard & Poor’s

BB+

1,002,390

BB+

11,518,566

Alfa Bank
VTB Bank

Moody's

Ba1

570,596

-

-

Fitch Ratings

B+

456,102

B+

924,322

Moody's

B3

522

-

-

Rosselkhozbank

Fitch Ratings

BBB-

24

BBB-

380,501

Bank Saint Petersburg

Fitch Ratings

BB-

-

BB-

2,064,437

Credit bank of Moscow

Fitch Ratings

BB

-

BB

1,370,856

Garanti Bank Moscow

Fitch Ratings

-

-

BBB

50,380

UniCredit Bank

Fitch Ratings

BBB

-

BBB-

42

314

-

279

Locko Bank
Renaissance Capital

Other

-

Total cash at bank, bank deposits and restricted
cash (Note 3, 4, 11)

12,231,732

17,128,693

The table below shows the rating and balances of promissory notes with banks and other counterparties at the reporting dates:
31 December 2014

Sberbank RF

31 December 2013

Rating agency

Rating

Balance

Rating

Balance

Fitch Ratings

BBB

-

BBB

1,100,000

Total promissory notes (Note 4)

-

1,100,000

The table below shows the rating and balances of bonds held for trading at the reporting dates:
31 December 2014
Rating agency

Balance

Rating

Balance

VIMPELCOM HOLDINGS B.V.

Moody's

Ba3

1,350,202

-

-

ROSNEFT International Finance Limited

Standard & Poor’s

BBB-

1,292,416

-

-

GPN CAPITAL S.A.

Standard & Poor’s

BBB-

1,040,274

-

-

NOVATEK International Finance Limited

Moody's

Baa3

846,724

-

-

Sberbank RF

Fitch Ratings

BBB

858,576

-

-

GAZ CAPITAL SA

Standard & Poor’s

BBB-

495,797

-

-

RUSSIAN FEDERATION

Moody’s

Baa3

474,345

-

-

Alfa Bank

Standard & Poor’s

447,636

-

Total bonds held for trading (Note 4)
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Rating

BB+

6,805,970

-
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Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired and not renegotiated as at the reporting date
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Long-term financial assets
Bank deposits (Note 11)

696,500

696,500

Interest receivable (Note 11)

182,717

118,291

Loans issued (Note 11)

26,526

26,484

Available-for-sale investments (Note 11)

19,305

26,712

Restricted cash

17,373

2,404

Other long-term investments (Note 11)
Total long-term financial assets

4,081

2,828

946,502

873,219

10,316,313

2,672,764

Short-term financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Bonds held for trading (Note 4)

6,684,189

-

Trade receivables

1,940,281

1,517,320

Bank deposits (Note 4)

992,200

13,467,355

Loans issued (Note 4)

924,037

323,223

Other short-term receivables

185,221

23,864

Interest receivable (Note 4)

167,736

367,685

Financial derivatives (Note 4)

95,627

8,298

-

1,100,000

Total short-term financial assets

21,305,604

19,480,509

Total

22,252,106

20,353,728

Promissory notes (Note 4)

Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables relate to the customers who have a long-standing relationship with the Group
and a sound trading history. Concentrations of trade receivables by type of customer are as follows:
31 December 2014

Distribution and retail outlets
Manufacturers (candy, juice and other)
Other not categorised
Total trade receivables

The majority of the customers do not have independent
ratings. To minimize the risk of default on payment
of amounts due by counterparties for supplied goods

31 December 2013

1,245,066

923,723

675,570

532,624

19,922

60,973

1,940,558

1,517,320

Financial assets that are past due but not
impaired as at the reporting date

or rendered services the Group regularly revises

The Group has no past due but not impaired financial assets

the maximum amount of credit and grace periods for each

at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

significant customer.
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Financial assets that are impaired
as at the reporting date
The table below shows the analysis of impaired financial
assets:
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Nominal value

Impairment

Nominal value

Impairment

- trade receivables

93,476

(93,476)

82,694

(77,346)

- other receivables

53,043

(51,421)

18,785

(18,202)

146,519

(144,897)

101,479

(95,548)

Impaired receivables (Note 5):

Total

Financial assets are impaired when there is evidence that

Liquidity risk

the Group will not receive the full amount due or receive
the full amount later than contracted. Factors to consider

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining

include whether the receivable is past due, the age

sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an

of the receivable and past experience with the counterparty.

adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to

Financial assets that would otherwise
be impaired whose terms have been
renegotiated

the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Group
Treasury aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available. The Group Treasury
analyses the net debt position as disclosed in Note 14.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into

The Group has no financial assets at 31 December 2014 and

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period

2013 that would otherwise be impaired whose terms have

at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date:

been renegotiated.
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
At 31 December 2014

Carrying value

Total

2015

2016

2017-2019

After 2019

22,240,290

22,241,066

12,434,760

3,333,332

6,440,774

32,200

65,639

3,305,439

1,758,362

814,336

727,428

5,313

1,442,954

1,442,954

1,442,954

-

-

-

23,748,882

26,989,459

15,636,076

4,147,668

7,168,202

37,513

Total

2014

2015

2016-2018

After 2018

32,457,041

32,518,073

18,088,242

4,745,705

9,004,833

679,293

Borrowings and loans (Note 14)
- principal amount
- interest
Financial liabilities within trade
and other payables (Note 15)
Total

At 31 December 2013

Borrowings and loans (Note 14)
- principal amount
- interest
Financial liabilities within trade and
other payables (Note 15)
Total
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56,012

4,979,043

2,311,294

1,186,137

1,444,768

36,844

1,167,022

1,167,022

1,167,022

-

-

-

33,680,075

38,664,138

21,566,558

5,931,842

10,449,601

716,137
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The rate of CBRF used for calculating interest payments for

borrowings denominated in currencies other than Russian

government loans (Note 14) is 17.00% (2013: 8.25%).

Roubles:

The exchange rates used for calculating payments for bank
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

US Dollar

56.2584

32.7292

Euro

68.3427

44.9699

Market risk

of a defined interest rate shift. For each scenario, the same
interest rate shift is used for all currencies. The scenarios

Market risk, associated with financial instruments, is

are run only for liabilities that represent the major interest-

the risk of change of fair value of financial instruments

bearing positions.

or the future cash flows expected on a financial instrument,

During the year ended 31 December 2014, had interest rate

owing to change in interest rates, exchange rates, prices for

for borrowings with other than fixed rate been increased/

the commodities or other market indicators. From the risks

decreased by 600 basis points the profit before taxation would

listed above the Group is essentially exposed to the risks

have been RR 1,224,699 (2013: RR 226,394) lower/higher.

associated with changes in interest rates, exchange rates and
commodity prices.

Foreign exchange risk
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, foreign exchange risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

arises on cash in banks, short-term investments, long-term

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are exposed

investments, trade and other receivables, borrowings and

to changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest

trade and other payables denominated in foreign currency

rate risk arises from short-term and long-term borrowings.

(Notes 3, 4, 5, 13 and 14).

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow

At 31 December 2014, if the Russian Rouble had weakened/

interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group

strengthened by 30% (31 December 2013: 10%) against

to fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s policy is to

the US dollar with all other variables held constant,

maintain most of its borrowings in fixed rate instruments.

the Group’s profit before taxation would have been RR

The Group does not have formal policies and procedures

-4,974,049 lower/higher (2013: RR 81,370 higher/lower).

in place for management of fair value interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2014 if the Russian Rouble had weakened/

Interest rates under most of the Group’s borrowings are

strengthened by 30% (31 December 2013: 10%) against

fixed. However, the terms of the contracts stipulate the right

the Euro with all other variables held constant, the Group’s

of the creditor for a unilateral change of the interest

profit before taxation would have been RR 269,005 (2013:

rate (both increase and decrease), which can be based,

RR 96,423) lower/higher.

among other triggers, on a decision of the CBRF to change
the refinancing rate. Additionally, under government budget

Purchase price risk

loans (Note 14) the Group pays interest at ¼ of the current

The Group purchases raw sugar and manages its exposure

refinancing rate of the CBRF.

to this commodity price risk through financial derivatives.

Bank deposits and loans issued bear fixed interest rate and

In 2014, the Group’s total purchases of raw sugar were

therefore are not exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

RR 3,490,541 (2013: RR 1,641,337). The Group trades raw

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a

sugar derivatives on ICE Futures US through an agent.

continuous basis. Various scenarios are considered

Through derivatives, management aims to offset its long

taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing

position in sugar inventory in order to minimise effects

positions and alternative financing. Based on these

of price fluctuations on the results of the Group. The gains

scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit and loss

less losses on trading sugar derivatives of RR 375,305
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(2013: gains less losses on trading sugar derivatives of RR

value. The Russian Federation continues to display some

175,407) are presented as a separate line within Statement

characteristics of an emerging market and economic

of Comprehensive Income for the year.

conditions continue to limit the volume of activity

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk

in the financial markets. Market quotations may be outdated

arising on investments held by the Group and classified

or reflect distress sale transactions and therefore not

in the consolidated statement of financial position either

represent fair values of financial instruments. Management

as available for sale or at fair value through profit or loss

has used all available market information in estimating

(Note 11). The Group does not manage its price risk arising

the fair value of financial instruments.

from investments in equity securities.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Sales price risk
Changes in white sugar prices from January until August are

The fair value of floating rate instruments is normally their

closely related to changes in world raw sugar prices that is

carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate

implicitly managed through the raw sugar derivatives (see

instruments is based on estimated future cash flows expected

above). The storage facilities of own sugar plants permit

to be received discounted at current interest rates for new

to build up stocks of white sugar to defer sales to more

instruments with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

favourable price periods.

Discount rates used depend on credit risk of the counterparty.

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from changes

They are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

in milk, meat and crops prices (Note 10).

Liabilities carried at amortised cost

Fair value estimation

The fair value of floating rate instruments is normally their
The estimated fair values of financial instruments have

carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed interest

been determined by the Group using available market

rate instruments with stated maturity was estimated based

information, where it exists, and appropriate valuation

on expected cash flows discounted at current interest rates

methodologies. However, judgement is necessarily required

for new instruments with similar credit risk and remaining

to interpret market data to determine the estimated fair

maturity. They are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

Financial instruments by measurement categories and fair values
as at 31 December 2014
At fair value
through profit
or loss

Total carrying
amount

Fair value

-

-

10,316,313

10,316,313

-

6,684,189

6,684,189

6,684,189

-

-

-

924,037

924,037

-

-

-

992,200

992,200

167,736

-

-

-

167,736

167,736

-

-

-

95,627

95,627

95,627

2,127,125

-

-

-

2,127,125

2,127,125

14,527,411

-

-

6,779,816

21,307,227

21,307,227

Loans and
receivables

Other at amortised
cost

Available for sale

10,316,313

-

-

-

Loans issued (Note 4)

924,037

Bank deposits (Note 4)

992,200

Interest receivable (Note 4)

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bonds held for trading (Note 4)

Financial derivatives (Note 4)
Financial assets within trade and other
receivables (Note 5)
Total short-term financial assets
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Available for sale

At fair value
through profit
or loss

Total carrying
amount

Fair value

-

-

-

17,373

17,373

26,526

-

-

-

26,526

16,379

Bank deposits (Note 11)

696,500

-

-

-

696,500

533,609

Interest receivable (Note 11)

182,717

-

-

-

182,717

102,208

Available-for-sale investments (Note 11)

-

-

19,305

-

19,305

19,305

Other long-term investments (Note 11)

-

-

4,081

-

4,081

861

Loans and
receivables

Other at amortised
cost

Restricted cash

17,373

Loans issued (Note 11)

Total long-term financial assets

923,116

-

23,386

-

946,502

689,735

15,450,527

-

23,386

6,779,816

22,253,729

21,996,962

Short-term borrowings

-

12,499,623

-

-

12,499,623

12,499,623

Financial liabilities within trade and other
payables (Note 15)

-

1,442,954

-

-

1,442,954

1,442,954

Total short-term financial liabilities

-

13,942,577

-

-

13,942,577

13,942,577

Long-term borrowings

-

9,806,306

-

-

9,806,306

8,740,650

Total long-term financial liabilities

-

9,806,306

-

-

9,806,306

8,740,650

Total financial liabilities

-

23,748,883

-

-

23,748,883

22,683,227

Total carrying
amount

Fair value

2,672,764

2,672,764

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities

Financial instruments by measurement categories and fair valuesas at 31 December 2013:

Loans and
receivables

Other at amortised
cost

Available for sale

At fair value
through profit
or loss

2,672,764

-

-

-

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans issued (Note 4)

323,223

-

-

-

323,223

323,223

1,100,000

-

-

-

1,100,000

1,100,000

13,467,355

-

-

-

13,467,355

13,467,355

367,685

-

-

-

367,685

367,685

-

-

-

8,298

8,298

8,298

1,547,115

-

-

-

1,547,115

1,547,115

19,478,142

-

-

8,298

19,486,440

19,486,440

2,404

-

-

-

2,404

2,404

Loans issued (Note 11)

26,484

-

-

-

26,484

26,484

Bank deposits (Note 11)

696,500

-

-

-

696,500

696,500

Interest receivable (Note 11)

118,291

-

-

-

118,291

118,291

-

-

26,712

-

26,712

26,712

Promissory notes (Note 4)
Bank deposits (Note 4)
Interest receivable (Note 4)
Financial derivatives (Note 4)
Financial assets within trade and other
receivables (Note 5)
Total short-term financial assets
Restricted cash

Available-for-sale investments (Note 11)
Other long-term investments (Note 11)

-

-

2,828

-

2,828

2,828

843,679

-

29,540

-

873,219

873,219

20,321,821

-

29,540

8,298

20,359,659

20,359,659

Short-term borrowings

-

18,144,254

-

-

18,144,254

18,144,254

Financial liabilities within trade and other
payables (Note 15)

-

1,167,022

-

-

1,167,022

1,167,022

Total short-term financial liabilities

-

19,311,276

-

-

19,311,276

19,311,276

Long-term borrowings

-

14,368,799

-

-

14,368,799

14,368,799

Total long-term financial liabilities

-

14,368,799

-

-

14,368,799

14,368,799

Total financial liabilities

-

33,680,075

-

-

33,680,075

33,680,075

Total long-term financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
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The Group management uses discounted cash flow

recurring fair value measurements during the year ended

valuation technique in the financial instruments fair value

31 December 2014 (2013: none).

measurement for level 3 measurements. The fair value
is based on discounting of cash flows using 13.31-18.31%

Capital management

(2013: 11%) discount rate.
Fair value of bonds held-for trading is derived from open

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management

active markets and is within level 1 of the fair value

is to maximize participants’ return while sustaining

hierarchy.

a reasonable level of financial risks. The Group does

Sensitivity to valuation inputs for financial assets

not have a quantified target level of participants’ return

and financial liabilities, if changing one or more

or capital ratios. To fulfill capital management objectives

of the unobservable inputs to reflect reasonably possible

while providing for external financing of regular business

alternative assumptions would not change fair value

operations and investment projects, the Group management

significantly. For this purpose, significance was judged with

compares expected return of these operations and projects

respect to profit or loss, and total assets or total liabilities,

with the costs of debt and maintains prudent financial risk

or, when changes in fair value are recognised in other

management as described above.

comprehensive income, total equity.

The Group companies complied with all externally imposed

There were no changes in valuation technique for level 3

capital requirements throughout 2014 and 2013.

30. Contingencies
Tax legislation

and Development (OECD). The new legislation provides
the possibility for tax authorities to make transfer pricing

Russian tax and customs legislation which was enacted

adjustments and impose additional tax liabilities in respect

or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

of controlled transactions (transactions with related parties

period is subject to varying interpretations when being

and some types of transactions with unrelated parties),

applied to the transactions and activities of the Group.

provided that the transaction price is not arm's length.

Consequently, tax positions taken by management and

Management believes that its pricing policy used in 2014

the formal documentation supporting the tax positions may

and preceding years is arm's length and it has implemented

be challenged tax authorities. Russian tax administration

internal controls to be in compliance with the new transfer

is gradually strengthening, including the fact that there is

pricing legislation.

a higher risk of review of tax transactions without a clear

Given the specifics of transfer pricing rules, the impact

business purpose or with tax incompliant counterparties.

of any challenge of the Group’s transfer prices cannot

Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities

be reliably estimated, however, it may be significant to

in respect of taxes for three calendar years preceding

the financial conditions and/or the overall operations

the year when decision about review was made. Under

of the Group.

certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

The Group includes companies incorporated outside

Russian transfer pricing legislation was introduced from

of Russia. The tax liabilities of the Group are determined

1999 and was amended with effect from 1 January 2012.

on the assumption that these companies are not subject

The new transfer pricing rules appear to be more

to Russian profits tax, because they do not have a permanent

technically elaborate and, to a certain extent, better

establishment in Russia. This interpretation of relevant

aligned with the international transfer pricing principles

legislation may be challenged but the impact of any such

developed by the Organisation for Economic Cooperation

challenge cannot be reliably estimated currently; however,
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it may be significant to the financial position and/or

Legal proceedings

the overall operations of the Group.
As Russian tax legislation does not provide definitive

From time to time and in the normal course of business,

guidance in certain areas, the Group adopts, from time to time,

claims against the Group may be received. On the basis

interpretations of such uncertain areas that reduce the overall

of its own estimates, management is of the opinion that

tax rate of the Group. While management currently estimates

no material losses will be incurred in respect of claims.

that the tax positions and interpretations that it has taken can

There are no current legal proceedings or other claims

probably be sustained, there is a possible risk that outflow

outstanding which could have a material effect on the results

of resources will be required should such tax positions

of operations and financial position of the Group.

and interpretations be challenged by the tax authorities.
The impact of any such challenge cannot be reliably

Operating environment of the Group

estimated; however, it may be significant to the financial
position and/or the overall operations of the Group.

The uncertainties related to the operating environment

In addition to the above matters, at 31 December 2013

of the Group are described in Note 1.

management estimated that the Group has other possible
obligations from exposure to other than remote tax
risks of RR 81,716. These exposures are estimates that
result from uncertainties in interpretation of applicable

Contractual capital expenditure
commitments

legislation and related documentation requirements.

As at 31 December 2014 the Group had outstanding

As at 31 December 2014 management determined that there

contractual commitments in respect of purchases

were no such obligations. Management will vigorously

or construction of property, plant and equipment

defend the Group's positions and interpretations that

in the amount of RR 1,759,762 (31 December 2013:

were applied in determining taxes recognised in these

RR 1,326,523).

consolidated financial statements if these are challenged by

As at 31 December 2014 the Group had outstanding

the authorities.

contractual commitments in respect of purchases

Social obligations
Some production companies of the Group have collective

of biological assets in the amount of RR 615
(31 December 2013: RR 3,132).

Operating lease commitments

agreements signed with the employees. Based on these
contracts the companies make social payments to

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 678 land lease

the employees. The amounts payable are determined in each

agreements (31 December 2013: 433), of these 416 land lease

case separately and depend primarily on performance

agreements (31 December 2013: 170) fixed rent payments are

of the company. These payments do not satisfy the liability

defined and denominated in Russian Roubles. For these land

recognition criteria listed in IAS 19, “Employee Benefits”.

lease agreements the future minimum lease payments under

Therefore, no liability for social obligations was recognised

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

in these consolidated financial statements.

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

101,580

80,062

307,200

188,323

Later than 5 years

1,163,795

767,276

Total

1,572,575

1,035,661
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In addition, in 262 land lease agreements
(31 December 2013: 263) the rent is established as a nonmonetary measure based on a certain share of agricultural
produce harvested or a fixed volume of harvested crops.
For 2014 related rent expenses were RR 217,752 (2013:
RR 205,675).

Sales commitments
As at 31 December 2014 the Group had outstanding sales
commitments in respect of sales of sunflower oil to Federal
State Reserve Agency in 2015 in the amount of RR 344,250.
As at 31 December 2013 the Group had outstanding sales
commitments in respect of sales of sunflower oil to Federal
State Reserve Agency in 2014 in the amount of RR 270,981
and in 2015 in the amount of RR 343,481.

32. Subsequent events
The Board of Directors recommends the payment
of dividends for the year 2014 amounting to RR 5,063,256
thousand. Given the Company has already paid interim
dividends for the first half of 2014, with a total payout RR 2,000,029 thousand, the distributed amount is
RR 3,063,227 thousand. Given the Company owns 2,212,648
of its own GDRs, which will be excluded from dividend
distribution, the dividend will be RR 130.03 per ordinary
share (the equivalent USD 2.35 per ordinary share based
on the CBRF rate 55.3328 as of 8 April 2015). The proposed
dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting. These consolidated financial
statements do not reflect the dividends that have not been
approved on the reporting date.
There were no other material post balance sheet events
occurring after the end of the reporting period requiring
disclosure in these consolidated financial statements.
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